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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

Annual Profit

Welling Holding Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
audited profit attributable to the owners of the Company and earnings per
share for the year ended 31 December 2009 (the “Year”) amounted to
approximately HK$353,775,000 (2008: HK$196,877,000) and HK2.62
cents (2008: HK1.46 cents) respectively. Profit grew significantly by 79.7%
mainly attributable to effective cost control and increase in proportion of
self-made key components which resulted in a reduction of overall cost of
goods sold, while improvement in product sales structure has also
contributed to the increase of gross profit margin to 14.5% (2008:
approximately 10.3%).

Business Review

2009 was a year full of challenges and opportunities to the Group. During
the first half of the year, the global economy was dealt a heavy blow by the
financial crisis causing export sales to drop significantly. To cope with the
financial turmoil and volatility of the market, we swiftly took responsive
actions in adopting stringent cost reduction measures and adjusting our
production schedules to enable the Group to maintain stable development
and profitable performance. In the second half of the year, following the
turnaround of global economy and positive effects derived from the
stimulus measures rolled out by the PRC government since the beginning
of the year, the Group took the opportunity to increase its production
capacity and expand its market share, leading to a significant increase in
purchase orders from China and overseas. As a result, the Group reported
satisfactory profit growth for the full year.

While the global economy remained volatile in 2009, we leveraged fully on
favorable policies for the electrical household appliances introduced by the
PRC government to encourage domestic consumption (such as the “Home
Appliances Subsidy Policy for Rural Areas”, “Home Appliances
Replacement Subsidy Policy” and the “Subsidy for Energy Efficient
Appliances”). To satisfy the escalating demand for air-conditioning motors
and washing motors, we initiated the resources integration, cost reduction
and production capacity expansion, so as to reinforce our leading position
in the industry. To catch up with the development trend of energy-efficient
products, we have accelerated our pace of product upgrades and new
model introduction. As a result, a substantial growth in energy-saving
products, such as refrigerator compressor motors and high speed series
motors, as well as DC converter motors which has achieved a
breakthrough. Our expansion to overseas market has made significant
progress with its strategic launch of commercial air-conditioning motors in
the America. Our efforts on resources integration, production optimization
and cost reduction over the past two years are bringing fruitful outcome, as
evidenced by enhanced production efficiency and substantial
improvements in manufacturing standards.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (Continued)

Business Prospects

Look ahead to 2010, the PRC government is expected to increase the
magnitude of its policies to encourage consumption, such as the “Home
Appliances Subsidy Policy for Rural Areas”, “Home Applicances
Replacement Subsidy Policy” and the “Subsidy for Energy Efficient
Appliances”. We believe that these policies will have a profound impact on
the development and growth of the sector as motors for electrical
household appliances hold out immense growth potential given its
important role in environmental protection and energy conservation.
Therefore, we will focus on technological innovation and development of
energy-saving products with the aim at enhancing our core
competitiveness and further consolidating our market position. Meanwhile,
we will maintain our leading advantage in terms of industrial and product
technological innovation. In future, the theme of the motor industry will be
technological innovation, environmental protection and energy conservation
as well as quality customer service. On the other hand, the Group will
continue to explore opportunities to enter into new business areas with
greater room for future development and look for other suitable investment
and acquisition target in a prudent manner so as to achieve sustainable
development.

It is expected that our strategic products, such as commercial air-
conditioning motors, energy-efficient refrigerator compressor motors and
DC converter motors, will become a new profit driver of the Group. In
addition to maintaining the leading advantage of series motors for high-end
washing machines, for which we enjoyed absolute dominance in the
domestic market, we will step up with research and development and
launch upgraded new-generation models such as high-speed series
motors, DD motors and three-phase converter motors so that our
customers will always be provided with the best products and services.

With the gradual recovery of the global economy, more enterprises will shift
their components manufacturing process to Asia, China’s export sales of
electrical household appliances are expected to be back on growth track in
2010. The Group will seize every opportunity presented by industrial
restructuring as well as product upgrades and replacement to drive
business growth. Furthermore, the Group intends to extend its local leading
position to include overseas markets with an adjusted product portfolio and
upgraded technologies. The ultimate goal is to become one of the global
premium suppliers of motors and solutions for electrical household
appliances for the sake of providing sustainable returns for shareholders,
better development opportunities for our staff, as well as creating greater
value for the society.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (Continued)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Business Review

The Group’s profit attributable to the owners of the Company and earnings
per share for the year ended 31 December 2009 amounted to
approximately HK$353,775,000 (2008: approximately HK$196,877,000)
and HK2.62 cents (2008: HK1.46 cents) respectively. The substantial
increase in profit was mainly attributable to the cost-saving policies
adopted by the Group coupled with the higher proportion of self-made key
components, which resulted in a reduction of overall cost of sales. For the
year ended 31 December 2009, the Group recorded a turnover of
approximately HK$4,824,116,000 (2008: approximately
HK$5,193,278,000). The Group’s gross profit margin was approximately
14.5% (2008: approximately 10.3%). Net asset value per share of the
Group was HK8.4 cents as at 31 December 2009 (2008: HK5.7 cents).

Analysis of Major Business Operations

The PRC economy started to rebound since the second quarter of 2009
and concluded the year with a GDP growth of 8.7%. In the aftermath of the
US financial crisis, China successfully mitigated the impact of drastic
shrinkage in export sales and maintained stable macro-economic
conditions by adopting an expansionary fiscal policy and an easing
monetary policy. With improved market sentiments, consumer spendings
and corporate investments revived. Domestic home appliance consumption
sustained stable growth during the year, on the back of real demand in the
market. Consumption was also driven by favourable government policies
and measures with an aim to encourage retail consumption, increase social
security contributions and improve farmers’ income. Policies such as
“Home Appliances Subsidy Policy for Rural Areas”, “Home Appliances
Replacement Subsidy Policy” and “Subsidy for Energy Efficient Appliances”
have played an important role in driving demand and facilitating structural
adjustments.

In 2009, the Group directed its efforts towards sales volume growth,
stringent control over inventory, receivables and cash flow as well as cost
control optimisation in pursuit of its business objectives to “drive growth,
sustain profit and contain risks”. The Group operated under sound
operating conditions throughout the year and sustained rapid year-on-year
growth in the production and sales of its principal products. Air-
conditioning motors enjoyed rising profitability, and strong growth was also
reported for wave-wheel washing motors. Our initiatives in product mix
adjustment and cost reduction were paid off, while the market position of
our principal products was further enhanced. In connection with high-end
strategic products, breakthrough in terms of commercial production and
market entry has been achieved for commercial air-conditioning motors,
energy-saving refrigerator compressor motors, direct current motors and
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(Continued)

high-speed series motors, which will form a new niche for profit growth of
the Company in the coming years. Meanwhile, further inroads were made
in product diversification with the development of other strategic products.
For the micro motors business, resources integration for the Shunde
production base and the Wuhu production base has continued. With
effective implementation of production streamlining and capacity upgrade,
the Company’s manufacturing capability and standard were significantly
improved. For the washing motors business, vigorous efforts were made to
optimise process set-up and achieve lean production so that our
production capability of self-made key components could be enhanced.
Moreover, in 2009, we took full advantage of our scale and manufacturing
strengths to step up with the development of high-end strategic products,
cultivate key technologies, recruit talents for core positions and strengthen
our presence in the American market as part of our efforts to ensure
sustainable and stable development.

(1) Micro Motors Business

Demand for household air-conditioners and commercial air-
conditioners declined substantially during the first half of 2009 as a
result of the global economic crisis. Sentiments in the air-
conditioning market started to improve, however, when the PRC
government launched a string of stimulus policies such as “Home
Appliances Subsidy Policy for Rural Areas”, “Home Appliances
Replacement Subsidy Policy” and “Subsidy for Energy Efficient
Appliances” in the latter half of the year, while the prolonged hot
weather in most regions of the country and the property market
boom were also favourable to a pick-up in demand. For the year,
sales of the household air-conditioners in PRC was 65,740,000 units
(Source: www.chinalOL.com), representing a year-on-year increase
of 0.61%.
conditioners was curbed in the second half of the year. The

Meanwhile, the decline in sales of commercial air-

refrigerator industry also benefited from the PRC macro-economic
stimulus policies. Second- and third-tier markets grew rapidly with a
significant increase in overall market demand.

For the micro motors business, the Group recorded approximately
45,037,000 units of domestic sales and 7,134,000 units of export
sales of micro motors for the year ended 31 December 2009. The
aggregate sales volume increased by 20% as compared to the same
period last year, which was higher than the overall increase rate of
the industry. The micro motors business recorded a turnover of
HK$2,444,272,000 for the full year of 2009, which represented a
decrease of approximately 9.6% as compared to HK$2,703,149,000
for the same period in 2008. The decrease in turnover was
attributable to the drop in the unit prices of products, which was in
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tandem with the substantial decline in bulk purchase prices of raw
materials. Profit for the micro motors business during 2009
amounted to HK$167,521,000 which was approximately 246.8%
higher as compared to HK$48,302,000 recorded for the same
period in 2008.

In 2009, the development strategy of the micro motors business was
further refined with refrigerator compressor motors, commercial air-
conditioning motors and direct current motors being confirmed as
three core strategic products. In particular, our commercial air-
conditioning motors received accreditation for sale in the North
American market and an office in America was set up in connection
with our move to tap the American commercial motors market.
These products are expected to form a new niche for the Company’s
profit growth in the coming years. In the refrigerator compressor
motors business, we were striving to further deepen and strengthen
strategic ties with leading enterprises in the industry, in order to
enhance sales and sustain strong growth in the coming years. In the
direct current motors business, the Group seized opportunities
presented by market requirements for the upgrade and replacement
of home appliances, Breakthrough in our relationships with key
customers paved the way for future development thanks to vigorous
marketing efforts, enhanced research and development and
introduction of advanced manufacturing equipment. The
manufacturing capability and production efficiency of the enterprise
was significantly enhanced by adoption of lean production process,
improving in manufacturing standards and integration of
manufacturing resources of the Shunde and Wuhu bases. The
technology development standard raised with the recruitment of
more high-calibre personnel with sound knowledge in research and
development as well as the optimisation of the composition of our
technical staff. Our overall management standards and competitive
strengths were enhanced through stringent cost control, reinforced
internal control management, operations risk prevention, encouraged
innovation and enhancement in staff expertise and efficiency. The
volume of sales of household air-conditioning motors grew
significantly in 2009, reflecting the combined effect of deepened
relationship with existing customers and further exploration of new
customers. Remarkable achievements were attained in the marketing
development of these three core strategic products, which were
ideally positioned to become the principal products of the micro
motors business and to contribute significantly to the Company’s
profit growth in the coming years.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(Continued)
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Washing Motors Business

Export sales of washing machines in PRC were adversely affected
by the unfavourable market conditions in 2009 with a decrease of
5.05% when compared with the same period last year (Source:
www.chinalOL.com), in particular, the European market has been
affected the most. In the domestic market, the performance of the
washing machine industry remained relatively stable with aggregate
sales for 2009 increased by approximately 5.46% (Source: www.
chinalOL.com) when compared with the same period last year, as
the effects of the macro-economic policies of the PRC government
started to materialise, while sales benefited from the cycle of product
replacement and upgrade for domestic washing machines and were
well supported by the growing maturity of the second- and third-tier
domestic markets.

In 2009, the Group recorded approximately 13,431,000 units of
domestic sales and approximately 7,415,000 units of export sales
for its washing motors. Total sales volume grew approximately 43%
as compared to the same period last year. In response to the
change of market demand and the adjustment of internal marketing
strategies, the product mix of washing motors sales was changed.
In 2009, the sales volume of wave-wheel washing motors increased
by over 90% while the sales volume of tumble-type washing motors
decreased by approximately 2%. The Group started to manufacture
small series motors for food processing during the first half of 2009
and achieved sales of more than 1 million units. Despite significant
growth in the overall sales volume of washing motors for 2009, the
aggregate turnover for the washing motors business increased by
approximately 3.6% (approximately HK$1,635,403,000 for the same
period in 2008) to approximately HK$1,694,340,000, as a result of
the change in the composition of product sales and the drop in
selling price in tandem with the substantial decline in the bulk
purchase prices of raw materials as compared to 2008. Profit for the
washing motors business during 2009 amounted to
HK$172,175,000, which was approximately 74.1% higher as
compared to HK$98,905,000 recorded for the same period in 2008.

The overall production efficiency of the washing motor business was
significantly improved in 2009 thanks to the adoption of a strategy
underpinned by in-depth development, technological innovation and
cost control optimisation. Product competitiveness was further
enhanced through the adoption of a lean production process and a
higher proportion of self-made key components. Further economies
of scales were achieved and profitability was considerably enhanced
through the development of new products, timely adjustment of
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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product mix, enhancement of product quality and swift upgrade of
production capacity. The washing motor business established offices
in Europe and America in 2009 in order to secure further businesses
with major customers and to develop the European and American
markets more intensively. The Group’s leading position in the
washing motors business was reinforced with continued substantial
growth in the sales of washing motors for the year. We also
maintained our leading position in the domestic market for series
motors for washing machines.

Electronic and Electric Components Business

In 2009, the export sales volume of microwave ovens decreased by
14.3% as compared to the same period last year under the impact
of the global financial crisis. Nevertheless, domestic sales increased
by 32% over the same period in 2008 (Source: www.chinalOL.com),
as a result of the implementation of macro-economic policies in PRC
and further realization of the effect of industry integration. The Group
recorded 28,897,000 units of sales of its electronic and electric
components for the full year, comprising approximately 27,772,000
units in domestic sales and approximately 1,125,000 units in export
sales, representing a 4% increase in total as compared to the same
period in 2008. Furthermore, the unit prices of products dropped in
tandem with the substantial decline in bulk purchase prices of raw
materials in the first half of the year. Turnover for electronic and
electric components amounted to HK$679,475,000 which was
14.9% lower as compared to HK$798,202,000 recorded for the
same period in 2008. Profit for electronic and electric components
during 2009 amounted to HK$41,111,000 which was approximately
88.1% higher as compared to HK$21,858,000 recorded for the
same period in 2008.

To cope with the adverse impact of the financial crisis, measures to
strengthen operating risk control, optimise product mix, improve
production processes, enhance cost control and upgrade product
quality were adopted for the electronic and electric components
business. Cost reductions were achieved through the adoption of a
lean production process, the increase in the proportion of self-made
key components and domestic production of parts and components.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EHESRESHT(8)
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Financial Review Bt ¥5 E BE
Liquidity and Financial Resources REBEERMBER

The Group has maintained a healthy financial and liquidity position witha AXEB BB EGRSES UK IER R-_Z2Z
current ratio of 106% as at 31 December 2009 (2008: 100%). As at 31 HE+-_A=+—B Z R &t &K B106% (= Z
December 2009, the Group had a cash and cash equivalents of T N\F:100%) R _EZETHLE+ A=+ —
approximately HK$257,478,000 (2008: approximately HK$217,124,0000 H A E B 2 EHE 2 R A 2 Z B AN B K
and the bank borrowings of approximately HK$629,102,000 (2008:  257,478,0007t (—ZZE T )\ F : 4975 #217,124,000
approximately HK$671,608,000), of which approximately HK$469,102,000  7T) - R 1T & 5% 49 7 #629,102,000T (Z B & N\
would be due within one year and approximately HK$160,000,000 would — 4F : 4 & #671,608,0007T) * £ F 4 & &
be due over one year. 469,102,000 7 — & A E B W & & &
160,000,0007T 7 8 38 — F 12 B 81

Financial Ratios BAF5EL 2=

The following are certain financial ratios of the Group as at the statement of TR IR FTRM AR K B AN EBA B LK -
financial position date:

31 December 31 December
2009 2008
—ETAE —ZENF

T A=+—H e

Inventories turnover (Note 1) 7 & B A (=) 40 days H 28 days H

Current ratio (Note 2) B bk & (P EE2) 1.06 time & 1.00 time %

Gearing ratio (Note 3) BAREENEE(E3I) 0.28 time & 0.51 time &

Notes: B 5

1. Inventories turnover is based on the average of the opening inventory and closing 1. FEEENEREFEVESHEREFETHBBIUEE
inventory, divided by cost of good sold of the year, and multiplied by total number HEE QRN BRNZENAAHETE -
of days for the year.

2. Current ratio is based on year-end current assets divided by year-end current 2. EEH R ERIEERN RS EERUNEREH AR -
liabilities.

3. Gearing ratio is based on net debt divided by total equity. Net debt is calculated 3. BABEHREBREEEFERAERSTE  FESF
as total borrowings (including borrowings as shown in the statement of financial AL EE(BENERIERAROEZ)REBES R

position) less cash and cash equivalents and pledged bank deposits. BLZLEYROEMBITES -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(Continued)

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2009, short-term borrowings of the Group were
secured by certain property with net book value of approximately
HK$125,081,000 (2008: approximately HK$133,229,000) and certain
leasehold land and land use rights with net book value of approximately
HK$84,026,000 (2008: approximately HK$85,965,000) of the Group.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2009, the Group did not have any material contingent
liability.

Capital Expenditure

For the year ended 31 December 2009, the Group has invested
approximately HK$225,124,000 (2008: approximately HK$354,468,000) in
the addition of property, plant and equipment, leasehold land and land use
rights.

Derivative Financial Instruments

As at 31 December 2009, the Group’s outstanding derivative financial
assets and liabilities under various copper and aluminium future contracts
and foreign exchange forward contracts amounted to approximately
HK$25,708,000 and HK$902,000, respectively (2008: derivative financial
liabilities of approximately HK$30,635,000).

Exposure to Exchange Rate Fluctuations

Approximately 30% of the Group’s turnover was derived from export
trading settled in Euros and US dollars. Similarly, the Group also imported
raw materials in which the suppliers were paid in Euros and US dollars.
Foreign exchange risks associated with these currencies were partially
offset as a result. Moreover, the Group has made arrangements to
purchase foreign exchange forward contracts to hedge foreign exchange
exposure for certain export trading. The Group has strengthened control
over risk of the fluctuations in exchange rate, and reviewed from time to
time the sufficiency and appropriateness of the financial instruments which
were used to hedge significant foreign currency risks.

Capital Commitments

As at 31 December 2009, the Group has contracted capital commitments
in respect of the purchase of property, plant and equipment amounting to
approximately HK$35,396,000 (2008: approximately HK$207,173,000).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(Continued)

Human Resources

As at 31 December 2009, the Group had approximately 11,770 full time
employees in Hong Kong and the PRC. While the Company was supported
by a team of young and high-calibre staff team, it also places strong
emphasis on the development, management and planning of human
resources, with a view to enhancing employee contributions to the Group
and forging strategic advantages in human resources by adopting an open,
fair and equitable policy on staff selection and deployment and
implementing proper human resources management.

The Group has adopted a share option scheme to motivate employees by
linking their interests to the future development and expansion of the
Group.

The Group currently provides staff with competitive remuneration packages
(comprising salary, bonus and benefits), insurance (comprising pension,
medical insurance, unemployment insurance and insurance for labour
injury) and housing fund. In addition, the Group also provides other
benefits, including meal subsidies, housing subsidies, cooperative medical
services, assistance fund and group activities.

Business Prospect

Domestic sales of household appliances are expected to maintain steady
growth in 2010 and beyond, given strong support afforded by ongoing
urbanisation in the PRC, per capita income growth and improvement in
housing conditions. As PRC household appliances are highly
complementary to the product structure of many developed as well as
developing countries, our comparative advantage is significant. Following
the recovery of the world economy, the export of China-made household
appliances will rebound in 2010. There are potential threats and interrelated
risk factors in the process of industry recovery, such as the USD exchange
rate, trends in bulk purchase prices, interim fiscal and monetary policies
and their anticipated effect on inflation, the emergence of protectionism,
etc. Nevertheless, with the rapid growth of the rural household appliance
market driven by the “Home Appliances Subsidy Policy for Rural Areas”,
and the substantial progress of the “Home Appliances Replacement
Subsidy Policy” and the “Subsidy for Energy Efficient Appliances”, policy-
driven effects will be more obvious in 2010 and the potential of domestic
consumption will be further realised, especially in the rural market. As
market expansion is expected to continue and development prospects
remain sound, the micro motor sector will sustain growth given increasing
demand for end- products and industrial upgrade. The theme of the
industry will be technology innovation and customization.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(Continued)

To grasp the opportunities come out from the PRC government’s
promotion of energy conservation and product upgrade and replacement,
the Group will continue to focus on its micro motors business, emphasising
technology innovation and recruitment, internal training and promotion of
key technical personnel coupled with in-depth production streamlining and
optimisation of cost management with an intention to bolster its core
competitiveness and strengthen its market dominance. On the basis of our
strengths in production scale and manufacturing technology, we will
continue to step up with the development of strategic products and
advanced technologies, recruit more talents for core positions and extend
expansion for the American market to ensure stable development in the
longer term. The Group will strive to position itself as an excellent global
expert providing systematic solutions in micro motors to customers with an
aim to create sustainable and incremental return to shareholders, sound
career development opportunities for its employees and greater value and
benefits for the society.

The Group will endeavor to firm up its global leading position in micro motor
for household air-conditioning alternating current motors through product
sophistication and specialization, with special emphasis on the three
strategic products (commercial air-conditioning motors, direct current
motors and refrigerator compressor motors), towards which additional
investments will be made to enhance their competitiveness so that they
may develop into a niche for future profit growth. We will ride on the recent
substantial growth in the washing motors business to further expand its
wave-wheel motors business, while stepping up with the marketing of high-
end series motors and small series motors. Furthermore, the Group will
seek to consolidate its market position in the sectors of wave-wheel
motors, series motors and dishwasher pumps. Meanwhile, the Group will
enhance the marketing of high-end and energy- saving motor products
(which include three-phase converter motors, agitator motors and DD
motors, all are used in washing machines, and BLDC motors used in direct
current dishwashers) with particular emphasis on enlarging market shares
in Europe and extending its presence to America, with a view to increasing
the overseas market shares and sales weighting of the high-end products.
In respect of its electronic and electric components business, besides the
strengthening of its global leading position in microwave oven transformers,
the Group will also accelerate the development of resistors and shaded
pole motors as well as explore and foster new niches for profit growth. In
the meantime, we will strive to grow in scale as well as profitability through
the increase in self-made key components and further streamlining in
production process.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company has adopted the Code on Corporate Governance Practices
(the “CG Code”) set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”) as its own code of corporate governance practices.

The Company has fully complied with all the code provisions set out in the
CG Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2009 except for the
deviation from Code Provision E.1.2 of the CG Code which provides that
the chairman of the board should attend the annual general meeting and
arrange for the chairman of the audit, remuneration and nomination
committees (as appropriate) or in the absence of the chairman of such
committees, another member of the committee failing this his duly
appointed delegates, to be available to answer questions at the annual
general meeting.

The Chairman of the Board was unable to attend the Company’s 2009
annual general meeting due to another business engagement. The
chairman of the audit committee and remuneration committee were unable
to attend the Company’s 2009 annual general meeting due to other
business engagement. In the absence of the Chairman of the Board, the
Chief Executive Officer of the Company was elected by the Directors
present at the Company’s 2009 annual general meeting to act as the
chairman of the meeting and all other executive Directors and non-
executive Director of the Company attended the meeting and were
available to answer questions from shareholders.

Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
(“Model Code”) as its code of conduct of the Company for Directors’
securities transactions. Having made specific enquiry with the Directors, all
of the Directors confirmed that they have complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code throughout the Year.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
(Continued)

The Board

The Board is responsible for laying down the Group’s future development
direction, overall strategies and policies, the evaluation of the performance
of the Group and the management and approval of matters that are of
material and substantial in nature. Senior management of the Company
was delegated with the authority and responsibility by the Board for the
day-to-day management, administration and operations of the Group.
Senior management of each division is responsible for different businesses
and functions of the Group in accordance with its particular area of
expertise. The Board has also delegated various responsibilities to the
Board committees. Details of these Board committees are set out below in
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this report.
During the year ended 31 December 2009, the Board held four meetings, #HZE_ZZHhE+-_A=+—HLEE &=
Directors participated these meetings either in person or through electronic B RTINS ZH EEAFEFHUE FEA
means of communication. The attendance records of each Director at the HF X2 HEZEeZ SESEREHEZ_ZTTNF
Board meetings held during the year ended 31 December 2009 areas +-_A=+—HBUIEELEESTe % L
follows: N
Number of meetings
attended/held during
the tenure of the
respective Directors
BFEENEEHE
HERE EEBN
Directors BEE EEHEEITERRE
Executive Directors BITEE
Mr. Cai Qiwu BHREE 3/4
Mr. Jiang Deging =EERE 4/4
Mr. Qu Fei & REE 4/4
Mr. Gao Fazhong BRI 4/4
Ms. Yuan Liqun '&ﬂﬁﬁi 4/4
Mr. Li Jianwei REEEEE 3/4
Mr. Zheng Weikang B {8 B 5t A 4/4
Non-executive Director FEHITES
Ms. Tan Xuemei EEWLZ T 4/4
Independent non-executive Directors ZE MFERITES
Mr. Tan Jinsong (appointed on 1 August 2009) BEYMEERZZEZNFNR—BEZT) 2/2
Mr. Lam Ming Yung MR B S 4/4
Ms. Chen Chunhua BREEL L 4/4
Mr. Chan Wai Dune (resigned on 31 July 2009) BRamttE(RM-_EZAFLA=1+T—HHMT) 2/2
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
(Continued)

For each of the Board meetings held during the year ended 31 December
2009, each Director had been consulted beforehand and served with prior
notice to enable him/her to include matters in the agenda of the
forthcoming Board meeting.

The Board will hold four regular meetings every year. The Company
generally gives at least 14 days notice in advance for regular Board
meetings and gives reasonable notice for all other Board meetings in order
to give all Directors opportunity to attend the meetings. During the year
ended 31 December 2009, the Company had complied with the said notice
requirements for Board meetings by giving all Directors adequate time to
plan their schedules to attend.

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary who is responsible for ensuring that Board procedures are
complied with applicable rules and regulations and corporate governance
practices.

The Company Secretary is responsible for taking minutes of Board
meetings which shall record in sufficient detail the matters considered by
the Board, decisions reached, concerns raised and divergent views
expressed at the meetings. For each of the Board meetings held during the
year ended 31 December 2009, draft and final versions of the minutes of
Board meetings were sent to all Directors within reasonable time (generally
within 14 days for both cases) after the Board meeting had been held for
their comments and records. All Board minutes are available for inspection
by all Directors.

The Company’s corporate governance guidelines give all Directors the
rights, upon reasonable request, to seek independent professional advice
in appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expense, and in such
circumstances, the Board shall resolve to provide separate independent
professional advice to the Directors to assist the relevant Directors to
discharge their duties.

The provisions of the articles of association of the Company (the “Articles”)
have set out a list of matters that should not be dealt with by way of
circulation of written resolution by Directors and such list includes the
circumstances where a Director has a conflict of interest in a matter to be
considered by the Board which the Board considered to be material.

For the year ended 31 December 2009, appropriate insurance cover in
respect of legal action against the Directors was arranged.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
(Continued)

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company
are performed by separate individuals so as to enhance the division of
responsibilities between them and to ensure a balance of power and
authority. The positions of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are
held by Mr. Cai Qiwu and Mr. Jiang Deqing respectively. The Chairman is
responsible for taking the lead of the Board in determining the strategic
direction of the Group, ensuring that all Directors are properly briefed on
business contemplated at Board meetings and receive timely, adequate,
complete and reliable information. The Chief Executive Officer of the
Company with the support of other executive Directors is responsible for
strategic planning of different business functions and day-to-day
management and operations of the Group.

Board Composition

The Board currently comprises eleven Directors, including seven executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Cai Qiwu (Chairman), Mr. Jiang Deqing, Mr. Qu Fei,
Mr. Gao Fazhong, Ms. Yuan Liqun, Mr. Li Jianwei and Mr. Zheng Weikang,
one non-executive Director, namely, Ms. Tan Xuemei and three
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Tan Jinsong, Mr. Lam
Ming Yung and Ms. Chen Chunhua, in order to maintain a balanced
composition with a strong independent element on the Board.

Mr. Chan Wai Dune resigned as an independent non-executive Director
with effect from 31 July 2009. Mr. Tan Jinsong was appointed in
replacement of Mr. Chan with effect from 1 August 2009.

The biographies of each of the current Directors are set out in pages 30 to
33 in this annual report, which demonstrate a diversity of skills, expertise,
experience and qualifications appropriate for the requirements of the
business of the Company.

The Directors, including the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer, have
no financial, business, family or other material or relevant relationships with
each other.

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence from
each of the three independent non-executive Directors in accordance with
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board has assessed their independence
and concluded that all the independent non-executive Directors are
independent within the definitions of the Listing Rules.
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Appointments, Re-election and Removal of
Directors

The Articles require that (i) every Director (including those appointed for a
specific term) shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years and (ii) the managing Director of the Company (if any) shall
whilst holding office as such be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years and shall be taken into account in determining the
number of Directors to retire by rotation in each year.

The Articles provide that at every annual general meeting of the Company,
and notwithstanding any contractual or other terms on which a Director
may be appointed or engaged, one-third of the Directors for the time being
(or if their number is not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not
less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation, provided that,
notwithstanding anything therein, every Director (including those appointed
for a specific term) shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years. The Board is of the view that such mechanism helps to
ensure orderly succession to the appointments to the Board and that
changes to its composition can be managed without undue disruption.

During the year ended 31 December 2009, the Company had entered into
letters of appointment with Mr. Chan Wai Dune, Mr. Lam Ming Yung and
Ms. Chen Chunhua, each an independent non-executive Director and Ms.
Tan Xuemei, a non-executive Director, for a term commencing on 22 May
2009 and ending on the date of the Company’s next annual general
meeting, as their respective then existing letters of appointment expired on
22 May 2009. On 1 August 2009, the Company entered into a letter of
appointment with Mr. Tan Jinsong for a term commencing on the date of
his appointment as an independent non-executive Director and ending on
the date of the Company’s next annual general meeting. All these letters of
appointment shall be terminable by either party upon one month’s written
notice to the other party or the payment to other party of a sum equal to
the relevant Director’'s monthly remuneration. On 1 January 2009, the letter
of appointment entered into between the Company and Mr. Cai Qiwu was
terminated upon the re-designation of Mr. Cai as executive Chairman.
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The Company has not established a nomination committee. The Board as
a whole is responsible for appointment of new Directors. According to the
Articles, the Board has the power from time to time and at any time to
appoint any person as a Director either to fill a causal vacancy or as an
addition to the Board, subject to re-election by the shareholders at the next
annual general meeting. Consideration would be taken, among other
things, to the nominee’s qualifications, experience and ability relevant to the
requirements of the Company’s business. It is believed that the Board
collectively is able to identify and select suitable candidates to be appointed
to the Board and ensure the Board has a balanced composition of skills
and experience appropriate for the requirements of the business of the
Company.

The Board has examined and gave advice on the employment terms of
senior management for the year ended 31 December 2009. The Board has
also reviewed and assessed the independence of independent non-
executive Directors.

Responsibilities of Directors

To ensure that every newly appointed Director has a proper understanding
of the operations and business of the Group and that he/she is fully aware
of his/her responsibilities as a Director of the Company, each of the newly
appointed Director is given a comprehensive orientation package
containing the information with regard to the duties and responsibilities of
Directors under the Listing Rules, related ordinances and relevant
regulatory requirements and the business and corporate governance
policies of the Company. Updates will also be given to all Directors when
necessary to keep them abreast of the latest changes and development in
legal, regulatory and corporate governance requirements to facilitate the
discharge of their responsibilities.

The non-executive Directors (including the independent non-executive
Directors) are active in participating in Board meetings to bring an
independent judgement on issues of strategy, policy, performance,
accountability, resources, key appointments and standards of conduct.
They will take lead where potential conflicts of interests of other Directors
arise. They serve as members of various Board committees and will
scrutinize the performance of the Group in achieving agreed corporate
goals and objectives and monitor the reporting of performance.
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Supply of and Access to Information

In respect of regular Board meetings, an agenda and accompanying Board
papers are sent in full to all Directors at least three days before the date of
a Board or Board committee meeting.

Management has an obligation to supply the Board and the Board
committees with adequate information in a timely manner to enable
members of the Board and the Board committees to make informed
decisions. Where any Director requires more information than is volunteered
by management, each Director may contact senior management through
individual and independent channel to make further enquires if necessary
and such enquiries will be responded to by management within a
reasonable time with sufficient details. Furthermore, Board papers and
minutes are available for inspection by Directors and Board committee
members.

Board Committees

The Board has established three Board committees with defined scope of
duties in written form. These Board committees are the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee and the Executive Committee.

The written terms of reference of each of the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Executive Committee are available on
the Company’s website http://www.welling.com.cn.

Remuneration Committee

The Company has established its remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) in September 2005. Majority of the members
of the Remuneration Committee are independent non-executive Directors.

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises three independent non-
executive Directors, namely, Ms. Chen Chunhua (chairman), Mr. Tan
Jinsong and Mr. Lam Ming Yung and two executive Directors, namely Mr.
Cai Qiwu and Mr. Zheng Weikang.

On 31 July 2009, Mr. Chan Wai Dune ceased to be a member of the
Remuneration Committee following his resignation as an independent non-
executive Director of the Company. Mr. Tan Jinsong was appointed as a
member of the Remuneration Committee in replacement of Mr. Chan with
effect from 1 August 2009.
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The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include the followings: HWEEer T ERKEEIE

0] to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy (i) MARBEENSMNEEAS 2 EEBHH
and structure for all remuneration of Directors and senior BENMRBIRETHEGTMBERER T

management and on the establishment of a formal and transparent

procedure for developing policy on such remuneration; and

(ii) to determine the remuneration packages of all executive Directors (i)

and senior management and make recommendations to the Board

the remuneration of non-executive Directors.

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the year ended 31 H=ZE

December 2009, members participated the meeting either in person or £ 8 &

through electronic means of communication. The attendance record of A& &3
B

each member at the Remuneration Committee meeting is set out as [ #r

follows:

RMABERAEZEF MEESRLER
BRR
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t

“EEAFFT A= —HIEEE - FHB

CERT-REZ ZBEERBURT A

ArA2EZEHE - RZEEKED
ZEgEMZTHENOT

Number of meetings
attended/held during
the tenure of the
respective committee

members

EEEEREN

R R RE

EZEEEHER

Members of the Remuneration Committee FMESERE EEHRE BTSRRI

Ms. Chen Chunhua (chairman) BRELE LT (FE) 11
Mr. Tan Jinsong (appointed as a member EYMEE(RZZEZENF

on 1 August 2009) NA—BEZITAEKE) 1M

Mr. Lam Ming Yung WEAE A 11

Mr. Cai Qiwu EHRLE 11

Mr. Zheng Weikang 81 B T A 11

Mr. Chan Wai Dune (ceased to be a member BRugimEE(R_ZEZENF N/A

on 31 July 2009) TtA=+—HBEEKE) TE A

During the year ended 31 December 2009, the Remuneration Committee ~ #l &
%8

had performed the following works:

@i reviewed and approved the remuneration packages of executive (i)

Directors (except the Chairman) and senior management after

consultations with the Chairman;
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(ii) reviewed and approved the remuneration packages of the Chairman
in a committee meeting at which the Chairman abstained from voting
in respect of the resolutions approving his own remuneration
packages; and

(iii) reviewed and made recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration and terms of appointment of non-executive Directors
(including independent non-executive Directors).

The Company’s remuneration policy for the Directors and senior
management are set on the basis that the remuneration level of the
Directors and senior management will be linked with their responsibilities
and their contributions to the achievement of corporate performance target
of the Company as resolved by the Board from time to time. For the
purpose of determining the level of remuneration of Directors and senior
management, appraisal of the work performance of Directors and senior
management had been conducted during the year ended 31 December
2009. Such work performance of Directors and senior management was
judged by the extent to which the Company’s budget target was met and
the financial performance of the Company in terms of sales revenue and
net profits as disclosed in the audited financial statements was achieved.
No Director is involved in deciding his/her own remuneration.

Details of the Directors’ emoluments for the year ended 31 December 2009
are set out in Note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Remuneration Committee is provided with sufficient resources,
including the advice of professional firms, to discharge its duties, if
necessary.

Audit Committee

The Company has established its audit committee (the “Audit Committee”)
in August 1999. All members of the Audit Committee are independent non-
executive Directors, one of whom has possessed professional qualifications
and accounting and financial management related expertise.

The Audit Committee currently comprises all three independent non-
executive Directors, namely, Mr. Tan Jinsong (chairman), Mr. Lam Ming
Yung and Ms. Chen Chunhua.

On 31 July 2009, Mr. Chan Wai Dune ceased to be the chairman of the
Audit Committee following his resignation as an independent non-executive
Director of the Company. Mr. Tan Jinsong was appointed as the chairman
of the Audit Committee in replacement of Mr. Chan with effect from 1
August 2009.
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The Audit Committee is responsible for, among others, monitoring the
integrity of the financial statements of the Group, reviewing the
effectiveness of the systems of internal controls and risk management of
the Group, reviewing the effectiveness of the Group’s internal audit function
in the context of the Group’s overall risk management system, reviewing
the external auditor’s independence and objectivity and the effectiveness of
the audit process and advising on the appointment of external auditor.

The Audit Committee held three meetings during the year ended 31
December 2009, members participated these meetings either in person or
through electronic means of communication. The attendance record of
each member at the Audit Committee meetings is set out as follows:
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Number of meetings
attended/held during
the tenure of the
respective committee

members

SZEEEHER

EEHEHERE

EEEEHER

Members of Audit Committee EREEERE EEHERTERRE
Mr. Tan Jinsong (chairman) EBYMEE(FE)

(appointed as the chairman on 1 August 2009) RZZEZENFNA—BEZETAERE) 2/2
Mr. Lam Ming Yung MEAE LA 3/3
Ms. Chen Chunhua PREE T 3/3
Mr. Chan Wai Dune R 4 i 5 A

(ceased to be the chairman on 31 July 2009) (RZBEAFE+A=+—BBELE) 1/1

Minutes of Audit Committee meetings are kept by the Company Secretary
who also serves as secretary of the Audit Committee. Draft and final
versions of the minutes of Audit Committee meetings are sent to all
members of the Committee for their comments and records respectively, in
both cases generally within 14 days after the meeting.

During the year ended 31 December 2009, the Audit Committee had
performed the following works:

(i) reviewed the Company’s 2008 annual report and 2009 interim
report;

(ii) reviewed and advised on the terms of engagement and other
matters relating to the external auditor;
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(iii) reviewed the effectiveness of the system of internal controls and risk
management of the Group;

(iv)  reviewed the Group’s connected and continuing connected
transactions entered during the Year;

v) reviewed and monitored the external auditor’s independence and
the non-audit services provided by the external auditor; and

(v)  advised on significant events of the Company and highlighted the
related risks to the management.

The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources to discharge its
duties.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Group’s 2009 consolidated financial
statements, including the accounting principles and policies adopted by the
Group, in conjunction with the Company’s external auditor and
recommended to the Board for approval of the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2009. The annual report of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2009 has been reviewed by the
Audit Committee.

The Board agreed with the Audit Committee’s proposal for the re-
appointment of Messrs. PricewaterhouseCoopers as the Company’s
external auditor for the year 2010. The recommendation will be put forward
for shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2009, the remuneration paid to the
Company’s external Hong Kong auditor, Messrs. PricewaterhouseCoopers,
is set out as follows:

EXELBRE (&)

(i) A AEEAEEREREIE RS K
Lo

vy BHARERAFEMILZBERZR
FEBERS

v) B RESRIMNSEEEN 2B REMRE
HZIERBRTE -

V) BMARBZEAFRRELER AWEE
BELAEBRR-

ERZEQRRHEEHERNBITRE -

ERZEECHAANRAINERBMERN RIS
Bz _ZTNFHREVBRER  BEAEERK
RzastRAEBE THEEFSES  AibE
HE-_ZZNF+RA=+—-BULFEZHESE
BBHER - BREZEEGCEHNARABE_Z
EAF+_A=1T—"RHUEFEZFR-

EFEEREERZEERBENZEERRAK
BEAMEEAARRANR _E—EF2HNE
BB - ZBBENARF 2 EERRESF K
GLREERRIAE -

BE_FTTNF+_A=+T—HLEE AAX
AR HNE B AZ BT A Fo Rl oK B & A ED E A A
S zMEe#IWT

Fee paid/payable
Bft &R
HK$’000
BT T
Audit services and review of continuing connected REBRGSLEHNSERESS 2,258
transactions
Executive Committee THEEE

The Executive Committee comprises all executive Directors of the Board
from time to time. Under its term of reference, the Executive Committee
shall be responsible for determination on the matters relating to the Group’s
day-to-day operations and administration.
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Directors’ and Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledged their responsibility for the preparation of the
financial statements of the Company which give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Group on a going concern basis in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

The statements of the Directors and the Auditor of the Company about
their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the Company
are set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 50 to 51 of this
annual report.

Internal Controls

The Board is responsible for maintaining a sound and effective system of
internal controls in the Company and reviewing its effectiveness through
the Audit Committee. The internal control system is designed to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material misstatement,
fraud or loss and to manage, but not to eliminate, risks of failure in
achieving the Company’s objective.

The internal control system, which includes a defined management
structure with specified limits of authority, is designed to (a) help the
achievement of business objectives, and safeguard the Company’s assets;
(b) ensure proper maintenance of accounting records; and (c) ensure
compliance with relevant legislation and regulations.

Management and internal audit department regularly review the Group’s
internal control system which covers financial, operational and compliance
controls as well as risk management functions to ensure that it remains
efficient and effective.

The Company has a full set of Internal Control System Manual which was
approved by the Board. This Manual contains a comprehensive overview
and description of the objectives, content, methods and duties of the
internal control system, and facilitates the ongoing examination and
evaluation of the Company’s compliance with existing rules and regulations
and of the effectiveness of internal controls. During the year ended 31
December 2009 and up to the date of this annual report, the Company
consistently applied the full set of Manual which covers the control of high-
risk areas of operations, suppliers, sales, finance and personnel
management. The Board has, through the Audit Committee, carried out
ongoing examination and monitoring of the Group’s internal control system.
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During the Year, the Group further streamlined some of the internal control
processes of certain divisions of the Group after taking into account the
recommendations and advices from independent professional consultant
as a result of the internal control review conducted last year to further
enhance and improve the internal control system of the Group.

The Board has reviewed and is satisfied with the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control system and believes that, such system is sufficient
in providing reasonable assurances that the Group’s assets are
safeguarded against loss from unauthorized use or disposition, transactions
are properly authorized and proper accounting records are maintained.

Communication with Shareholders

The Board believes that general meeting can provide an open forum for
communication between the Board and the shareholders of the Company.
Sufficient notice for general meetings will be given to the shareholders
pursuant to the Articles and the requirements of the Listing Rules.
Shareholders are encouraged to attend the general meetings of the
Company. The Chairman of the Board and other Directors being members
of Audit Committee or Remuneration Committee will be available at annual
general meeting to answer questions raised by shareholders. Members of
the independent board committee will be available to answer questions at
general meeting to approve connected transaction which is subject to
independent shareholders’ approval. To facilitate enforcement of
shareholders’ rights, substantially different issues at general meetings are
dealt with under separate resolutions.

Annual and interim reports and any significant events of the Company fall
to be disclosed in accordance with the disclosure requirements under the
Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements will be published
in a timely manner through the Company’s website so as to safeguard the
shareholders’ rights of information.

The Company’s website at www.welling.com.cn provides timely and
updated information on investor relations, corporate governance and other
latest news of the Company to enable shareholders and investors to have
timely access to information about the Group.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Executive Directors

Mr. CAIl Qiwu, aged 46, was appointed as a non-executive Director and
the Chairman of the Company on 31 March 2008 and re-designated as
executive Director and the Chairman on 1 January 2009. Mr. Cai is a
member of the Remuneration Committee and the Executive Committee of
the Company. He joined the Midea Group in 1992 and has held various
senior management positions in the Midea Group. He has considerable
experience in strategic management, risk management and research and
development activities. Mr. Cai is the chief executive officer of Midea
Mechanical and Electronic Device Group, an operational department within
Midea Group Co., Ltd. (“Midea”). He was a director of GD Midea Holding
Co., Ltd. (“GD Midea”), a company controlled by Midea and the shares of
which are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange. He is also a director of
certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Cai holds a Master of Technology
Mechanical Manufacturing Degree from the Huazhong University of Science
and Technology.

Mr. JIANG Deqing, aged 40, was appointed as an executive director and
the Chief Executive Officer of the Company on 31 August 2008. Mr. Jiang
is @ member of the Executive Committee of the Company. He joined the
Group in May 1995. He has been the General Manager of washing motor
division of the Group since January 2005 and responsible for overall
management of washing motor division. He has held various senior
management positions in the Group and has over 13 years of experience in
the washing motor industry and years of managerial experience. Mr. Jiang
serves as a vice-chairman in certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Jiang
holds a Bachelor Degree in Business Administration (Industrial Trade) from
Chongqing University.

Mr. QU Fei, aged 36, was appointed as an executive director and the
Chief Operating Officer of the Company on 31 March 2008. Mr. Qu is a
member of the Executive Committee of the Company. He joined the Midea
Group in 1998. He has held various senior management positions in the
Group and has considerable experience in operations and strategic
management, information technology, and purchasing activities. Mr. Qu is
also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Qu holds a
Bachelor Degree in Economics from Zhongnan University of Finance and
Economics.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Mr. GAO Fazhong, aged 41, was appointed as an executive director and
the Chief Financial Officer of the Company on 31 March 2008. Mr. Gao is a
member of the Executive Committee of the Company. He joined the Midea
Group in 1994. He has held various senior management positions in the
Midea Group and has considerable experience in financial management.
Mr. Gao is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Gao
holds a Bachelor Degree in Economics from the Beijing Technology and
Business University. He is an accountant accredited by the PRC Ministry of
Finance.

Ms. YUAN Liqun, aged 40, was appointed as a non-executive Director of
the Company on 17 November 2004 and re-designated as an executive
Director of the Company on 4 January 2007. Ms. Yuan is a member of the
Executive Committee of the Company. She joined the Midea Group in
1992. She has held various senior management positions in the Midea
Group and has considerable experience in finance, audit and overall
management. Ms. Yuan is a director and vice-president of Midea and the
chief financial officer of Midea Group. She is a director of GD Midea. She
previously was a supervisor of GD Midea. She is also a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. Ms. Yuan holds a Master of International
Management Degree from The Australian National University.

Mr. LI Jianwei, aged 43, was appointed as a non-executive director of the
Company on 17 November 2004 and re-designated as an executive
director of the Company on 14 June 2005. Mr. Li is a member of the
Executive Committee of the Company. He joined the Midea Group in 1994
and has held various senior management positions in the Midea Group. Mr.
Li has considerable experience in strategic development activities. Mr. Li is
a director and vice president of Midea and the chief strategic development
officer of Midea Group. He is also a director of GD Midea. He is also a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Li holds a Master of
Business Administration Degree from Fudan University.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Mr. ZHENG Weikang, aged 41, was appointed as an executive director
and the Chief Director of the International Offices of the Company on 31
March 2008. Mr. Zheng is a member of the Remuneration Committee and
the Executive Committee of the Company. He joined the Midea Group in
1986. He has held various senior management positions in the Midea
Group and has considerable experience in financial and overall
management. Mr. Zheng is currently a director of Midea International Corp.
Co., Ltd and certain non-listed subsidiaries of the Midea Group. He is also
a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Zheng holds a Master
of International Management Degree from The Australian National
University.

Non-executive Director

Ms. TAN Xuemei, aged 41, was appointed as a non-executive director of
the Company on 17 December 2008. Ms. Tan is the deputy general
manager of Guangzhou Baiyun Agriculture Industry & Commerce
Corporation. Ms. Tan has over 20 years of experience in corporate
accounting and financial management. Ms. Tan graduated from the
University of Broadcasting Television of Guangdong with professional
qualification in accountancy.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. TAN Jinsong, aged 44, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director, the chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of
the Remuneration Committee of the Company on 1 August 2009. Mr. Tan
is a non-practicing member of the Guangdong Provincial Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. He was approved as a PRC registered
accountant in June 1995 and has become a non-practicing member of the
Guangdong Provincial Institute of Certified Public Accountants since
January 2003. He possesses over 24 years of experience in the profession
of accounting and financial management. Mr. Tan is currently a professor
of the School of Management of the Sun Yat-sen University and was the
Head of Department of the Faculty of Accountancy and the Vice Dean of
the School of Management of the Sun Yat-sen University.

Mr. Tan is an independent director of Sundiro Holding Co., Ltd. and Yihua
Real Estate Co., Ltd. (both companies are listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange) and Cosco Shipping Co., Ltd (a company listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange). He was an independent director of a number of PRC
listed companies, including Huafa Industrial Share Co., Ltd. and
Guangdong Guanhao High-Tech Co., Ltd., both companies are listed on
the Shanghai Stock Exchange, and GD Midea Holding Co., Ltd. and
Guangdong Ronsen Super Mirco-Wire Co., Ltd., both companies are listed
on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Mr. LAM Ming Yung, aged 46, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company on 1 December 1999. Mr. Lam is a
member of the Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee of the
Company. He graduated from the School of Law of Shanghai Eastern
Chinese College of Politics and Jurisprudence with a Bachelor of Law
Degree in 1986. Mr. Lam started practicing law in 1987 in the province of
Fujian in the PRC, and moved to Hong Kong in mid-1993. He was
registered as a foreign lawyer with The Law Society of Hong Kong in July
1995, and is now practicing as Chief PRC Consultant, Corporate Finance,
and Foreign Legal Consultant (PRC), in the Hong Kong office of Sidley
Austin LLP. Mr. Lam is also currently an independent non-executive director
of China Agrotech Holdings Limited (listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong) and China Lifestyle Food & Beverages Group Limited (listed on the
Stock Exchange of Singapore) and a non-executive director of China Mining
Resources Group Limited (listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong).

Ms. CHEN Chunhua, aged 46, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company on 22 December 2004. Ms. Chen is the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit
Committee of the Company. Ms. Chen holds a Postdoctorate Degree in
Enterprise Management from Nanjing University. She was a professor, tutor
of doctoral candidates and Vice Dean of the Faculty of Economic and
Trade in the School of Economics and Commerce of South China
University of Technology. She was a visiting professor for the Asia-Pacific
EMBA Program of The National University of Singapore and is a part-time
professor of Nanjing University. Ms. Chen’s research specialty was
enterprise management, particularly enterprise organisation and operational
management. Ms. Chen was a president and a director of Shandong Liuhe
Company Limited and has considerable experience in enterprise
operational management. Ms. Chen is presently an independent director of
China Merchants Fund Management Co. Ltd.

Senior Management

Mr. ZHOU Xiangyang, aged 37, joined the Group in July 1996. Mr. Zhou
is the general manager of the micro motors division of the Group. He has
held various senior management positions in the Group and has
considerable experience in sales, marketing and management of the
business operations of the Group. Mr. Zhou holds a Bachelor Degree in
Electrical Engineering from Harbin Institute of Technology.

Mr. ZENG Yong, aged 38, joined the Group in June 1999. Mr. Zeng is the
general manager of the electronic and electric component division of the
Group. He has held various senior management positions in the Group and
has considerable experience in sales, marketing and management of the
business operations of the Group. Mr. Zeng holds a Bachelor Degree in
Electrical Engineering from Zhejiang University.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors hereby present their report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Company and the Group for the year ended 31
December 2009.

Principal Activities and Geographical Analysis
of Operations

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal
activities of the subsidiaries are set out in Note 10 to the consolidated
financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the Year by business and
geographical segments is set out in Note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated income
statement on pages 55 to 56.

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HKO.5 cent
per share for the Year to the shareholders of the Company whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company on 18 May 2010.
Subject to the approval from shareholders of the Company at the Annual
General Meeting to be held on 18 May 2010, the proposed final dividend
will be paid on 3 June 2010.

Reserves

Details of movements in reserves of the Company and the Group during
the Year are set out in Note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the Company
and the Group during the Year are set out in Note 7 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Share Capital

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the Year
are set out in Note 18(a) to the consolidated financial statements.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Subsequent Event

On 29 March 2010, Midea Holding (Cayman Islands) Limited (“Midea
(Cayman lIslands)”), the controlling shareholder of the Company (as defined
under the Listing Rules), entered into a placing agreement with the
Company and the placing agent, pursuant to which Midea (Cayman
Islands) agreed to place, through the placing agent, 1,200,000,000 existing
shares of the Company owned by Midea (Cayman Islands) to not less than
six independent placees at the placing price of HK$0.42 per share (the
“Placing”).

On 29 March 2010, Midea (Cayman Islands) entered into a subscription
agreement with the Company, pursuant to which Midea (Cayman Islands)
agreed to subscribe for 600,000,000 new shares of the Company (the
“Subscription Shares”) at the subscription price of HK$0.42 per share
subject to the completion of the Placing and the Listing Committee of the
Stock Exchange granting approval for the listing of, and permission to deal
in, the Subscription Shares (the “Subscription”).

As the date of this report, the transactions relating to the Placing and the
Subscription have not been completed. Details of the Placing and the
Subscription are disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 29
March 2010.

Distributable Reserves

As at 31 December 2009, the Company had distributable reserves
amounting to HK$104,785,000 (2008: HK$106,094,000).

Five-year Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years, restated and reclassified as appropriate, is set
out on page 156. This summary does not form part of the audited
consolidated financial statements.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Listed
Securities

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the Year. Neither
the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased or sold any of the
Company’s shares during the Year.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Share Option Scheme

Details of the share option scheme of the Company adopted on 27 June
2003 (the “Share Option Scheme”) are disclosed in Note 18(b) to the
consolidated financial statements.

Directors

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this annual report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. CAIl Qiwu (Chairman)

Mr. JIANG Deqing (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. QU Fei

Mr. GAO Fazhong

Ms. YUAN Ligun

Mr. LI Jianwei

Mr. ZHENG Weikang

Non-executive Director

Ms. TAN Xuemei

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. TAN Jinsong (appointed on 1 August 2009)
Mr. LAM Ming Yung
Ms. CHEN Chunhua
Mr. CHAN Wai Dune (resigned on 31 July 2009)

In accordance with article 87 of the Company’s articles of association, Mr.
Tan Jinsong will retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting and,
being eligible, will offer himself for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

In accordance with article 91 of the Company’s articles of association, Mr.
Cai Qiwu, Mr. Qu Fei, Ms. Yuan Liqun and Mr. Zheng Weikang will retire at
the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Directors’ Service Contracts

On 22 May 2009, the Company entered into the letters of appointment with
the non-executive Director, Ms. Tan Xuemei and each of the then three
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Chan Wai Dune, Mr.
Lam Ming Yung and Ms. Chen Chunhua for a term commencing on 22
May 2009 and ending on the date of the Company’s next annual general
meeting as their respective letters of appointment had expired on 22 May
2009.

On 1 August 2009, the Company entered into a letter of appointment with
Mr. Tan Jinsong for a term commencing on his appointment as an
independent non-executive Director on 1 August 2009 and ending on the
date of the Company’s next annual general meeting.

The above-mentioned letters of appointment provide that the remuneration
of the Directors shall be determined in accordance with the remuneration
policy as approved by the Board from time to time. Such letters of
appointment are terminable by either party upon one month’s written notice
to the other party or the payment to the other party of a sum equal to the
relevant Director’s monthly remuneration. These letters of appointment are
exempt from the shareholders’ approval requirement under Rule 13.68 of
the Listing Rules.

On 1 January 2009, the letter of appointment entered into between the
Company and Mr. Cai Qiwu was terminated upon the re-designation of Mr.
Cai as executive Chairman of the Company became effective.

On 31 July 2009, the letter of appointment entered into between the
Company and Mr. Chan Wai Dune was terminated upon his resignation as
an independent non-executive Director of the Company.

Save as disclosed herein, none of the Directors proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without the payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors

The Company had received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation of his/her independence and considered
that each of the independent non-executive Directors to be independent
based on the guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Remuneration Policy

The remuneration policy of the employees of the Group is set by the
Group’s Human Resources Department based on the merit, qualifications
and competence of employees.

The remuneration of all executive Directors of the Company are decided by
the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Group’s operating
results, individual performance of the relevant Directors and comparable
market statistics. No Director will be involved in deciding his/her own

remuneration.

The Company has adopted the Share Option Scheme for the purpose of
providing incentives to the Directors and eligible employees.

Pension Schemes

Details of the pension schemes set up by the Group are set out in Note 27
to the consolidated financial statements.

Directors’ Interests In Contracts

Save as disclosed in Note 37 to the consolidated financial statements, no
contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company, its fellow subsidiaries or its holding company was a party and in
which a Director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year or at any time during the
Year.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management

Brief biographical details of the Directors and Senior Management of the
Company are set out on pages 30 to 33.

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests in
Equity or Debt Securities

As at 31 December 2009, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQO”),
Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong Kong), as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO or which have to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
any such Director or chief executive is taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO) and the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) contained in the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), were

as follows:
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued) EFETHRE(E

Interests in share options of the Company (long position) REABIZERIEERS (IF8)

During the Year, the movement of the share options granted to the RAEE REERETIAFR FES 2 BRE

Directors under the Share Option Scheme were as follows: 2T
Closing price
Options held Options Options Options Exercise immediately
at granted exercised held at price before
Date of 1 January during during 31 December  per option the date
Name grant 2009 the year the year 2009 Exercisable period of grant
RZBTRE RZBERE
—-A-B REFEA RIEEER +-A=+-H SHERE REEHAH
24 RHBH BAEZEEE RHZBRE TEZBRE SF2BERE fTEfE ATRAR ARBEHE
HKS$ HKS$
B B
Directors £
Mr. Cai Qiwu BHREE 09/01/2009 - 68,000,000 - 68,000,000 0.157 01/04/2010- 0.151
31/03/2017 (Note)
(F&k)
Mr. Jiang Deging EEERE 09/01/2009 - 36,000,000 - 36,000,000 0.157 01/04/2010- 0.151
31/03/2017 (Note)
(Bi&E)
Mr. Qu Fei EREE 09/01/2009 - 22,000,000 - 22,000,000 0.157 01/04/2010- 0.151
31/03/2017 (Note)
k)
Mr. Gao Fazhong BEBLE 09/01/2009 - 25,000,000 - 25,000,000 0.157 01/04/2010- 0.151
31/03/2017 (Note)
(BizE)
Ms. Tan Xuemei BEBLL 09/01/2009 - 5,000,000 - 5,000,000 0.157 01/04/2010- 0.151
31/03/2017 (Note)
(B &E)
Mr. Chan Wai Dune WR 4 5 30/07/2007 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000 0.78 30/07/2007 0.77
(resigned on (R=ZTETNE 29/07/2017
31 July 2009) +tA=+—B#E) 09/01/2009 - 5,000,000 - 5,000,000 0.157 1/04/2010- 0.151
31/03/2017 (Note)
(B3E)
Mr. Lam Ming Yung b 30/07/2007 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000 0.78 30/07/2007- 0.77
29/07/2017
09/01/2009 - 5,000,000 - 5,000,000 0.157 01/04/2010- 0.151
31/03/2017 (Note)
(BifzE)
Ms. Chen Chunhua BREELT 30/07/2007 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000 0.78 30/07/2007- 0.77
29/07/2017
09/01/2009 - 5,000,000 - 5,000,000 0.157 01/04/2010- 0.151

31/03/2017 (Note)
(PE)
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Notes:

The consideration for each of the grants above was HK$1. The options granted on 9
January 2009 shall be exercisable during the option period subject to a vesting scale in
four tranches of 25% each and the achievement of the performance target of the net profit

attributable to the owners of the Company of the relevant period as set out below:

1. the first 26% of the options granted to each grantee shall be exercisable within
seven years after 31 March 2010 provided that the net profit attributable to the
owners of the Company for the financial year ended 31 December 2009 as
disclosed in the final results announcement of the Company is not less than 100%
of the net profit attributable to the owners of the Company for the financial year
ended 31 December 2008 (excluding the results from discontinued business) (“Net

Profit of 2008”);

2. the second 25% of the options granted to each grantee shall be exercisable within
six years after 31 March 2011 provided that the net profit attributable to the
owners of the Company for the financial year ended 31 December 2010 as
disclosed in the final results announcement of the Company is not less than 150%

of the Net Profit of 2008;

3. the third 256% of the options granted to each grantee shall be exercisable within
five years after 31 March 2012 provided that the net profit attributable to the
owners of the Company for the financial year ended 31 December 2011 as
disclosed in the final results announcement of the Company is not less than 200%
of the Net Profit of 2008; and

4. the remaining 25% of the options granted to each grantee shall be exercisable
within four years after 31 March 2013 provided that the net profit attributable to
the owners of the Company for the financial year ended 31 December 2012 as
disclosed in the final results announcement of the Company is not less than 280%
of the Net Profit of 2008.

Details of the Share Option Scheme are disclosed in Note 18(b) to the
consolidated financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year ended 31 December
2009 was the Company, its subsidiaries, its associated corporations (within
the meaning of the SFO), its fellow subsidiaries or its holding company, a
party to any arrangements to enable the Directors or the chief executive of
the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of the shares
in, or debentures of, the Company or its associated corporation (within the
meaning of the SFO), or had exercised any such right during the Year.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Other than those interests disclosed above, as at 31 December 2009, none
of the Directors and the chief executive of the Company (including their
spouses or children under the age of 18 years old) had any interests or
short positions in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of the SFO)
which is required to be recorded and kept in the register in accordance
with section 352 of the SFO, or notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Directors’ Interest in Competing Businesses

As at 31 December 2009, none of the Directors was interested in any
business apart from the business of the Group, which competes or is likely
to compete, either directly or indirectly, with that of the Group.

BREXHBEBE ERIN RZFFAF+ A
=t—H BEEREARARSTHRAEB (BRER
EZRBETNABATFROLEBREEARA K
HEBZE(EERBARBAEED) 2B M -
HEBRDHES 2 EAEESORE M BRER
H LB RO FB2MFLEARFERELMA -
FARBEEST B MG A DA R BEZF -

EENHERG2HES

BE_TTANF+_A=+T—"RLFE HE
EERAKEEEBUAN 2 EMEHHHEAR LR
SEEBE KRB TR S 2 o

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests

As at 31 December 2009, the following persons, other than a Director or 1R 1% 75 % & Bl & (& 5| 5533615 B 15
chief executive of the Company, had an interest or short position inthe 'R R_ZBEHANF+_A=+—8H
shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register HBH AR T HETHAERBRIN R

required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO:

Name of shareholder

BRREE EE

FERRER

BEZERMAE
P NIIAE(E
ARAZ B
NEBEBROTEERDIOXR

Approximate
Number of  percentage of
shares held shareholding

FERGHE FRBOFSE

Midea Holding (Cayman Islands) Limited
(“Midea (Cayman lIslands)”) (Note 1)

Enpk(HERS)AR2A(EM(FAEHES)D(HE)

Midea Investment Holding (BVI) Limited
(“Midea Holding”) (Note 2)
ERERBV)ER QA (TR ZR]) (B 5E2)

Midea Group Co., Ltd. (“Midea”) (Note 3)
EMEEARQA (/M)

Foshan Shunde Tiantuo Investment Co., Ltd.
(“Shunde Tiantuo”) (Note 4)
BLUmIEERRAREER AR ([NEEXED ()

Mr. He Xiangjian (Note 5)
fa] = 2 4% 4 (BT 335)

Ms. Liang Fengchai (Note 6)
2Bl 2 + (B 5E6)

Long position 10,106,023,897 74.97%
7R
Long position 10,106,023,897 74.97%
T8
Long position 10,106,023,897 74.97%
HE
Long position 10,106,023,897 74.97%
58
Long position 10,106,023,897 74.97%
wa
Long position 10,106,023,897 74.97%

7R
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Notes:

1. These 10,106,023,897 shares of the Company were registered in the name of and

beneficially owned by Midea (Cayman Islands).

2. Midea Holding was deemed to be interested in the 10,106,023,897 shares of the
Company which Midea (Cayman Islands) was interested in by virtue of its holding

100% equity interest in Midea (Cayman lIslands).

3. Midea was deemed to be interested in the 10,106,023,897 shares of the Company
which Midea Holding was deemed to be interested in by virtue of its holding 100%
equity interest in Midea Holding.

4. The registered capital of Midea is owned as to 75% by Shunde Tiantuo.
Accordingly, Shunde Tiantuo was deemed to be interested in the 10,106,023,897
shares of the Company which Midea was deemed to be interested in by virtue of

its holding 75% equity interest in Midea.

5. The registered capital of Shunde Tiantuo is owned as to 90% by Mr. He Xiangjian.
Accordingly, Mr. He Xiangjian was deemed to be interested in the 10,106,023,897
shares of the Company which Shunde Tiantuo was deemed to be interested in by

virtue of his holding 90% equity interest in Shunde Tiantuo.

6. Ms. Liang Fengchai is the spouse of Mr. He Xiangjian and is therefore deemed to
be interested in the 10,106,023,897 shares of the Company in which Mr. He

Xiangjian was deemed to be interested.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2009, the Company is not
aware of any other person who has an interest or a short position in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company which was required to be
notified to the Company pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO and have been recorded in the register kept by the Company pursuant
to section 336 of the SFO.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into
or existed during the Year.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Major Customers and Suppliers

Sales to the Group’s five largest customers together accounted for 42.9%

of the

Group’s total sales during the Year. The five largest customers are

set out below:

11.0% from Foshan Shunde Midea Microwave Electrical Appliances
Manufacturing Co., Ltd. which is a company controlled by a
substantial shareholder of Midea.

9.1% from Guangdong Midea Refrigeration Appliances Co., Ltd. of
which a Director of the Company is director and it is controlled by
Midea.

7.2% from Guangdong Midea Group Wuhu Air-conditioning
Equipment Co., Ltd. of which a Director of the Company is director
and it is controlled by Midea.

6.2% from Hefei Rongshida Washing Equipment Manufacturing Co.,
Ltd. of which certain Directors of the Company are directors and it is
controlled by Midea.

The remaining largest customer accounted for 9.4% of the total
sales during the Year and none of the Directors, their associates or
any shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more
than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had an interest in the said
major customers.

Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers together accounted for

less than 30% of the Group’s total purchase during the Year.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Connected Transaction and Continuing
Connected Transactions

During the Year, the Group had the following connected and continuing
connected transactions:

Connected Transaction

On 23 April 2009, the Company through its wholly-owned subsidiary,
(“GD Welling”) entered
into a capital contribution agreement with Midea Group Co., Ltd. (“Midea”,

Guangdong Welling Motor Manufacturing Co., Ltd.,

the controlling shareholder of the Company and hence a connected person
of the Company) and GD Midea Holding Co., Ltd. (“‘GD Midea”, a company
in which Midea has a 42.49% interest) for the establishment of a finance
company in the name of Midea Group Finance Co., Ltd. (“Finance
55% by Midea and
40% by GD Midea. The initial registered capital of the Finance Company
would be RMB500 million which shall be contributed by each of GD
Welling, Midea and GD Midea in proportion to each of their shareholdings

Company”) to be owned as to 5% by the Company,

in the Finance Company. The Finance Company shall provide a range of
financial services as approved by the China Banking Regulatory
Commission (“CBRC”) to its members.

The Finance Company was granted approval for its establishment by the
CBRC on 2 July 2009. All the required documents in connection with the
application for commencement of business of the Finance Company have
been submitted to the relevant regulatory authorities.

Continuing Connected Transactions

(1)  On 22 February 2008, the Company entered into the framework
agreement with Midea (“Midea Framework Agreement”) which set
out the basis upon which members of the Group would sell products
to certain members of Midea Group as well as purchase raw
materials from or through members of Midea Group during the
period from 31 March 2008 to 31 December 2010.

The Midea Framework Agreement and the continuing connected
transactions contemplated thereunder were approved by
independent shareholders of the Company at an extraordinary
general meeting held on 18 March 2008.
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Sale of motors and electronic and electric components by members
of the Group to Midea Group for the year ended 31 December 2009
amounted to HK$2,504,855,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB2,207,276,000), which is within the 2009 annual cap of
RMB2,500,000,000 as set out in the Company’s announcement
dated 22 February 2008.

Purchase of semi-finished products, materials and spare parts by
members of the Group from Midea Group for the year ended 31
December 2009 amounted to HK$164,290,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB144,773,000), which is within the 2009 annual
cap of RMB310,000,000 as set out in the Company’s announcement
dated 22 February 2008.

On 17 April 2009, the Company entered into a logistic service
agreement (“Logistic Service Agreement”) with Wuhu Annto Logistics
Co., Ltd. (“Annto”, a subsidiary of Midea and therefore a connected
person of the Company) in respect of the provision of logistic
services by Annto or its subsidiaries to members of the Group during
the term of one year commencing on 1 January 2009. The annual
cap set for the service fees payable by the Group under the logistic
service agreement was RMB10,000,000. For the year ended 31
December 2009, the aggregate amount of service fee paid by the
Group to Annto and its subsidiaries amounted to HK$2,111,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB1,860,000).
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Details of the significant related party transactions entered into by certain
members of the Group during the year ended 31 December 2009 pursuant
to the agreements mentioned-above, which constituted connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, are disclosed in Note 37 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the continuing
connected transactions of the Group during the Year and confirmed that
the continuing connected transactions have been entered into:

—

) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

2 on normal commercial terms and in accordance with the pricing
policy of the Company;

(8) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing the
transactions; and

4) have not exceeded the relevant maximum amount capped in
accordance with the annual caps as set out in the relevant published

announcements.

In accordance with paragraph 14A.38 of the Listing Rules, the Board of
Directors engaged the auditor of the Company and perform certain factual
finding procedures on the above continuing connected transactions on a
sample basis in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Related Services
4400 “Engagements to Perform Agreed-upon Procedures Regarding
Financial Information” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor has reported their factual findings on the agreed
procedures to the Board of Directors and confirmed that for the year ended
31 December 2009, the continuing connected transactions of the Group:

—_
—

) have been approved by the Board;

2 are in accordance with the pricing policy of the Company;

©)) have been entered into in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing the transactions; and

4) have not exceeded the relevant annual caps.
The Company confirms that it has complied with the disclosure

requirements with respect to the transactions referred to the above in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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Non-competition Deed

On 22 February 2008, Midea entered into a non-competition deed in favour
of the Company (“Non-Competition Deed”) to undertake that Midea and
other members of Midea Group (except the Group) will not engage in any
business of the manufacturing and distribution of motors and electronic
and electric components for all electrical household appliances and any
business activities carried on or proposed to be carried on by the Group
which would directly or indirectly compete with the business of the Group.

In compliance with the requirement of the Non-Competition Deed, Midea
has submitted to the Company the annual declaration confirming that
Midea and its associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) have complied
with all the provisions of the Non-Competition Deed throughout the year
ended 31 December 2009 (“Declaration”). The independent non-executive
Directors have reviewed the Declaration and are satisfied with the
compliance by Midea and its associates with the provisions of the Non-
competition Deed and the enforcement of the Non-competition Deed
during the year ended 31 December 2009.

Compliance with the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors and the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices

Please refer to the Corporate Governance Report set out on pages 17 to
29 for the compliance with the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
the Directors and the Code on Corporate Goverance Practices.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of its Directors, the Directors confirmed that the
Company has maintained, during the Year, sufficient public float as required
under the Listing Rules.

FREERE

REZZEZNF A -+ B EFHUERRAER
XBmARTLABEFRE(THEFRIE]) - #E &
HoOENRENERZHMBKE RE (AEEK
I ERE—VEREERNETFEREMLZ

BUERDHEER UWREMAAEERKEEE
AEBEBRBETZIEBBRBRF 2 EME
R -

REATBEFREZRTE  ENERARFR
EFEEH BERXNOREBEAT(ERR L
MRAERBE_FTTAF+_A=1T—HL
FEAN-BETTIHRFRABE2HMARE(AH

BHED BUFNTESCEMNEHEEE A
MENREBMBATERNBE_ZTAFE+=
B=Z+—BULEFER—EBTITHEIREZR

E o RBITAHEERE-

BFEERTESTSzEEY
Al % £ 8 55 % 5P A

BEHETELFRHZIEE
E2HENEITHE

BRUDSSTES
E20E B

DIIP

RUABRHRE

REBEAHRARAHESHEHEEETAZZE
B EBEERIAARARARAFEA-—BEAERF LD
RAMBREZRARRTRE -




REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Auditor

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditor of the Group is to be proposed at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

On behalf of the Board
Welling Holding Limited
CAI Qiwu

Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 March 2010
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BIBME SR &

PRICEWATERHOUSE(COPERS

BERKESERI SR

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF WELLING HOLDING

LIMITED
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Welling Holding
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out
on pages 52 to 155, which comprise the consolidated and company
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2009, and the
consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and the
true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing, implementing
and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and the true and
fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying
appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with section 141 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
22nd Floor, Prince’s Building
Central, Hong Kong
Telephone (852) 2289 8888
Facsimile  (852) 2810 9888
www.pwchk.com
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)
BIBHERE (&)

wnE

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31
December 2009 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and
have been properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 29 March 2010
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

EEMBRRR

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2009
R=FEAE+=A=1—A

Note
k=3

ASSETS BE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Leasehold land and land use rights HELH R L HFE AR 6
Property, plant and equipment ME - BELRE 7
Investment properties "EME 8
Goodwill [k 9
Investments in associates ik NI 1N
Deferred income tax assets BEFRSHEE 23
Available-for-sale financial assets AHEESREE 12
Prepayment for investments in associates 78 1+ B & /A 18 & 2018 14
Prepayment for property, plant and ERYE BEMRERE

equipment 14
Current assets REBEE
Inventories rE 13
Trade and other receivables B 5 K H h 8 R 14
Due from related companies i dez) NGIE S| 37(c)
Derivative financial instruments PTESRIA 22
Pledged bank deposits DIRAEITER 16
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEED 17
Total assets HEE
EQUITY i
Capital and reserves attributable to AASEAAEGEREAR

owners of the Company s
Share capital % A< 18
Other reserves H 19
Accumulated losses 2558

Others Hh

Proposed final dividend BEAREHRKRE 32
Total equity HESEE

As at 31 December
B+=-A=+—H
2009
—EEAE
HK$’000
EBTT

124,496
699,543
22,408
206,966
21,856
28,393

3,816
1,107,478
669,192
1,241,138
1,248,138
25,708
49,081
257,478

3,490,735

4,598,213

1,347,931
272,043

(552,655)
67,397

1,134,716

2008
—ETNF
HK$’000
AT

127,436
571,345

22,410

7,887

82,463

22,392

833,933

243,888

929,579
1,074,328

61,020
217,124

2,525,939

3,359,872

1,347,931
227,921

(805,210)

770,642




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)

HEEMBRRER (&)

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2009
R=FEAE+=A=1—A

As at 31 December

®+=-—A=+—H
2009 2008
—EEAE —EENF
Note HK$’000 HK$’'000
B 7 BETT BT T
LIABILITIES Bf&
Non-current liabilities kRBHEE
Borrowings =R 20 160,000 60,000
Deferred income tax liabilities BEMBHARE 23 25,235 6,305
185,235 66,305
Current liabilities REAE
Trade and other payables B REAMEMNRK 21 2,598,798 1,705,350
Due to related companies XN ) S NCIE 37(c) 178,615 174,032
Derivative financial instruments PTESBITA 22 902 30,635
Current income tax liabilities BEmSHasE 30,845 1,300
Borrowings B 20 469,102 611,608
Provision for warranty EmRERE 24 - -
3,278,262 2,522,925
Total liabilities BaE 3,463,497 2,589,230
Total equity and liabilities BERERERER 4,598,213 3,359,872
Net current assets REEEFEHE 212,473 3,014
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRHAR 1,319,951 836,947

The notes on pages 62 to 155 are an integral part of these financial M H62E1568 2 Mt Rt Bz < — 2 H -

statements.

The financial statements on pages 52 to 155 were approved by the Board EZEFER_T-—TF=HA -+ N BHERE52
IS5 BHRE URREEFFEE -

of Directors on 29 March 2010 and were signed on its behalf.

Director Director
- -
CAIl Qiwu GAO Fazhong
gHEK il
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Bt %K R R

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2009
RZTEZENF+=ZA=+—H

As at 31 December

n+=-A=+—H
2009 2008
—EETAE —EENEF
Note HK$’°000 HK$’'000
B 5 BETT BT T
ASSETS &AE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BELERE 7 44 87
Investments in subsidiaries WERARIKE 10 4,862,049 4,517,215
4,862,093 4,517,302
Current assets RENEE
Prepayments and other receivables T8 A 3R R E i FE WK 14 1,335 1,346
Dividend receivable FE U AR B 15,000 350,000
Cash and cash equivalents HELBL2EEY 17 217 2,149
16,552 353,495
Total assets WEE 4,878,645 4,870,797
EQUITY i
Capital and reserves attributable to AAS#HH AEGERAE
owners of the Company Rt fE
Share capital A& A 18 1,347,931 1,347,931
Other reserves HAtb 1 19 3,423,894 3,414,179
Retained profits RE M E
Others Hib 37,388 106,094
Proposed final dividend EEARHRKRE 32 67,397 -
Total equity HEXSEE 4,876,610 4,868,204
LIABILITIES Bfg
Current liabilities REAE
Accruals and other payables TEIRE R R EAMEMRK 21 2,035 2,593
Total liabilities Wak 2,035 2,593
Total equity and liabilities ExRkBEEHE 4,878,645 4,870,797
Net current assets REEETHE 14,517 350,902
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRHAR 4,876,610 4,868,204

The notes on pages 62 to 155 are an integral part of these financial

statements.

The financial statements on pages 52 to 155 were approved by the Board

of Directors on 29 March 2010 and were signed on its behalf.

Director
BE
CAIl Qiwu
EHR

REC2EI15B Z MR MBHRRZ — 8D -

EZEN_E-ZF=ZA-TNLBEHERNES2
E5AZHBHR URREFSHEE -

Director

BFE
GAO Fazhong

EB3ER




CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

FEWRR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009

RE_TTAS+_B=f—RILEE

Note
g

Continuing operations: HEGCEERE:
Revenue U &= 5
Cost of goods sold HEE MR
Gross profit EF
Other gains/(losses) — net Hipas, (B18) — F58 25
Selling and marketing costs 4 B R T 35 HE B R R
Administrative expenses TERAX
Operating profit FEFE
Finance income & WA 28
Finance costs B & KA 28
Finance costs — net BERA — F58 28
Share of profits of associates [fp: 2= /NI P DI i
Profit before income tax MR EH S
Income tax expense Frisfim X 29
Profit for the year from continuing BEECEERZEENB

operations
Discontinued operations: CHRIEEEET:
Profit for the year from discontinued BRIEEEER 2 FEFE

operations 36

Profit for the year

FEFHE

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLLEE

2009
—EBThE
HK$’000
EETT

4,824,116
(4,124,667)
699,449
39,717
(101,739)
(200,507)

436,920

4,341
(23,035)

(18,694)
4,808

423,034

(69,259)

353,775

353,775

2008
—ETNF
HK$’000
AT

5,193,278
(4,655,951)
537,327
(80,362)
(91,383)
(144,299)

221,283

8,240
(37,109)

(28,869)

192,414

(28,810)

163,604

32,575

196,179
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT (Continued)
HeEWE=EER (&)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009
BE_ZTNF+-_A=+—HILEE

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLLEE

2009 2008
—TTAE ZET)N\F
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
B 5 EBETT BT T
Attributable to: RTFALHEL:
Owners of the Company VN/NSIEZ RSN 353,775 196,877
Minority interests DB R = = (698)

353,775 196,179

Earnings per share for profit from AACBEBEAEGSEEESER
continuing operations attributable FHzEREHN  LLEREMWN

to the owners of the Company, B &

expressed in HK cents per share
— basic — &K 31 1.21
— diluted — #E 31 1.21
Earnings per share for profit EATBBEABRENEZERE

attributable to the owners o LLEREREMSIR

of the Company, expressed in

HK cents per share
— basic — &K 31 1.46
— diluted — e 31 1.46

Details of proposed final dividend payable to owners of the Company are B A AR EA AZEZ KRB ZH B SR H
set out in Note 32. 132 °

The notes on pages 62 to 155 are an integral part of these financial W E62E155E v s AL ERER Y — 25 -
statements.




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FEEZEHBER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009
BE_ZTNF+-_A=+—HILEE

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income:

Currency translation differences

Hith2HEUA :
EREHER

Other comprehensive income
for the year, net of tax

NRBEEZEE
HitZEWA

Total comprehensive income
for the year

EEZEHRA

Attributable to:
— Owners of the Company
— Minority interest

PRICT IF
— RAFEBA
— BB

Total comprehensive income
for the year

FEEEZEKA

The notes on pages 62 to 155 are an integral part of these financial

statements.

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLLEE

2009 2008
—ETAEF —EENEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
EETT BETT

353,775 196,179

30 225

225

353,805 196,404
353,805 197,102
- (698)
353,805 196,404

ZHEREFTHERER 2 —#8D -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FEEZB2HR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009
HE_ZZNF+-_A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

FATWEANES
Share Other  Accumulated Minority Total
capital  reserves losses Total interests equity
DR
BEx  HibhE RitiE &t #E L8
Note HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000

B BETR BT AMTR BETR BETR ARTR

Balance at 1 January 2008 R-ZBBN\E

—RA—B2z&8 1,347,931 (152,003) (978,602) 217,326 55,930 273,256

Comprehensive income: EXONE
Profit/(loss) for the year EEHNE/(BE) - - 196,877 196,877 (698) 196,179
Other comprehensive income: HiM2mBA :
Currency translation differences ~ EMEH =& — 225 - 225 — 225
Total comprehensive income 2 EI\ @3 — 225 196,877 197,102 (698) 196,404
Transaction with owners: HEAANETRS:
Transfer to statutory reserves BETLTRE - 283,485 (28,485) - — -
Disposal of the Disposed Group ~ HE&EBE HE&EE
— Disposal of subsidiaries — HEWBAR 36(a) - (48,137) - 48,137)  (55,232)  (103,369)
— Deemed contribution arising - BERSGELEZ

from the Transaction R IEE R 36(a) — 404,351 — 404,351 — 404,351

Total transaction with owners HEZEFAETZ
RHEE — 379,699 (23,485) 356,214 (55,232) 300,982

Balance at 31 December 2008 WR=-ZTZT/NE

+-BA=+-H
& 1 1,347,931 227,921 (805,210) 770,642 — 770,642
Representing: BER:
2008 proposed final —EE N\FEHEKRE
dividend [i&s -
Others Hith (805,210)
Accumulated losses at RZEZENE+=A
31 December 2008 =+—HZZ&%

BB (805,210)




| REZRRERA T

SETAEEH

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (Continued)
REEREDR (K)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009

BHE-_ZTAFE+_A=+—BItFE
Balance at 1 January 2009 R-BEAE
—B—B2&8H%
Comprehensive income: ZEKA
Profit for the year FEFE
Other comprehensive income: HihZ2HEBA :
Currency translation differences ~ EM¥ER =&
Total comprehensive income 2 E i \ 148
Transaction with owners: HEFNETRS
Transfer to statutory reserves BESETHRE
Employee share option scheme  {& BB Mk it 2l
— value of services provided — iR RIS 2
BE
Total transaction with owners HBEF AETZ
R EE
Balance at 31 December 2009 WRZ-ZFFhF
+=-A=+-H
2
Representing: HER:
2009 proposed final —ETNERERY
dividend (e,
Others Hit
Accumulated losses at RZZEENF+ZA
31 December 2009 =+—HAZz2:f
BB

The notes on pages 62 to 155 are an integral part of these financial

statements.

Attributable to owners of the Company

KATBEH ARES

Share Other
capital  reserves

BF  HibfEE
HK$'000  HK$'000

ERTR BE¥TR

1,347,931 227,921

1,347,931 272,043

Accumulated
losses

bS]
HK$'000
BETR

(805,210)

353,775

353,775

(33,823)

(33,823)

(485,258)

67,397
(552,655)

(485,258)

Total

21
HK$°000
REF

770,642

353,775
30

353,805

10,269

10,269

1,134,716

Minority
interests
DYIRE
i
HK$’000
EETR

Total
equity

ERBEH
HK$'000

ERTR

770,642

353,775
30

353,805

10,269

10,269

1,134,716

REC2E15B 2 MR M BHRRZ — 8D -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
HAERaRER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009
HE-_ZZhF+_A=-+—HILFE

Note
B 5
Cash flows from operating activities E&FHZHEHE
Cash generated from operations REEETZIRE 33(a)
Interest paid B AT A A
Interest received BT A
Income tax paid BERAER
Net cash generated from operating KEEBEE Y
activities ReFE
Cash flows from investing activities B&EEFHZHLHKEE
Purchases of property, plant and BEWE BER
equipment B
Proceeds from sale of property, plant HEYE BEX
and equipment REFTISROR 33(b)
Increase in construction-in-progress EEITREHEM
Payment for leasehold land and land & £ b o £ A 42
use rights NEN
Net cash outflow for disposal of HEMBARZ
subsidiaries REWHFE 36
Decrease/(increase) in prepayment for ERWE BEREZHEREAE
property, plant and equipment A (B )
Decrease/(increase) in prepayment for AL AR ERE
investments in associates A (45 hn)
Purchase of available-for-sale financial BEUHEES/
assets BE
Acquisition of associates W B B = A )
Increase in other non-current assets HEMIEREEELM
Receipts of government grants W ER B AT 4 B 25
Net cash used in investing activities WEEESFRBAZIRES R

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLLEE

2009
—ETAE
HK$’000
EETIT

465,092

(22,869)
4,341

(34,753)

411,811

(166,547)

8,474
(58,577)

18,576

82,463

(28,393)
(202,158)

5,272

(340,890)

2008
—EENF
HK$’000
BT T

137,696
(50,881)

10,390
(34,116)

63,089

(211,529)

21,708
(89,867)

(30,680)

(245,096)

(22,392)

(82,463)

(73)
1,413

(658,979)




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
HFEeBRERER ()
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009
HE-FTAE+-A=T-ALEE
Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLLEE

2009 2008

—EEAEF —EENEF
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
Pt EETT AT T

Cash flows from financing activities FI&EFHZIRERE

Proceeds from borrowings BRI EHIE 788,191 704,225
Repayment of borrowings BEEMBR (830,697) (431,811)
Decrease in pledged bank deposits B IFRITE IR 11,939 43,558
Net cash (used in)/generated from mEFESHA) S ELEZ

financing activities REFH (30,567) 315,972

Net increase/(decrease)incashand RE&RINSZEEWiEN

cash equivalents GRD) B8 40,354 (279,918)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning F#I2ERERBESZEEY
of the year 217,124 497,042

Cash and cash equivalents at end FRZBERILEEY
of the year 17 257,478 217,124

The notes on pages 62 to 155 are an integral part of these financial R EE2E155B 2MT AT BHRE 2 —HH -
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRME

General Information
Welling Holding Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries

(together the “Group”) manufacture, distribute and sell motors and
electronic and electric components for electrical household
appliances and trade raw materials in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC”) and overseas.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in Hong
Kong. The address of its registered office is at Suite 3904, 39/F,
Tower 6, The Gateway, Harbour City, 9 Canton Road, Tsim Sha
Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The Company’s shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

On 31 March 2008, upon completion of a very substantial disposal
and very substantial acquisition transaction (the “Transaction”) as
described as follows, the Company: (i) disposed of the Company’s
entire interest in each of China Refrigeration Industry Co., Ltd.,
Hualing Technology Limited, Hualing (Far East) Limited, and Hualing
(Guangzhou) Electrical Appliances Co., Ltd., (collectively the
“Disposed Companies”) and their respective subsidiaries (together,
the “Disposed Group”) to Welling Electric Holding (Cayman Islands)
Limited (now known as Midea Holding (Cayman Islands) Limited) (the
“Vendor”), the wholly owned subsidiary of Midea Group Co. Ltd.
(“Midea”); (i) acquired Welling Holding (BVI) Limited (the “Welling”)
and its subsidiaries (together, the “Welling Group”); (iii) allotted and
issued approximately 8,753,323,000 consideration shares to the
Vendor; and (iv) assigned the Company’s right to net receivables due
from the Disposed Companies and their subsidiaries amounted to
approximately HK$876,124,000 to the Vendor.

Thereafter, the Group has become a manufacturer and distributor of
micro motors, washing motors and electronic and electric
components in the PRC and overseas.

Given that the Company and the Vendor are both indirect
subsidiaries of Midea and under common control of Midea before
and after the Transaction, the Company applied the principles of
merger accounting, as prescribed in Hong Kong Accounting
Guideline 5 “Merger Accounting for Common Control Combinations”
(*HKAG 5”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”) in preparing these financial statements
of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
GEMBRRME (&)

2.1

General Information (Continued)
These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars

(“HK$”), unless otherwise stated. These financial statements have
been approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 29 March
2010.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these

consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (the “HKFRSs”). The consolidated financial statements
have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as
modified by the revaluation of investment properties, available-for-
sale financial assets and derivatives financial instruments.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in
the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.

These consolidated financial statements have also been prepared
using the principles of merger accounting, as prescribed in HKAG 5.
These consolidated financial statements include the financial
position, results and cash flows of the companies comprising the
Group as if the current group structure had been in existence
throughout the year, or since their respective dates of incorporation/
establishment. For companies acquired from (or disposed of to) a
third party during the year, they would be included in (or excluded
from) the consolidated financial statements of the Group from the
date of that acquisition (or disposal).

2.1

—iR&EF (&)

BBEERN AHFRRAEEE
M2 -EERR -2 -TF=f
SRR R TIEAM R -

FESBRBE

REZEFAVBRRAEAZIIESS
BREINWMT - AEAI ZFERK
RAE2IZFEFHCERER -

AEEZHEEMBRRBEFTEVERS
ZA(EAMBRELNDER - HFAF
BREDBELRALRE URERHK
BEYE AHLESREERTESRT
HAEH &R

BANAEAVBREEN ZHEAVBHR
AEEREAETHREAEG -BHEEAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
GEUMBRRME (K)

2.1

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

There is no gain or loss from the Transaction because the resulting
differences are regarded as distribution to the owners of the
Company and debited to the equity of the Group. As a result, the
accumulated losses for the Disposed Group of approximately
HK$1,216,807,000 up to 31 March 2008 are not affected by any
disposal gain or loss, and are included in the accumulated losses of
the Group. The deemed distribution arising from the Transaction of
approximately HK$3,219,525,000 (Note 19(d)) was debited to the
equity of the Group.

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

@

New and amended standards adopted by the Group

The Group has adopted the following new and amended
HKFRSs as of 1 January 2009:

HKFRS 7 ‘Financial Instruments — Disclosures’
(amendment) — effective 1 January 2009. The
amendment requires enhanced disclosures about fair
value measurement and liquidity risk. In particular, the
amendment requires disclosure of fair value
measurements by level of a fair value measurement
hierarchy. As the change in accounting policy only
results in additional disclosures, there is no impact on
earnings per share.

HKAS 1 (revised) ‘Presentation of financial statements’
— effective 1 January 2009. The revised standard
prohibits the presentation of items of income and
expenses (that is, ‘non-owner changes in equity’) in the
statement of changes in equity, requiring ‘non-owner
changes in equity’ to be presented separately from
owner changes in equity in a statement of
comprehensive income. As a result the Group presents
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity all
owner changes in equity, whereas all non-owner
changes in equity are presented in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income. Comparative
information has been re-presented so that it also is in
conformity with the revised standard. Since the change
in accounting policy only impacts presentation aspects,
there is no impact on earnings per share.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
GEMBRRME (&)

2

2.1

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2
(Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

(@) New and amended standards adopted by the Group

(Continued)

. HKFRS 2 (amendment), ‘Share-based payment’
(effective 1 January 2009) deals with vesting conditions
and cancellations. It clarifies that vesting conditions are
service conditions and performance conditions only.
Other features of a share-based payment are not
vesting conditions. These features would need to be
included in the grant date fair value for transactions with
employees and others providing similar services; they
would not impact the number of awards expected to
vest or valuation there of subsequent to grant date. All
cancellations, whether by the entity or by other parties,
should receive the same accounting treatment. The
Group and Company has adopted HKFRS 2
(amendment) from 1 January 2009. The amendment
does not have a material impact on the Group’s or
Company’s financial statements.

. HKFRS 8, ‘Operating segments’ (effective 1 January
2009). HKFRS 8 replaces HKAS 14, ‘Segment
reporting’. The new standard requires a ‘management
approach’, under which segment information is
presented on the same basis as that used for internal
reporting purposes. This has no impact on the Group’s
financial statements, as the Group has already been
using the principles, which are presentation of HKFRS
8, in presenting segment information of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
GEUMBRRME (K)

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

(b)

Standards, amendments and interpretations to
existing standards that are not yet effective and have
not been early adopted by the Group

The following standards and amendments to existing

standards have been published and are mandatory for the

Group’s accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January

2010 or later periods, but the Group has not early adopted

them:

HK(FRIC) — Int 17 ‘Distribution of non-cash assets to
owners’ (effective on or after 1 July 2009). The
interpretation is part of the HKICPA’s annual
improvements project published in May 2009. This
interpretation provides guidance on accounting for
arrangements whereby an entity distributes non-cash
assets to shareholders either as a distribution of
reserves or as dividends. HKFRS 5 has also been
amended to require that assets are classified as held
for distribution only when they are available for
distribution in their present condition and the
distribution is highly probable. The Group and Company
will apply HK(IFRIC) 17 from 1 January 2010, but it is
not expected to have any material impact on the
Group’s or Company’s financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
GEMBRRME (&)

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

(b)

Standards, amendments and interpretations to
existing standards that are not yet effective and have
not been early adopted by the Group (Continued)

HKAS 27 (revised), ‘Consolidated and separate financial
statements’, (effective from 1 July 2009). The revised
standard requires the effects of all transactions with
minority interest to be recorded in equity if there is no
change in control and these transactions will no longer
result in goodwill or gains and losses. The standard
also specifies the accounting when control is lost. Any
remaining interest in the entity is re-measured to fair
value, and a gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.
The Group will apply HKAS 27 (revised) prospectively
to transactions with minority interest from 1 January
2010.

HKFRS 3 (revised), ‘Business combinations’ (effective
from 1 July 2009). The revised standard continues to
apply the acquisition method to business combinations,
with some significant changes. For example, all
payments to purchase a business are to be recorded at
fair value at the acquisition date, with contingent
payments classified as debt subsequently re-measured
through the income statement. There is a choice on an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis to measure the minority
interest in the acquiree either at fair vale or at the
minority interest’s proportionate share of the acquiree’s
net assets. All acquisition-related costs should be
expensed. The Group will apply HKFRS 3 (revised)
prospectively to all business combinations from 1
January 2010.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
GEUMBRRME (K)

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

(b)

Standards, amendments and interpretations to
existing standards that are not yet effective and have
not been early adopted by the Group (Continued)

HKAS 38 (amendment), ‘Intangible Assets’ (effective
from 1 July 2009). The amendment is part of the
HKICPA'’s annual improvements project published in
May 2009 and the Group and Company will apply
HKAS 38 (amendment) from the date HKFRS 3 (revised)
is adopted. The amendment clarifies guidance in
measuring the fair value of an intangible asset acquired
in a business combination and it permits the grouping
of intangible assets as a single asset if each asset has
similar useful economic lives. It is not expected to have
material impact on the Group’s or Company’s financial
statements.

HKFRS 5 (amendment), ‘Measurement of non-current
assets (or disposal groups) classified as held for sale’.
The amendment is part of the HKICPA’s annual
improvements project published in May 2009. The
amendment provides clarification that HKFRS 5
specifies the disclosures required in respect of non-
current assets (or disposal groups) classified as held for
sale or discontinued operations. It also clarifies that the
general requirement of HKAS 1 still apply, particularly
paragraph 15 (to achieve a fair presentation) and
paragraph 125 (sources of estimation uncertainty) of
HKAS 1. The Group and Company will apply HKFRS 5
(@mendment) from 1 January 2010. It is not expected
to have a material impact on the Group’s or the
Company’s financial statements.

2.1

ERETBREER)

EREEMR)

EilBERRFZEE (E)

(b) ek £ R A K AR E B IR F IR

A 5T R B

P E)

&R 'R ERFE385 (B 5T &)
(BPEEI(H_ZZENFL
A—BRER - WEFTAR
EEGHMAGE_ZETNF
hARMOFEEBERE N —
Mo MAKEMAREHA
BAMBHRE LRSI (KE
FRMBEREEAE S
% QI FB385% (1& 5T %) © b & 5T
KEBTHEEBAHTBEEN
BREENRATENERE
5 URHBRESHEENA
EREMAI IRETEEE
HMERE—BE - WETAT
GUAREE L AR AR
REKERTE -

BB E LR B (BET
MIFEFESHERDEE (K
EEH) MR HETRA
BAEGHMAGE_TTNE
FAAGEHTFEREBEN —
WD IETRBETHBH
BHRELEERAADEA
BRESEERDEE(HEE
H)MBRIEEEXEBHREN
EEABRE - WEITANESET
BB EABIRN — BB
EMAEA - LEHRE158 (2
BA f & E) A E12560 (ff 5t
TR N HE M) o AN £ E AN
AR ER T —TF— A
—BREABEBHERE LR
o (EEIA) EH A EH
REBMKARANPHIHERE
REREE -




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
GEMBRRME (&)

2.1

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

(b)

Standards, amendments and interpretations to
existing standards that are not yet effective and have
not been early adopted by the Group (Continued)

HKAS 1 (amendment), ‘Presentation of financial
statements’. The amendment is part of the HKICPA’s
annual improvements project published in April/May
2009. The amendment provides clarification that the
potential settlement of a liability by the issue of equity is
not relevant to its classification as current or non-
current. By amending the definition of current liability,
the amendment permits a liability to be classified as
non-current (provided that the entity has an
unconditional right to defer settlement by transfer of
cash or other assets for at least 12 months after the
accounting period) notwithstanding the fact that the
entity could be required by the counterparty to settle in
shares at any time. The Group and Company will apply
HKAS 1 (amendment) from 1 January 2010. It is not
expected to have a material impact on the Group’s or
Company’s financial statements.

HKFRS 2 (amendments), ‘Group cash-settled share-
based payment transactions’ (effective from 1 January
2010). In addition to incorporating HK(IFRIC) — Int 8,
‘Scope of HKFRS 2’, and HK(IFRIC) — Int 11, HKFRS
2 — Group and treasury share transactions’, the
amendments expand on the guidance in IFRIC 11 to
address the classification of group arrangements that
were not covered by the interpretation. The new
guidance is not expected to have a material impact on
the Group’s financial statements.

2

2.1

ERETBREER)

GREEE

BB ERIEFSEE(E)

®)

/i K A A K AN B 1E R IR

A ER - BETREFERZ

PE(E)

BB G ERE1R (BT A)
[ EmEO 25 o BB FT A
REBGHMAGE=-ZZTh
FOA /" ARBAMHEFEENRHE
BEH—HD BT AREE
TEESRBTEEMEE —
BAEE HZBEEHIEAR
REBRIERBEZREEEN -
FEREARDABEHES It
BIART —EHEEEIER
FETB(REERATEGKE:
FERERRCIEMEE
HEERAEECZet %R
D12 A) - AT w5 A
REREEREBERIURS
BE - AEBEMARARBEEH
—T-EF—-F—HREASF
BE st RSB (BT &)
BEHTEHAEERARANH
IR ERENERTE -

BB WmEERE255E (BFT
FIEEARE EEARD
XNXHERGI(H—F—FF
—A—RBER  -KTHA
FEE(BERYBRETEZR
g) - TEFSR[BEV BT
FARERFE2FHEHE | MEE (B
REMBEHREIREEREE) —
BEIRIB A K REER
Fosk — KREMBEFRNZS ]
SN AR AE T A TR EFE T B BF
BRERBZESFIRNE
- HERRREEMRES
BMEBEZ IO - L RFIE
SIEBTEHANEENY R
REKBERTE -




0N

Welling Holding Limited

| Annual Report 2009

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
GEUMBRRME (K)

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.2 Consolidation

@

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose entities)
over which the Group has the power to govern the financial
and operating policies generally accompanying a shareholding
of more than one half of the voting rights. The existence and
effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or
convertible are considered when assessing whether the
Group controls another entity. Subsidiaries are fully
consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to
the Group. They are de-consolidated from the date that
control ceases.

The purchase method of accounting is used to account for
the acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group. The cost of an
acquisition is measured as the fair value of the assets given,
equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred or assumed
at the date of exchange, plus costs directly attributable to the
acquisition. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are
measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date,
irrespective of the extent of any minority interest. The excess
of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s
share of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as
goodwill. If the cost of acquisition is less than the fair value of
the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is
recognised directly in the income statement (Note 2.6).

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated.

Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.

In the Company’s statement of financial position the
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision for
impairment losses (Note 2.7). The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
GEMBRRME (&)

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

(b)

()

Transactions with minority interests

The Group applies a policy of treating transactions with
minority interests as transactions with parties external to the
Group. Disposals to minority interests result in gains and
losses for the Group and are recorded in the income
statement. Purchases from minority interests result in
goodwill, being the difference between any consideration
paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying value of
net assets of the subsidiary.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the group has significant
influence but not control, generally accompanying a
shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity
method of accounting and are initially recognised at cost. The
Group’s investment in associates includes goodwill identified
on acquisition, net of any accumulated impairment loss. See
Note 2.7 for the impairment of non-financial assets including
goodwill.

The Group’s share of its associates’ post-acquisition profits or
losses is recognised in the income statement, and its share of
post-acquisition movements in reserves is recognised in
reserves. The cumulative post-acquisition movements are
adjusted against the carrying amount of the investment. When
the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds
its interest in the associate, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses,
unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf
of the associate.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its
associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest
in the associates. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
GEUMBRRME (K)

2.2

23

24

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Consolidation (Continued)

(c) Associates (Continued)
Dilution gains and losses arising in investments in associates
are recognised in the income statement.

In the Company’s statement of financial position the
investments in associates are stated at cost less provision for
impairment losses (Note 2.7). The results of associates are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker.
The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating segments,
has been identified as the board of directors that makes strategic
decisions.

Foreign currency translation

(@) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollar (‘HK$”), which
is different from the Company’s functional currency of
Renminbi (“RMB”).

(b)  Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions or valuation where items are re-measured.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the translation at
year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the
income statement, except when deferred in equity as
qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying net investment
hedges.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e

BHRRME (&)

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(b)

()

Transactions and balances (Continued)
Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings
and cash and cash equivalents are presented in the income
statement within ‘finance income or cost’. All other foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented in the income
statement within ‘other (losses)/gains — net’.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities denominated
in foreign currency classified as available for sale are analysed
between translation differences resulting from changes in the
amortised cost of the security and other changes in the
carrying amount of the security. Translation differences related
to changes in amortised cost are recognised in profit or loss,
and other changes in carrying amount are recognised in
equity.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets and
liabilities such as equities held at fair value through profit or
loss are recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair value
gain or loss. Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets such as equities classified as available for sale are
included in the available for sale reserve in equity.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group entities (none
of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that
have a functional currency different from the presentation
currency are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate at
end of the reporting period;

(ii) income and expenses for each income statement are
translated at average exchange rates (unless this
average is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income and expenses
are translated at the rate on the dates of the
transactions); and
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HEEMBHBRRME (&)

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c)  Group companies (Continued)
(i) all resulting exchange differences are recognised as a

separate component of equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign operations, and of
borrowings and other currency instruments designated as
hedges of such investments, are taken to shareholders’
equity. When a foreign operation is partially disposed of or
sold, exchange differences that were recorded in equity are
recognised in the income statement as part of the gain or loss
on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition
of a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign entity and translated at the closing rate.

2.5 Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less

depreciation and impairment losses. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item wiill
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to the income statement
during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated using
the straight-line method to allocate cost to their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, as follows:

2

24

2.5

ERETBREER)

IEI]RE (&)

() FEEF(E)
iy FMBEEEZERZ8EYHRIAE
X ZBIIAR -

REERBEE REBIEH 2K
BEFH BREEMCBIELHEREH
REZEBRTAMELAZEN ZH
B ABRRER - EBHHEXH
EHIEBE EHELZENK
BRZEBANER  ARIA/EE
WSk EEz — &7 -

WBEIEEMELEZBHERRYF
BERABORABIERZEERE
B WIRKRTEXREZE -

W& BERRE

ME - BB R RELE L RARITE KR
BEERIIK - BELKABEKRBZERE
BEEREHZHAS -

HERAERERZIEBHEZ RREHN
HAFWRRARNER  MZEEB ZKAGE
AEER STERBEEEECKREEN
HMRARBLEEWEMR) REHRILDZ
FEESTBER -MBEEMBEERRE
BEREEZHMBBEARKERIOE -

W BERREZIFERBAT AT
ERFHERARARES BEHHBEE
5

Estimated useful lives

Gt EREY
Buildings: BF
— Decorations — H 3 years F
— Factories, offices and others — I PRERHAM 10-30 years £
Plant and machinery R 5 et 83 10-20 years
Motor vehicles RE 5-10 years &
Electronic and other equipment BFREMEK 3-5 years F




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
GEMBRRME (&)

25

2.6

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

Construction-in-progress represents the direct costs of construction
incurred and machinery pending to installation plus interest
capitalised up to date of completion of the construction of property,
plant and equipment less any impairment losses. No provision for
depreciation is made on construction in progress until such time and
relevant assets are completed and put into use. Construction-in-
progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of property, plant
and equipment when completed and ready for use.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.7).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised within ‘Other
(losses)/gains — net’ in the income statement.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the
fair value of the Group’s share of the net identifiable assets of the
acquired subsidiary at the date of acquisition. Goodwill is tested
annually for impairment and carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Impairment losses on goodwill are not reversed.
Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the carrying
amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of
impairment testing. The allocation is made to those cash-generating
units or groups of cash-generating units that are expected to benefit
from the business combination in which the goodwill arose identified
according to operating segment.
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2.7

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries,
associates and non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, for example goodwill, are
not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment.
Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there
are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-
financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting
date.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries or associates is
required upon receiving dividends from these investments if the
dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary
or associate in the period the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of the investment in the separate financial statements
exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements
of the investee’s net assets including goodwill.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.8 Financial assets

2.8.1 Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the following

categories: at fair value through profit or loss, loans and

receivable, and available for sale. The classification depends

on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired.

Management determines the classification of its financial

assets at initial recognition.

(@)

(b)

()

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
financial assets held for trading. A financial asset is
classified in this category if acquired principally for the
purpose of selling in the short-term. Derivatives are also
categorised as held for trading unless they are
designated as hedges. Assets in this category are
classified as current assets.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. They are included in current
assets, except for maturities greater than 12 months
after the end of the reporting period. These are
classified as non-current assets. The Group’s loans and
receivables comprise ‘trade and other receivables’ and
‘cash and cash equivalents’ in the statement of financial
position (Notes 2.13 and 2.14).

Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives
that are either designated in this category or not
classified in any of the other categories. They are
included in non-current assets unless the investment
matures or management intends to dispose of it within
12 months of the end of the reporting period.
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HEEMBHBRME (&)

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.8 Financial assets (Continued)

2.8.2 Recognition and measurement

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade-date — the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Investments are initially
recognised at fair value plus transaction costs for all financial
assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial
assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially
recognised at fair value, and transaction costs are expensed
in the income statement. Financial assets are derecognised
when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments
have expired or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.
Available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair
value. Loans and receivables are subsequently carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the
‘financial assets at fair value through profit or loss’ category
are presented in the consolidated income statement within
‘other (losses)/gains — net’, in the period in which they arise.

When securities classified as available for sale are sold or
impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments recognised
in equity are included in the income statement as ‘gains and
losses from investment securities’.

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are
recognised in the income statement as part of other income
when the Group’s right to receive payments is established.

2.9 Offsetting financial instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported
in the statement of financial position when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.

ERETBREER)

28 &EREEE)

2.8.2EsR G &

TREEZERABARLE AR
RSB AEEARBARHE
ZEEER)ERAR - WY IR
AT EEBERLCEZMBETRE
E ERENHERAFEMNRZ S K
AHERAR - HAFEBBESER
e BMEE  MNIKRAFEER
AR MRSEAANERERAX
HoMBERENDRAEETRE ZEF
BEIHACERE MAKEEKHE
BERESRZBRENEANARED
REFEE NEMEESWRILTE
ReAHESMEERRATE
BERERCRZEREER KA
RFAEDER - B R KW R E R A
RERN SRR E KT R

KEMEAFEEBERLRZER
BEIBNZAVEREDMEEZR
B DA AREEHRAZES RE
FRIEAM(BR) e — FE@]P -

DEANHEEZEFEE BT
B AIRNEDRER R 2FE
ZHAEBIAR SR ZIREESFK
mNMEEIA -

EARSEE WK ZEME - ATH
HERBETAZKR ARG RER
REMBAZ D -

29 HHEMIA
TREENRABENRER AR R EEHE
ERRBBELRNBERFEEELEEIRAR
BREERBEEABERSTRER: A%
BAR M BRI ER NI BR o




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
HEMBRRME (&)

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.10 Impairment of financial assets

@

Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or
group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses
are incurred only if there is objective evidence of impairment
as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and that loss event (or
events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset or Group of financial assets that can be
reliably estimated.

The criteria that the Group uses to determine that there is
objective evidence of an impairment loss include:

° Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor;

o A breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments;

. It becomes probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of
impairment exists.

The amount of the loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate. The asset’s carrying amount of
the asset is reduced and the amount of the loss is recognised
in the consolidated income statement. If a loan or held-to-
maturity investment has a variable interest rate, the discount
rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current effective
interest rate determined under the contract. As a practical
expedient, the Group may measure impairment on the basis
of an instrument’s fair value using an observable market price.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.10 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

@

(b)

Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as
an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of
the previously recognised impairment loss is recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

Assets classified as available for sale

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired. In the case of equity
investments classified as available for sale, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below its
cost is also evidence that the assets are impaired. If any such
evidence exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the
cumulative loss — measured as the difference between the
acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised
in profit or loss — is removed from equity and recognised in
the separate consolidated income statement. Impairment
losses recognised in the separate consolidated income
statement on equity instruments are not reversed through the
separate consolidated income statement. If, in a subsequent
period, the fair value of a debt instrument classified as
available for sale increases and the increase can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised in profit or loss, the impairment loss is
reversed through the separate consolidated income
statement.

2.11 Derivative financial instruments
Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a

derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured

at their fair value. Changes in the fair value of these derivative

instruments are recognised immediately in the consolidated income

statement within ‘other gains/(losses) — net’.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2
(Continued)

2.12 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method. The
cost of finished goods and work in progress comprises design costs,
raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs and related production
overheads (based on normal operating capacity). It excludes
borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling
expenses.

2.13 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for merchandise
sold in the ordinary course of business. If collection of trade and
other receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer), they are classified as
current assets. If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less provision for impairment.

2.14 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at
call with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less.

2.15 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or
options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.
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2

2.16

217

2.18

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Trade payables
Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that

have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from
suppliers. Accounts payable are classified as current liabilities if
payment is due within one year or less (or in the normal operating
cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-
current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised
cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs)
and the redemption value is recognised in the income statement
over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has
an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the end of the reporting period.

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax.
Tax is recognised in the income statement, except to the extent that
it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax
laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period in the countries where the Company’s subsidiaries and
associates operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the
basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.18 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, the deferred income tax is not accounted for if
it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income
tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period and are
expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is
realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries and associates, except where the timing
of the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes assets and
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
on either the taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is
an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.19 Employee benefits

@

(b)

Retirement benefits obligation

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees to join
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”),
a defined contribution scheme managed by an independent
trustee.

The Group’s subsidiaries incorporated in the PRC make
contributions to a state-sponsored defined contribution
scheme for the Group’s local staff on a monthly basis
pursuant to laws of the PRC and relevant regulations issued
by local social security authorities.

The Group’s contributions to the defined contribution
retirement schemes are expensed as incurred.

The Group has no further payment obligations once the
contributions have been paid.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is
terminated by the Group before the normal retirement date, or
whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in
exchange for these benefits. The Group recognises
termination benefits when it is demonstrably committed to
either: terminating the employment of current employees
according to a detailed formal plan without possibility of
withdrawal; or providing termination benefits as a result of an
offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy. Benefits
falling due more than 12 months after the end of the reporting
period are discounted to their present value.
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2

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.20 Share-based payments

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based compensation
scheme, under which the entity receives services from employees as
consideration for equity instruments (options) of the Group. The fair
value of the employee services received in exchange for the grant of
the options is recognised as an expense. The total amount to be
expensed is determined by reference to the fair value of the options

granted;
. including any market performance conditions;
. excluding the impact of any service and non-market

performance vesting conditions (for example, profitability,
sales growth targets and remaining an employee of the entity
over a specified time period); and

. excluding the impact of any non-vesting conditions (for
example, the requirement for employees to save).

Non-market vesting conditions are included in assumptions about
the number of options that are expected to vest. The total amount
expensed is recognised over the vesting period, which is the period
over which all of the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied.
At the end of each reporting period, the entity revises its estimates of
the number of options that are expected to vest based on the non-
marketing vesting conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision
of original estimates, if any, in the income statement, with a
corresponding adjustment to equity.

The cash subscribed for the shares issued when the options are
exercised is credited to share capital (nominal value) and share
premium, net of any directly attributable transaction costs.

The grant by the Company of options over its equity instruments to
the employees of subsidiary undertakings in the Group is treated as
a capital contribution. The fair value of employee services received,
measured by reference to the grant date fair value, is recognised
over the vesting period as an increase to investments in subsidiaries,
with a corresponding credit to equity.
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2.21

2.22

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable for the sale of goods in the ordinary course of the Group’s
activities. Revenue is shown net of value-added tax, returns, rebates
and discounts and after eliminated sales within the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be
reliably measured, it is probable that future economic benefits will
flow to the entity and specific criteria have been met for each of the
Group’s activities as described below. The Group bases its
estimates on historical results taking into consideration the type of
customer, the type of transaction and the specifics of each
arrangement.

(a)  Sales of finished goods and raw materials
Sales of finished goods and raw materials are recognised
when a Group entity has delivered products to the customer,
the customer has accepted the products and collectibility of
the related receivables is reasonably assured.

(b) Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method. When a receivable is impaired, the Group reduces
the carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being the
estimated future cash flow discounted at original effective
interest rate of the instrument, and continues unwinding the
discount as interest income. Interest income on impaired
loans and receivables are recognised using the original
effective interest rate.

(c)  Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive
payment is established.

Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating
leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives
received from the lessor) are expensed in the income statement on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease.
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2

2.23

2.24

3.1

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where
there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and
the Group will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised in
the income statement over the period necessary to match them with
the costs that they are intended to compensate.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised
as a liability in the Group’s and Company’s financial statements in
the period in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders.

Financial Risk Management

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market
risk (including foreign exchange risk, cash flow and fair value interest
rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s
overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects
on the Group’s financial performance. The Group uses derivative
financial instruments to hedge certain risk exposures.

(a) Market risk

() Foreign exchange risk
The Group exposes to foreign exchange risks as certain
portion of its business activities are denominated in
foreign currencies, primarily with respect to HK$, United
States dollar (“USD”) and Euro (“EUR”).

To manage their foreign exchange risks arising from
future commercial transactions, entities in the Group
enter into forward contracts, transacted with the
commercial banks. The directors are of the opinion that
the Group’s exposure to foreign exchange risk is
manageable.
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3

3.1

Financial Risk Management (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

At 31 December 2009, if RMB has weakened/
strengthened by 5% against the HK$ with all other
variables held constant, post-tax profit of continuing
operation for the year would have been HK$3,016,000
(2008: HK$2,248,000) lower/higher, mainly as a result
of foreign exchange losses/gains on translation of HK$-
denominated trade and other receivables and trade and
other payables and due from/to related companies.

At 31 December 2009, if RMB has weakened/
strengthened by 5% against the USD with all other
variables held constant, post-tax profit of continuing
operation for the year would have been HK$2,332,000
(2008: HK$15,065,000) higher/lower, mainly as a result
of foreign exchange gains/losses on translation of USD-
denominated trade and other receivables and trade and
other payables and due from/to related companies.

At 31 December 2009, if RMB has weakened/
strengthened by 5% against the EUR with all other
variables held constant, post-tax profit of continuing
operation for the year would have been HK$2,112,000
(2008: HK$4,915,000) higher/lower, mainly as a result
of foreign exchange gains/losses on translation of EUR-
denominated trade and other receivables and trade and
other payables and due from/to related companies.
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3.1

Financial Risk Management (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Market risk (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

As the Group has no significant interest-bearing assets,
the Group’s income and operating cash flows are
substantially independent of changes in market interest
rates.

The Group’s interest rate risk arises mainly from long-
term borrowings. The directors are of the opinion this
risk is not material as at 31 December 2009.

At 31 December 2009, if interest rates on long-term
borrowings had been 50 basis points higher/lower with
all other variables held constant, post-tax profit of the
continuing operation for the year would have been
HK$58,000 (2008: HK$13,000) lower/higher, mainly as
a result of higher/lower interest expense on floating rate
borrowings.

Price risk

The Group exposes to commodity price risk, mainly
due to the fluctuations in prices of copper and
aluminium, which are key raw materials to the Group’s
products of its continuing operations. The price risk due
to copper and aluminium is reduced through the
derivatives market, and through certain clause in
contracts with our customers to enable the Group to
have the flexibility to pass the increases in raw material
costs to our customers.
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3 Financial Risk Management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a

(b)

Market risk (Continued)

(i) Price risk (Continued)
At 31 December 2009, if the copper and aluminium
price had been 5% higher/lower with other variables
held constant, the pre-tax profit of the continuing
operation for the year would have been of
HK$1,163,000 (2008: HK$1,143,000) higher/lower,
representing the change in fair value of copper and
aluminium derivatives at the end of the reporting period.

The Group is not exposed to equity securities price risk.

Credit risk

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk.
Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, pledged
bank deposits, derivative financial instruments, due from
related parties and trade and other receivables.

For cash and cash equivalent, pledged bank deposits and
derivative financial instruments, management manages the
credit risk by transacting with state-owned financial institutions
and reputable commercial banks which are all high-credit-
quality financial institutions.

For trade and other receivables and due from related parties,
the credit quality of the counterparties is assessed by taking
into account their financial position, credit history and other
factors. Individual credit limits are set based on the
assessment of the credit quality. Given the constant
repayment history, the directors are of the opinion that the risk
of default by these counterparties is low.
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3

3.1

Financial Risk Management (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk management includes maintaining sufficient cash
balance, the availability of funding from an adequate amount
of committed credit facilities and the ability to close out market
positions.

The table below analyses the Group’s non-derivative financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the
remaining period at the end of the reporting period to the
contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table
are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due
within 12 months equal their carrying balances, as the impact
of discounting is not significant.

At 31 December 2009 RZZEZNF+=-A=+—H
Bank borrowings fE TIER
Trade and other payables 2 N H 0 R

fth
Due to related companies Fé NG E ]

At 31 December 2008 R-ZBEZNE+=-_A=+—8H
Bank borrowings RITIER

Trade and other payables B REMENR
Due to related companies JE T BB R B 3B
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Less than Between
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—E£U0TFT —FEWF MELLE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
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3.2

Financial Risk Management (Continued)

Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
return for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors capital on
the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt
divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings
less pledged bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents. Total
capital is calculated as equity, as shown in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

During the year ended 31 December 2009, the Group’s strategy was
to further improve the gearing ratio. The gearing ratios as at 31
December 2009 and 2008 were as follows:
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HK$’000 HK$’000

BET T ok

Total borrowings (Note 20) f& 48 58 (f 5220) 629,102 671,608
Less: Pledged bank deposits (Note 16) B BRI R 1T E K (M RE16) (49,081) (61,020)
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 17) Be& MRS EY KIF17) (257,478) (217,124)

Net debt BB FH 322,543 393,464
Total capital BEARBRE 1,134,716 770,642
Gearing ratio (%) BEREBEEE(%) 28 51

The decrease in gearing ratio resulted primarily from the profit
generated from the operations of the Group during the year ended
31 December 2009.
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3.3

Financial Risk Management (Continued) 3 HHBEMER(SE)

Fair value estimation 3.3 "$1E‘f$'ﬁ“‘|‘

Effective 1 January 2009, the Group adopted the amendment to BEZZZNF—A—HE XEBERREH

HKFRS 7 for financial instruments that are measured in the BRRAERFERAFTEFEZR T ERW

statement of financial position at fair value, this requires disclosure of EEMBREEDFEITHR Z2IEE - HIEE

fair value measurements by level of the following fair value STERERA T ATFEAEHSE A TE
measurement hierarchy: AESRELEE

. Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical . HRAEBEXBEZ ZRBMIBRE (K
assets or liabilities (level 1). KRAE)(E—HR) -

. Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are s KBBEEFE—HZREIN EER
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as BEZIEREE(BIER KEE
prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2). (BREEBEREB)BAER (E_H) -

. Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on e WHBRBABEMSERMETEZ
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3). BESEEZBAER (AT AR

ZEABR)(EZR) -
The following table presents the Group’s assets and liabilities that TREWNAEER-_ZEZTNALF+ A
are measured at fair value at 31 December 2009. =+ —BRAFEFEZEEREGE-
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—4 £-R £=8 st
Assets BE
Derivatives financial TTESRTA
instruments
— future commaodity contracts — HHIE B @& 4 21,270 — — 21,270
— forward foreign exchange  — R HiSNE S 4
contracts — 4,438 — 4,438
Available-for-sale financial AHHESREE
assets

— Equity investment — REKRE — — 28,393 28,393

Liabilities af&

Derivative financial instruments T4 &gt T A

— foreign exchange forward ~ — = HBHNE A 4

contracts 902 — 902
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3.3

Financial Risk Management (Continued)

Fair value estimation (Continued)

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is
based on quoted market prices at the end of reporting period. A
market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly
available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing
service, or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and
regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis.
The quoted market price used for financial assets held by the Group
is the current bid price. These instruments are included in level 1.
Instruments included in level 1 comprise future commodity contracts.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active
market (for example, the forward foreign exchange contracts) is
determined by using valuation techniques. These valuation
techniques maximise the use of observable market data where it is
available and rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. If
all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are
observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable
market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

The available-for-sale financial asset is the capital contribution made
by the Group into a private company on 28 December 2009 as
detailed in Note 12. As this company was under pre-operating stage,
the fair value of the equity investment approximate its carrying value
as at 31 December 2009.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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4.1

Critical Accounting Estimates and

Judgments
Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based

on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of
future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future.
The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal
the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
addressed below.

(@ Impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any
impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy stated
in Note 2.7. The recoverable amounts of cash-generating
units have been determined based on value-in-use
calculations. These calculations require the use of certain key
assumptions (Note 9). Changing such key assumptions
selected by management, including the discount rates or the
growth rate assumptions, could materially affect the net
present value used in the impairment test.

If the estimated pre-tax discount rate applied to the
discounted cash flows for the micro motors business had
been 1% higher than management’s estimates (i.e. 16%
instead of 15%), the recoverable amount of goodwill would
still be higher than its carrying amount and no impairment of
goodwill would be recognised.

(b)  Share-based payments
The fair value of options granted is estimated by independent

professional valuers based on various assumptions on
volatility, life of options, dividend paid out rate and annual risk-
free interest rate, excluding the impact of any non-market
vesting conditions, which generally represent the best
estimate of the fair value of the share options at the date of
grant.

If the estimated dividend paid out rate had been 1% lower
than management’s estimates (i.e. 2% instead of 3%), the fair
value of the options granted at the grant date would had been
approximately HK$1,839,000 higher, and the profit before tax
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2009 would
had been approximately HK$714,000 lower.

4.1

EESEH AT RFE

et kA B 2 P e TEE T X BKIE
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EESq b RIEE
AEBEHRKELGEFRBR -BEZE
AHEREREREELHERERER A
BEARRAEBREENABZRAER
T EYBEEPHRERBARB AR
REWALT

(@ EERE
AEBGFIRBH F2.7F7 2 & 5
BRAZEEESSEEMNAE R
SEABEMUZARESBZERE
BfEMET ZEAEEBHEASE
FEERR(FF) - HEEEE
BT ERRB(BEMRERFERR
R RAEBENAFFER 2 F
REBKERTE -

MEARMEREBHRRSRE
ZAEET R ATAL IR KRB 1 E AT b 5T
& 1% (BN16% M B15%) + A &
BB BNEREEEER
=T ERRAEBRME -

(b) UG 1T H
BH>BREZATE HBEVE
¥ hEMRERIE B FH -
AR B 5 R R 4 LB 2R R R (B R
EEMETERBRTE 2 FE)%S
ERBREHMGH  HEBR—KRE
EREAELAN Y ATEY S
fhEt o

stk EXREEEETEEI%
(BM29% MR 3% ) « Al B B &
ZHEBREZ ATEZEMOBE
1,839,000t MAKBEBE T ZF
hWE+ZA=+—HLEFEZHA

FME A5 2 R A 4978 #714,0007T °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
ﬁAﬂjﬁiﬁ%mﬂI (n‘.ﬁ)

Segment Information
The principal activities of the Group are manufacturing, distribution

and selling motors and electronic and electric components for
electrical household appliance and trading of raw materials in the
PRC and overseas.

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial reporting provided
to the chief operating decision-maker, the board of directors, who is
responsible for allocating resources, assessing performance of the
operating segments and making strategic decisions, the
management considers the business from both product and
geographic perspective. From a product perspective, the Group
organised into the following main business segments:

Micro motors business — manufacture and distribution
of motors for air-conditioner
and refrigerator compressor

Washing motors business — manufacture and distribution
of motors for washing
machine, dish washer and
food processing

Electronic and electric — manufacture and distribution
components business of transformers, resistors,
shaded pole motors and

electric bicycle motors
Raw material business — trading of raw materials

Discontinued operations — manufacture and distribution
of refrigerators, air-
conditioner and mini-
refrigerator

The chief operating decision-maker assesses the performance of the
operating segments based on the profit before income tax for the
year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
HEMBHRRME (8)

5.1

Segment Information (Continued)

Primary reporting format — business segments

The segment information for the year ended 31 December 2009 are

as follows:

Gross segment revenue 45 EUE
Inter-segment revenue e
Revenue (from external Wz

customers) (REINKREF)
Operating profit/(loss) KEFIE (BB
Finance costs BE B AR
Finance income BEWA
Finance (cost)/income — net A& (KK,

WA — F8

Share of profits of associates

Profit/(loss) before income tax

Income tax expense

1EEE R R FDE

R A ST AT
FE, (E18)
FriS BRI X

Profit/(loss) for the year

FEMB/(BE)

Segment assets
Deferred income tax assets
Investments in associates

Total assets

Segment liabilities
Deferred income tax liabilities

Total liabilities

Addition of property, plant and
equipment and leasehold
land and land use right

Material non-cash expenses/
(income)

Depreciation and amortisation

(Reversal)/provision for inventory
obsolescence

Provision/(reversal) for impairment
of trade and other receivables

Fair value gain on derivative
financial instruments

DEEE
EEFREHAE

B NRIRE
REE

HEEE

BERSHAE
wam

NEWME KER
REMEEL
b Ko 4t 58 R
#

EX#REHX
(W)

B R i

FEBRERRERE
& (EE)
BHE

B 5 N K
BERE
(# =)

TESRTA
AFEKE

Micro
motors
business

HK$000
BT
2,445,370
(1,098)

2,444,272
199,492
(6,489)
2,784

(3,705)

195,787
(28,266)

167,521

2,149,876

1,562,746

139,205

40,012

(902)

1,496

(4,661)

Washing
motors
business
e i
HK$’000
EETT

1,695,186

(846)

1,694,340

192,748
(1,850)

1,537

(313)

192,435
(20,260)

172,175

1,481,234

1,272,586

1,751

(20,126)

Electronic
and electric
components

business
EFER
EREH
HK$’000

EETR
681,706

(2,231)

679,475
44,730

16

44,746
(3,635)

41,111

386,572

263,317

Raw
material
business

R
HK$000
BT
1,943,627
(1,937,598)

6,029
17,058
(12,950)

1

(12,949)

4,109
(1,532)

2,577

349,854

337,580

FERERR - EHSB
NEFETZA=+—HLEFEZ

5 HEEHE(E)
5.1
BHE-ZZ
DEE R ¢

Unallocated
* 5 BL

HK$’000
EBETR

(17,108)
(1,746)
3
(1,743)
4,808
(14,043)
(15,566)

(29,609)

1,855

The Group
Total
AEE
ast
HK$’000
EETT
6,765,889
(1,941,773)

4,824,116
436,920
(23,035)
4,341
(18,694)
4,808
423,034
(69,259)
353,775
4,369,391
21,856
206,966

4,598,213

3,438,262
25,235

3,463,497

225,124

78,491

(1,342)

2,562

(24,787)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
GEUMBRRME (K)

5 Segment Information (Continued) 5 HEEHE(E)
5.1 Primary reporting format — business segments 51 FEREER —E£EB9E(E)
(Continued)
The segment information for the year ended 31 December 2008 are B2 _ZZN\F+_A=+—BHItFEZ
as follows: DEERAT
The Group
REE
Electronic
Micro Washing and electric Raw Continuing
motors motors components material operations  Discontinued
business business business business Unallocated Total operations
g
M BEFESH BB ERE BIE
MEREE  BHRER EmER BEMHED RO A&t MR
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

BETIL BETT BETL  B¥TIT EE®TIT BETE BT

Gross segment revenue 15 FUL 2,745,023 1,643,342 813,638 1,702,021 — 6,904,024 1,308,055
Inter-segment revenue 5 B (41,874) (7,939) (15,436)  (1,645,497) —  (1,710,746) -
Revenue (from external Wz

customers) (REIREFR) 2,703,149 1,635,403 798,202 56,524 — 5,193,278 1,380,055
Operating profit/(loss) EERE (B 8) 71,456 116,202 27,633 9,020 (3,028) 221,283 44,628
Finance costs & R AN (23,426) (5,278) (3,046) (8,938) 3,579 (37,109) (13,578)
Finance income & WA 5,832 1,771 214 124 299 8,240 2,150

Finance (costs)/income — net @& (BKA)

WA — F58 (17,594) (8,507) (2,832) (8,814) 3,878 (28,869) (11,428)
Profit before income tax MBS ATAE 53,862 112,695 24,801 206 850 192,414 33,200
Income tax expense FRCE b (5,560)  (13,790) (2,943) (268) 6,249)  (28,810) (625)
Profit/(loss) for the year E-EFE (EE) 48,302 98,905 21,858 62) (5,399) 163,604 32,575
Segment assets DEBEE 1,645,625 945,979 292,076 266,088 119,754 3,269,522 —
Deferred income tax assets BEFSHEAE 7,887 —
Prepayment for investments  J& {1 B & R 71% &
in associates IAE 82,463 _
Total assets BAEE 3,359,872 —
Segment liabilities NEEE 1,365,236 710,152 195,199 242,813 69,5625 2,582,925 —
Deferred income tax liabilities iR EFT5 5 & (& 6,305 —
Total liabilities BafE 2,589,230 —

Addition of property, plant REWME  MER

and equipment and BEFMEEL

leasehold land and land i o 1 o {5 A

use right 3 112,514 172,799 11,440 - 7 296,760 57,708
Material non-cash EXEHEM®R

expenses/(income) (4 N)
Depreciation and amortisation 37 & K ## 4 30,160 18,670 8,235 1 41 57,107 15,586
(Reversal)/provision for GEBREREEX

inventory obsolescence B @),

B (65) 462 (731) 603 — 269 151

(Reversal)/provision for B 5 RE R

impairment of trade and A (R,

other receivables % (1,674) (1,148) (1,058) - - (3,880) 12,778
Impairment charge on WE - -BER

property, plant and RAERAER X

equipment - - - - - - 92
Fair value loss on derivative TESmMIA

financial instruments ANEEEER 18,389 12,246 - — — 30,635 -
Fair value gain on investment & &Y% A F (&

properties Uy 25 — — — — — — (2,198)

Provision for warranty EmiRERE — — — — — - 38,129




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
HEMBHRRME (8)

5 Segment Information (Continued) 5 SEEEE)

5.2 Secondary reporting format — geographical 52 MEBRERX —EDL
segments
The Group is domiciled in the PRC. The Group’s revenue from AEBHRPRH AEFEREFRBEAR
external customers located in PRC and outside PRC are presented BINZINRER 2 Was - 250
as follows:

Electronic
Micro Washing and electric Raw

motors motors components material Group

business business business business Total
il EFER FEME

HEMER EHER EREE RHHEEHR &t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT

For the year ended 31 December BE-_ZTTAEF
2009 +—A=+—HLEE
Revenue from external customers REFRBIRAINRE P 2 W
in PRC 2,027,556 912,658 637,703 3,583,946
Revenue from external customers KEFRBEBINNRES Z RS
outside PRC 416,716 781,682 41,772 1,240,170
2,444,272 1,694,340 679,475 4,824,116
Group
K&
Electronic
Micro Washing and electric Raw Continuing
motors motors components material operations  Discontinued
business business business business Total operations
5B
Mg EFERH ST B#&IE
HEHE B EmER RIS At MR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT BT BT BT BE T
For the year ended BE-_TZT)\F
31 December 2008 +—A=+—H
IEFE
Revenue from external REFRBIEAINKRE S
customers in PRC pal & 2,142,381 813,544 723,132 56,524 3,735,581 1,146,717
Revenue from external KEAFRBERININRES
customers outside PRC Pl ¢ 560,768 821,859 75,070 — 1,457,697 233,338
2,703,149 1,635,403 798,202 56,524 5,193,278 1,380,055
No geographical segment analysis on non-current assets other than HRASBRATMEERNRPE - iR
financial instruments, deferred income tax assets is prepared as TWTHEGHIFERDEE (BRI E RE

substantially all of the Group’s assets were located in the PRC. FISEEIN) 2 &5 EBHHT ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
GEUMBRRME (K)

6 Leasehold Land and Land Use Rights 6 HELTHRITHh{ERHE
The Group’s interests in leasehold land and land use rights represent AREBRBEELT R TMFEREZER A
prepaid operating lease payments and their net book values are FEREEHERE  HEREEFEITOT :

analysed as follows:

Group
S 1L

2009 2008
bt VEN —TTN\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BETRT BETIT

Outside Hong Kong, held on leases of 10 to 50 years EE AN - LA10EB0E 2 F8
SR 124,496 127,436

Group
e3 1

2009 2008
—gers [EELIE
HK$’000 HK$'000
wurr LA

Opening net book amount FYREFE 127,436 193,012
Additions NE - 30,680
Amortisation of prepaid operating lease payments TEAT 48 & T & RIA 5 (2,923) (2,773)
Exchange difference ERER (17) 10,642
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 36(a)) B EWE R F (K :E36(@) - (104,125)
Closing net book amount FREEFE 124,496 127,436
At 31 December 2009, leasehold land and land use rights with net RZZEZEAF+_A=+—H EEFE
book value of approximately HK$84,026,000 (2008: #4) 7% %84,026,000L (Z BT N\ F: B ¥
HK$85,965,000) have been pledged as security for the Group’s 85,965,0007C) v HE LT R T FAER
short-term bank borrowings (Note 20). ERAEE S R TER TR

20) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
HEMBHRRME (8)

(a)

- >
7 Property, Plant and Equipment 7 YIE BERRE
Group xEEH
Electronic
Construction- Plant and Motor and other
in-progress B hinery hicl equipment Total
E¥R
HBIR [ &3 BER#E RE Hiti s &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT AT T BETFT BETT BET T BETT
At 1 January 2008 RZTZEN\5—-A—H
Cost KA 58,828 470,171 981,959 12,912 255,080 1,778,950
Accumulated depreciation ZiiE - (185,322) (564,870) (7,362) (160,876) (918,430)
Impairment AE - (23,700) (59,682) (66) (32,967) (116,415)
Net book amount R FHE 58,828 261,149 357,407 5,484 61,237 744,105
Year ended 31 December 2008 BE-ZE\F+-A=1+—8
EFE
Opening net book amount FMREFE 58,828 261,149 357,407 5,484 61,237 744,105
Additions NE 89,867 93,412 89,562 3,773 24,782 301,396
Exchange difference EHER 2,459 14,485 19,201 276 2,737 39,158
Other disposals Hip e (18,924) - (5,262) (12) (601) (24,799)
Depreciation e - (20,180) (39,514) (1,137) (9,089) (69,920)
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 36(g)) & K& 72 7 (K 5+36(a) ) (72,870) (106,055) (175,243) (3,479) (60,856) (418,503)
Provision for impairment charge AR EE - - - - (92) (92)
Closing net book amount FIREEFE 59,360 242,811 246,151 4,905 18,118 571,345
At 31 December 2008 R-ZENE+-A=+—H
Cost %N 59,360 311,671 506,694 8,322 39,036 924,083
Accumulated depreciation ZHITE - (68,860) (259,543) (3,417) (20,918) (352,738)
Net book amount RS E 242,811 246,151 571,345
Year ended 31 December 2009 BE_ZTNFT-_A=1+—8H
EFE
Opening net book amount FNREFE 59,360 242,811 246,151 4,905 18,118 571,345
Additions NE 58,577 10,689 143,495 2,638 9,725 225,124
Exchange difference EizZE U] (40) (65) = (12) (124)
Disposals HeE (4,495) m (14,528) (249) (1,955) (21,234)
Transfer 5 (49,738) 14,086 34,450 - 1,202 -
Depreciation wE - (18,208) (47,077) (1,401) (8,882) (75,568)
Closing net book amount FRERFE 63,697 249,331 362,426 5,893 18,196 699,543
At 31 December 2009 R-ZZNE+-_A=+—H
Cost B 63,697 334,216 650,122 10,228 41,360 1,099,623
Accumulated depreciation ZHIE - (84,885) (287,696) (4,335) (23,164) (400,080)
Net book amount R E 63,697 249,331 362,426 5,893 18,196 699,543

Depreciation expense of HK$64,467,000 (2008:
HK$64,169,000) has been charged in cost of goods sold,
HK$47,000 (2008: HK$53,000) in selling and marketing costs
and HK$11,054,000 (2008: HK$5,698,000) in administrative
expenses.

At 31 December 2009, property, plant and equipment with
net book value of HK$125,081,000 (2008: HK$133,229,000)
were pledged as security for the Group’s short-term bank
borrowings (Note 20).

I & X 75 #64,467,0000 (=2 F
N\ #64,160,0000T) B 5t A 5
EERKA  BEA7T 00T (ZEE
JUEE B #53,0000) BEFT AHEE &
45 HE B A 7R - 1 #511,054,0007T
(ZZE TN\ F B #5,698,0007T) Al
BRFATHAX -

R-_FEAF+-A=+—0 K
T % B 7 #5125,081,0007T (Z T ZE )\
£ ¢ 7 #133,229,0007T) 2 ¥ ¥ - B
ERBECEAREEEHRITE
2 A (M E20) »
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
GEUMBRRME (K)

7 Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued) 7 % \&ERRE(E)

(a) Group (Continued) (a) EFRE(E)
In 2009, the Group did not recognise any impairment RZZENEFE AEEREATE
provision (2008: HK$92,000) in its consolidated financial HERPWEBRTMAHERE(ZZ

statements. = N\ F : FE#92,0007T) °
(b) Company (b) EAT
Electronic
and other
equipment
EFR
Hihz2E
HK$'000
BT
At 1 January 2008 R-ZTEENF—HF—H
Cost BN 278
Accumulated depreciation RETIE (153)
Net book amount BREFE 125
Year ended 31 December 2008 HE-_ZZN\F+-_A=F+—HLFE
Opening net book amount FYIREFEE 125
Additions NE 6
Disposals & (43)
Depreciation e 1)
Closing net book amount FRREFE 87
At 31 December 2008 R_ZEZNF+_A=+—H
Cost BN 284
Accumulated depreciation REIE (197)
Net book amount REFE

Year ended 31 December 2009
Opening net book amount

HE_ZTZNF+T_A=1+—HILFE
FREFE

Depreciation e
Closing net book amount FRREFE

At 31 December 2009
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

R-BBAET-A=t+—8
A
2itiH

Net book amount

BREH(E




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

HEMBRRME (&)

8 Investment Properties 8 HEMXE
Group
xEE
p0[0) 2008
oL PRl T\ F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT
At 1 January n—AH—H 106,800
Fair value gain NFERE 2,198
Exchange difference ERER 4,895
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 36(a)) o & Bt B A | (M 7E36(a) ) (113,893)
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H -

The investment properties represented 11 floors and 12 car parking
spaces in Guo Xin Building, located in Guangzhou, the PRC.

The investment properties were revalued at 31 March 2008 by
Vigers Hong Kong Limited, a firm of independent qualified valuers,
before disposal. Valuation was based on current prices in an active
market for all properties by virtue of the investment approach. The
increase in revaluation was credited to income statement.

The investment properties were disposed of on 31 March 2008
through the disposal of subsidiaries.

ZEREMERUNTEEMNTEEAE
ZT—EgE R+ ZEEf-

HER ZEREVER_ZFZENF=A
=t BA-—RABIAERMBEIRERBE
HEABRAREML -RENREREY
K2 ERMSHEEBENREEETT  EHIG
BEERERTIEK-

EREEHBAT RERENEDN=
FTENF=A=+-AHiE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
ﬁAﬂjﬁiﬁ§mﬂI (nﬁ)

9 Goodwill 9 HE
Group
AEE
HK$’000
BT
At 1 January 2008 RZZEZEZNFE—H—H
Cost and net book amount AR BR DR (B 21,080
Year ended 31 December 2008 HE_ZTZNF+ZA=+—RHLEFE
Opening net book amount FYREFE 21,080
Exchange difference ERER 1,330
Closing net book amount FREEFE 22,410
At 1 January 2009 —EThEFE—H—H
Cost and net book amount EX AR EEFE 22,410
Year ended 31 December 2009 HE-ZZAF+-_A=+T—RHLEFE
Opening net book amount FYREFE
Exchange difference EHER
At 31 December 2009 RZBZAF+=-A=+—H
Cost and net book amount A & BREFE
The goodwill is attributable to the significant synergies expected to EEENE! iﬁﬁﬂ A 7N £2 B U B B R BB B A
arise after the Group’s acquisition of the minority interests of BEARAFIVEREEREREEZERXN
Guangdong Welling Motor Manufacturing Co., Ltd., which is a cash- Rl Rk s F FHEERBEERAFA
generating units (“CGU”) in micro motor business segments located URFBEZMEREBRDBLREEELES
in PRC. fL([REEEBM]) -
The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined based on value- ReELBEMz KBS ENIRERER
in-use calculations. These calculations use pre-tax cash flow FETUEBE BEAEERABAIBESR
projections based on financial budgets approved by management EEANREEEEME AFTFHYRE
covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond the five-year period B)VEH -AFHUININZHEESRENET

are extrapolated using the estimated growth rates stated below. NPtz kAt R R o




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
HEMBRRME (&)

9 Goodwill (Continued) 9 mMEE)
The key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations are as FRERFECETERROT
follows:

2008
—ZTN\F
Gross margin (budgeted gross margin) EMNR(BEEMNE) 8%
Growth rate (weighted average growth rate ERE(REEHHEZAR
used to extrapolate cash flows beyond the budget HEReRE 2 METH
period) ERE) 3%
Discount rate (pre-tax discount rate applied to the cash ~ BEIR R (AR & R = 788
flow projections) ZBATAE IR ) 15%
Management determined budgeted gross margin based on past EEEREAIEBRLAEYMEREE
performance and its expectations for the market development. The BB TEEERNR MERYRABHBMST
growth rates do not exceed the long-term average growth rate for MEBRTE s EHIELHEER - FRIEAY
the markets of micro motors business. The discount rates used are B R AR AL R RBEBES I 2T

pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating to the relevant segments. @[ o




l oc B

Welling Holding Limited

| Annual Report 2009

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
ﬁAﬂjﬁ$ﬁ§mﬂI (nﬁ)

10

Investments in Subsidiaries
The amount represents investments in equity interests in subsidiaries

10 MBASKREA
TARE AR 7 W2 2 R A

of the Company. Details are as follows: FEEWT
Company
xAT
2009 2008
—EEBAE —EETNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
EETT BET T
Investments in subsidiaries: B ARIRE :
— investments in equity interests — at cost, unlisted — R E — HERAE
E 4,500,000 4,500,000
— investments arising from share-based payments (i) — U ERTXHEAZ
% %“(') 4,048 —
— loans to a subsidiary (ii) — BB A A E (i) 98,000 —
— amounts due from subsidiaries (iii) — Mﬂ‘% /D\ Al TR 325,907 —
— amounts due to subsidiaries (iii) — FENM B A T I8 (143,082) (60,477)
— exchange difference —EREER 77,176 77,692
4,862,049 4,517,215

(i)

(i)

The amount represents share-based payments arising from
the grant of share options of the Company to employees of
the subsidiaries for their services provided to the subsidiaries.

The loans to a subsidiary is unsecured, interest bearing,
denominated in HK$ and repayable on 28 December 2012.
The fair value of loans to subsidiaries approximate its carrying
value, which are based on cash flow discounted using a rate
based on the borrowing rate of 3%, which has no material
difference to HIBOR plus appropriate credit rating.

The amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries are unsecured,
interest-free and with no fixed term of repayment, non-trade
related, aged within one year and not past due.

(i

(i)

B IE?E AN TZEE\WWE
REIREE £ 2 AR XX -

MERARERARIEM 578 U
BrE WEAR_ZT—Z—_F+=A
“t+N\HER-MBRARERZAF
BEHEERTERS ﬁ*ﬁﬁ‘g{ﬁ#’ﬂ$
3%  HEeREMRATE -MKEE

HEBRTAEZFREXAZMEE Z
FEEFRAUBEERER -

& W, (R ) MY B8 X B 3RIA B £ 3K
ﬁ ) &?ﬂf\lm%‘ii’xﬁ;ﬁ CIFE 5
RN —FHEERE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
HEMBRRME (&)

10 10 MIBASHKRE (8)

WEARR-FEAF+=A=+—B2

Investments in Subsidiaries (Continued)
The particulars of the subsidiaries at 31 December 2009 are:

Place of incorporation/
establishment and kind of

HEBEWET

Principal activities and

Particulars of issued share

Name legal entity place of operation capital/registered capital Interest held
HEMRI
I B R EERY EBTHRE
&l EEERER REEME, HMERZHE PRt
Directly held:
HERH:
Welling Holding (BVI) Ltd. British Virgin Islands, limited Investment holding 10,000 ordinary shares of 100%
liability company USD1 each
BB AR (BVI)E PR A A) REBELES - BB ER 10,0008 & f& E {B13< 7T 100%
EREFERF 2 EBR
Indirectly held:
EERE -
Guangdong Welling Motor PRC, limited liability company Manufacture and trading of Registered capital 100%
Manufacturing Co., Ltd. (foreign investment motors and transformers USD26,610,000
enterprises)
BRBEERBEERRAA PR BEREMERA BEREBEEMRERER A& A 100%
(5ME 2 2) 26,610,000 7T
Foshan Welling Washer Motor PRC, limited liability company Manufacture and trading of Registered capital 100%
Manufacturing Co., Ltd. (foreign investment motors USD6,400,000
enterprises)
FILTREARERIERRLAT  FE - AREERF HEREES & A 100%
(5B 1 2) 6,400,000%% T
Foshan Welling Electronic & Electric PRC, limited liability company Manufacture and trading of Registered capital 100%
Co., Ltd. (foreign investment motors and transformers USD15,000,000
enterprises)
BLUTHEEFERERAA FEBREEAA BEREEERREER FEfER 100%
(SNE %) 15,000,0003 7T
Welling (Wuhu) Motor Manufacturing PRC, limited liability company Manufacture and trading of Registered capital 100%
Co., Ltd. (foreign investment motors USD17,680,000
enterprises)
BB () BREEFRAR HECBEREMERA BEREEBH GRIE-EN 100%
(ShE %) 17,680,0003% 7T
Huaian Welling Motor Manufacturing PRC, limited liability company Manufacture and trading of Registered capital 100%
Co., Ltd. (foreign investment motors USD5,000,000
enterprises)
HZHBEHREERR AR FEEREMERA HEREES at fift & 755,000,000 7T 100%
(5ME 1 2)
Foshan Welling Material Supply Co., PRC, limited liability company Trading of raw materials Registered capital 100%
Ltd. RMB20,000,000
BT R E M B R R LA FEEREMERQA BERME &R 100%
A R #20,000,0007C
Welling Macao Commercial Offshore Macao Special Administrative Offshore trading Registered Capital Macao 100%
Limited Region, limited liability Pataca 100,000
company
BERPIEEF B EREARAF] BRI RIITER - BERXS i & 23R P9 #100,0007T 100%
AREERA
Welling International Hong Kong Ltd. Hong Kong, limited liability Investment holding 10 ordinary shares of HK$1 100%
company each
BB B EEFR QA B BAREMERARA wEER 100% & i m B & 1T 100%

Z EEk
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
ﬁAﬂjﬁiﬁ§mﬂI (nﬁ)

11

Investments in Associates 11 BEAEKRE
Group
AEHE
HK$’000
BETT
At 1 January 2009 R-ZZTZNF—-—A—H -
Acquisition of associates W & A Al 202,158
Share of associates’ post acquisition result after tax B E R ARG XA 4,808

Including: B

Negative goodwiill EEEES 3,974

1HHEE R

Share of associates’ post acquisition profit after tax

BB R IR R IR T

834

At 31 December 2009

R-ZBZNF+_A=1+—H

206,966

On 26 November 2008, two wholly-owned subsidiaries of the
Company entered into a joint venture agreement in PRC (“PRC JV
Agreement”) and a share subscription agreement (“Subscription
Agreement”) in Hong Kong, through which the Group proposed to
acquire 49% minority interests in four PRC companies (collectively,
the “Target Companies” and the transaction as the “Acquisition”).

Before the Acquisition, the Target Companies were owned by a third
party independent to the Group (the “Domestic Vendor”). The Target
Companies are engaged in manufacturing of casting products.

As at 31 December 2008, the Group paid an amount of
HK$82,463,000 in accordance with the PRC JV Agreement as
capital contribution for the formation of a joint venture company,
namely Shanxi Huaxiang Investment Co., Ltd, incorporated in Shanxi
Province, the PRC. The joint venture company was held by the
Group and the Domestic Vendor as to 49% and 51% respectively as
at 31 December 2008. The Group has also paid consideration of
HK$98 in accordance with the Subscription Agreement, and held
49% interest in Linkgo-HK Limited as at 31 December 2008. Linkgo-
HK Limited is an investment holding company incorporated in Hong
Kong. It is the minority shareholder of certain Target Companies.

M_?§A¢+—ﬂ_+ﬁ5'$“
RE2EMBRARRPEILA ém%%
U¢.A§¢¥W%D&%§mﬂikﬁ
REHZ(RBHZRD Bt A5EZ
ZWEONHATERRA(RBIBERA]
MZBAR 5 RWEEE]) 249% D B R
ok e

AEBZBIE=T ([K
Al BREARKER

Wk = IR HETTRT -
WEFDEBREER
ﬁf%1¢§uu °

RZTEZENF+ZA=+—8 AKEHR
BhREAELEREINSESE
82,463,0007T + BA /& A 32 7 R BT L P A R
MR zEECELAENREFR AR
RHES RZZTENF+=_A=+—8"
REBEAMBEFSRFEZEELEZ
49% R51%MHE - REBMRIBEREHZ
XAREEEST TRZZEZNF+ =
A=+—BREEBEMFER QT 249%
Bam o  BEBEMAABARARA—ERESFE
MRZZB/EERAR WAETEREA
A2 ERR -




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
HEMBRRME (&)

11

Investments in Associates (Continued) 11 BEATIE(E)
However, as the completion of the Acquisition is subject to the future AM BRKBFEESEAEERAKBE
fulfillment of certain terms stated in the PRC JV Agreement by the FHEgEKFTREEGECERZMMM AT
Group and the Domestic Vendor, the amount paid of B3 HETK WS ZE BB
HK$82,463,000 (Note 14) was recognised as prepayment for 82,463,000 (M #F14) R —ZEZENF+ =
investments in associates in the consolidated statement of financial A=+ BHBZHZREAUBMRARTERETE
position as at 31 December 2008. {THEE QA EIREFRIE -
The Acquisition was completed on 28 October 2009. The total WHEEBER _EENE+A-TN\BEK -
consideration of HK$202,158,000 is recognised as the cost for the 7 #202,158,000 7T 2 2 X B B 7 R & 5t
investments in associates, and the Group’s investments in BARBERAN MAEBRBE AR
associates are accounted for using the equity method of accounting WA E RS E(RME2.2(0) 7 i) 7
as described in Note 2.2(c). Bk -
The analysis of the negative goodwill and acquisition cost are as BERELKERAZSTTWOT -
follows:
Fair value
AEE
HK$’000
BETIT
Fair value of net assets acquired FrEEEFE 2 AT E 206,132
Negative goodwill ame (3,974)
Total purchase consideration LUK (E 202,158
Representing: K&
— Consideration paid by cash —UReEIH2ZRE 202,158
= N N SVER =
The summarised financial information of the Group’s principal ARBEIEBERR(2HHARIFLT)Z
PN P . & - P S 48
associates, all of which are unlisted, including the aggregated gross MBAM(RREAE  AfF - K@ RFBR
amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and profit, is as follows: BB
Place of incorporation/ Effective
Name establishment Assets Liabilities Revenues Profit interest held
&l sE M ALSL R 3L B aE af (83 FB AN ERS
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT AT BT BT
Shanxi Huaxiang PRC 805,148 389,312 65,071 3,700 49%
Investment Co., Ltd.
IFREMBEERR AR &
Linkgo-HK' Limited Hong Kong 13,307 71 — 809 49%
BB B R AR BB
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

HEEMBHBRME (&)

12 Available-for-sale Financial Assets

12 TJHEEEMEE

Group
-
HK$’000
EETR

Addition during the year

REERNE

28,393

At 31 December 2009 R-ZTBZEHAEFE+_-_A=+—H

28,393

In April 2009, the wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
Guangdong Welling Motor Manufacturing Co., Ltd., (“GD Welling”)
entered into an investment agreement with Midea and GuangDong
Midea Holding Co., Ltd. (“GD Midea”, a company of which 42.49%
interest is held by Midea) for the purpose of incorporation of Midea
Group Finance Co., Ltd. (the “Finance Company”). The initial
registered capital of the Finance Company is RMB500 million which
shall be contributed by each of GD Welling, Midea and GD Midea in
a proportion 5%, 55% and 40%, respectively. The Finance Company
shall provide a range of financial services as approved by the China
Banking Regulatory Commission (“CBRC”). The Finance Company
was approved by CBRC to prepare its establishment in six months
from 2 July 2009. GD Welling has made capital contribution of
HK$28,393,000 (equivalent to RMB25,000,000) into the Finance
Company on 28 December 2009. As at 31 December 2009, the
Finance Company has not yet commenced any operation.

RZZEZAFNA ARAIZZ2EWER
AERREERHMUEERAATERE
BENRENKERENEEROHARAA
(TEREN] ZOHEE F42.49%# )
RN ENE AdMRIENE@UMH
ERARITHBRAE) HBRR AN
& & A& A K #500,000,000T B ER
BE  EHORERENSELODFIHE
5% ~ 55% K%40% ° Bf %A B Al iR — & 7
KPBERTXEEEREZES((PRERE
gDIEZHIBRG - B %D A F ER
EeMAER ST NFLA ARG E
REBRY R_TTAF+_A=+N
A BERBERATBEARETERE
28,393,0007T (48 & B A K 25,000,000
) RZZETANF+—A=Z+—8 BB
NEN AR E -




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
HEMBRRME (&)

13 Inventories 13 #BE
Group
AEHE
p0[0) 2008
—ETAE YN
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT T
Raw materials B R 219,867 103,895
Work-in-progress ER 5 45,294 19,749
Finished goods (Note (a)) BRK an (M 5E(a)) 404,031 120,244
669,192 243,888
The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included in cost TERLEBEB2FER A EE
of goods sold amounted to HK$3,607,671,000 (2008: 3,607,671,000c(= & & N\ F: & ¥
HK$4,451,476,000) for continuing operations. 4,451,476,0007T) B R & F X I 5t A 88

EERmAAR e

No cost of inventories was recognised as expense or included in WEBERIEEEB 2FERA(ZE

cost of goods sold for discontinued operations (2008: =\ F : 7 #1,205,061,0007T) E R A FH

HK$1,205,061,000). XHFAHEEEMAARNA -

During the year, the Group reduced a provision for inventory of RER XEBEBRIFERBEBEE

HK$1,342,000 (2008: charged HK$420,000). The reversal has been 1,342,000 (Z E T NF: X H B K

included as a reduction of cost of goods sold in the consolidated 420,0007T) * BB E R D iR & W m &k 2 88

income statement. EEmAA o

(@  Asat 31 December 2009, the Group had finished goods that (a) ZEEAFFZA=+—H 'K
are in store at the customers’ location amounted to % EEMEEPHENEXRNE
approximately HK$333,224,000 (2008: HK$79,086,000). No #333,224,0007C (ZEE )\ F : B
sales have been recognised for these finished goods as the 79,086,0007T) ° M 7 & g K [ 3 R
risks and rewards have not been passed to the customers. ERTRPFP WZSENMMEE

WARERER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
GEUMBRRME (K)

14

Trade and Other Receivables 14 B RHEMBEWSR
Group Company
+%E EPN

2009 2008 2009 2008
=L VN —TT)\F L el —TT\F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$'000
BT LAl EYTT ke

Trade receivables (Note (a)) B 5 EWE (M sEa@)) 471,640 407,876
Less: provision for impairment B R E B (B RE))
(Note (c)) (23,353) (18,818)

Trade receivables — net Bl — F5E 448,287 389,058
Notes receivable (Notes (a),(d)) EWERE (M@ - (d) 404,349 394,629 —

Prepayments and other T8 A R B E At e WK
receivables 357,577 211,794
Less: provision for impairment R E b UK FOR B B
of other receivables (Mt 5E(c))
(Note (c)) (445)
Prepaid value-added tax — net ~ T (EF — F 58
(Note 15) (Kt 3E15) 35,186
1,244,954 EERR0CIWIN
Less: non-current portion: VB : FEBNERER 4 -
— Prepayment for investments in - — &8 -t Bt & A 7118 &
associates (Note 11) RIE (B E11) (82,463) -
— Prepayment for property, —FERYE - BE &K
plant and equipment wIE (3,816) (22,392)
As at 31 December 2009 and 2008, the fair values of trade and RZBENFR-ZZFZENFF A=+ —
other receivables of the Group and the Company approximate their A AEBERARGE 2E S KHAMERK

carrying amounts. ZAFEHREEmERS -




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
GFEMBRRME (&

14 Trade and Other Receivables (Continued) 14
As at 31 December 2009 and 2008, prepayments and other

receivables of the Company are denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

NER_ZZENF+_A=1—

%% Hfth FE U =K (48)
¥

=
DA 2 TR RN R A B
ZANE S

Trade and other receivables of the Group as at 31 December 2009 Jﬁ BER_ZEZNFRN_EBEENF
and 2008 are denominated in the following currencies: +ZA=+—HZEB S REMEWRFUT
EEIIE
Group
&
2009 2008
—ETAF NS
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BETT BT T
RMB AR 964,850 544,048
usb ETT 184,432 363,623
EUR BT 94,324 125,356
HK$ B 1,348 1,407
1,244,954 1,034,434
(@  The majority of the Group’s export sales are on letter of credit @ AEEBEZHOHEERBOUERE

or documents against payment, or covered by customers’
standby letters of credit or bank guarantees. The remaining
amounts are with credit terms of 30 days to 90 days. As at 31
December 2009 and 2008, the ageing analysis of the gross
trade receivables and notes receivable respectively are as

IR EFRET AR Z
HERAERFXRRITERERS

# & % 2 5 § 81 R30H £90R - ¥
—EENFR-ZEENE+ A
=t+—HB BS5RURKRERRRE

follows: WE R DT ¢
Group
&
2009 2008
—EThE kYN
HK$°000 HK$'000
HETT BET T
Gross trade receivables: E e .
Within 3 months =@EAMUR 437,480 355,331
3 to 6 months == A 25,672 51,713
Over 6 months NE AU B 8,488 832

471,640 407,876
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
GEUMBRRME (K)

14 Trade and Other Receivables (Continued) 14 B REMEWKIR(E)
)

@)

(Continued) @@ (&
Group
x&EH
2009 2008
—EThE kYN
HK$°000 HK$'000
BETT BET T
Notes receivables: FEW =45 -
Within 3 months “@AAMUA 184,709 192,752
3 to 6 months == A 219,640 201,877
404,349 394,629
As at 31 December 2009 and 2008, no trade receivables by RZZTEZENFRZ_ZEZNF+ZA
were past due but not impaired. =+—H #BMEZEZEKFAHE
RERIE °
As at 31 December 2009, trade and other receivables of 0 RZEZNF+-_A=Z=+—H ' &

approximately HK$352,066,000 (2008: HK$239,307,000)
were impaired. The provision in relation thereto was
approximately HK$23,798,000 (2008: HK$18,907,000) in
2009. The individual impaired receivables mainly relate to past

due payments from customers. There is no recent history of

default for most of the customers, it was assessed that a large

portion of the receivables is expected to be recovered. The

ageing of these receivables is as follows:

5 K H i J& UK 49 7 352,066,000
(= T T )\ F 7 #239,307,000
TERE R_ZETNFEZHEE
##) 78 123,798,0007T (ZEZT )\ :
75 #18,907,0007T) ° & Rl ik {8 FE U
REEHRRTFBANREH KNI
AEPHBAYEE /R BTG
KES 5 FEW A B AT U ) o it &

Within 3 months
3 to 6 months
Over 6 months

=EANRA
==REA
NE A £

JEWR 2 BRECTAT -

Group

K
2009 2008
—ETNE YIS
HK$°000 HK$'000
EBETT BET T
324,622 187,147
18,956 51,328
8,488 832
352,066 239,307




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
HEMBRRME (&)

14 Trade and Other Receivables (Continued) 14 B REMEWKIR(E)
()  (Continued) © (&)
Movements on the provision for impairment of trade B 5 FE W R K H b FE R 2 R (B B
receivables and other receivables are as follows: BN
Group
K
p0[0) 2008
e L B T )\
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT T
Beginning of the year F 1) 18,907 83,251
Provision for impairment BEEE 15,755 15,066
Bad debts written off 2 B W 5 (176) (2,373)
Provisions written back e (13,193) (6,168)
Exchange difference EREE 2,505 5,260
Disposal of subsidiaries HEKE AR - (76,129)
End of the year F 18,907
The creation and release of provision for impaired receivables M RER CERFOAERED T
have been included in administrative expenses in the ArEd W am Tk 2T RA S A (K
consolidated income statement (Note 26). Amounts charged 26) o K TEEA T Be YR B FE AR & - Al
to the allowance account are generally written off when there TABBRZSE —MREME -
is no expectation of recovering additional cash.
The provisions written back represented the subsequent BORESAEBKE ZBITEER
collection of previously provided impaired amounts. B
The other classes within trade and other receivables do not B 5 &EMERFzEMERNTE
contain impaired assets. EERBEEE-
(d)  The balance represents bank acceptance notes with maturity o BEL#HA/EARIEZRITE
periods within six months. HER-
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is RBEEAHZEREERR A Ll
the fair value of each class of receivables mentioned above. EHEEWRRZAFE - REEILH®
The Group does not hold any collateral as security. BAEEREARERR -
15 Prepaid Value-added Tax — Net 15 TAMIEER — F8

The Group has paid input value-added taxes (“VAT”) to the State Tax
Bureau for the goods purchased from its suppliers. In accordance
with the relevant PRC tax regulations, these VAT can be offset with
the output VAT arising from the sales in the future but are not
refundable. The balances at 31 December 2009 and 2008
represented net input VAT after offsetting the output VAT payable by
the Group for the domestic sales made during the year.

AEESRBARERAZEMABERNE R
SXNHERZER(BEN]) - REMEBT
BRUCER 2 FRBERATAREHIREK
HEEL ZHAEEN BETAURE R
—ETNFR-_FTENF+_A=F+—H
ZREBTERREN MR ASERFEAR
BINHEEMEN 2 HBRERR 2FE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

HEEMBHBRME (&)

16 Pledged Bank Deposits

Certain bank balances were pledged against bank acceptance notes
issued by the Group and these deposits will be released upon the
maturity of the bank acceptance notes issued. These pledged bank
deposits bear interest at bank saving rates of 1.98% per annum
(2008: ranging from 1.98% to 3.78% per annum). All pledged bank

deposits are denominated in RMB.

16 EHRFRITHER
BT RATA S IE B AR BTS2 R

ARAEBRZER MEZSEFEIERBEZ
IRITREZIRD AR - ZSEHEHR
TERRRITERENE1.98% (ZFZN
F o EFRNT1.98%23.78% %) 5H 8 °
FBEEEMRITFERAAREE -

Total pledged bank deposits
Less: Maturity period within 3 months (Note 17)

Maturity period over 3 months and less than 9 months

17 Cash and Cash Equivalents

2009 2008
—EThE kYIS
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BET T
BRI T RATE 141,127 145,698
B =8 A AR EIHE (B 5E17) (92,046) (84,678)
—EAANEELRAMEA
EI| B8 61,020
17 RERBELEZEEY
Group Company
XEEH AAT
2009 2008 2009 2008
L B TN\ el b — BT )\
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BET T HBETT BET T

Bank deposits and cash on hand
Pledged bank deposits with
HRITFER
(Bt 3E16)

maturity period within 3
months (Note 16)

RITFERRFEREE
ZEANARIEZEE

165,432 132,446 217

92,046 84,678

257,478 217,124

At 31 December 2009, cash at banks and pledged bank deposits
with maturity period within 3 months of the Group in the total amount
of HK$244,618,000 (2008: HK$190,610,000) were kept in bank
accounts of PRC banks of which the remittance of funds were

subject to foreign exchange control.

The effective interest rate on bank deposits was 1.25% per annum

(2008: 1.19% per annum).

RZZBZNF+A=+—HB FAKEZ
RITFERR=ZBEARNIBM 2 EEIFRTE
XA R S #E244,618,000L (Z 2\ & -
7 #190,610,0007T) * Jh 7 IR 7 £ 7R B 4R
TZRTEPT REESZEHATI
BE 5 AR IR -

BROTGERZERFNEE125%(ZFEEN
FFERER119%) -




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

HEMBRRME (&)

18 Share Capital and Share Options 18 [z A % B B HE
(@) Share capital (a) B&A&
Authorised
Ordinary shares of
HK$0.1 each
EEBRE
BREEAES AT ZEBER
Number of
shares
('000) HK$’000
& 178 B
(F1) BET T
At 1 January 2008 R-ZZEENEFE—-—HF—AH 10,000,000 1,000,000
Increase in authorised share capital (i) 5 T B 7N 38 0(i) 10,000,000 1,000,000
At 31 December 2008 and NR-ZEBEZENF+_A=1+—A8 K
31 December 2009 —EEAF+_-_A=+—H 20,000,000 2,000,000

Issued and fully paid
Ordinary shares of

HK$0.1 each
EFTERHERE

SREEREITZLER

Number of

shares
('000) HK$’000

‘e B
(Fh&) BETT

At 1 January 2008, 31 December 2008 RZZEZENF—HA—A-
and 31 December 2009 ZEENFE+ZA=+—HEK

—ZEENF+TZA=+T—H 13,479,314 1,347,931
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
GEUMBRRME (K)

18 Share Capital and Share Options (Continued)

(a)

Share capital (Continued)

(a)

18 A RBIXE (&)
B (48)

Company
Issued and fully paid
Ordinary shares of

HK$0.1 each
EATF
ERTRARKRAE
BREEEBATZEBER
Number of
shares
('000) HK$'000
fig 7 &1 B
(FR%) BB T
At 1 January 2008 R-TENE—A—H 4,725,991 472,599
Issue of consideration shares (i) BITRERMD ) 8,753,323 875,332
At 31 December 2008 and 31 December HR-_ZENF+_A=+—HxN
2009 “ETEAFT A=+ — 13,479,314 1,347,931

(i)

Pursuant to a shareholder resolution passed on 18
March 2008, the authorised capital of the Company
was increased from HK$1,000,000,000 to
HK$2,000,000,000 by the creation of an additional
10,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.1 each ranking pari
passu with the then existing shares.

On 31 March 2008, 8,753,323,092 shares were allotted
and issued to the Vendor as consideration shares at a
price of HK$0.414 per share upon the completion of
the Transaction, the total proceeds of approximately
HK$3,623,876,000 are presented as the increase in
share capital and share premium of the Group by
approximately HK$875,332,000 and
HK$2,748,544,000 respectively. The ordinary shares
issued as part of the Transaction are presented as if it
had always been issued, and the deemed distribution
of HK$3,623,876,000 as a result of the consideration
issuance was debited to the merger reserve (Note
19(d)) using the principles of merger accounting as
prescribed in HKAG 5 in the consolidated financial
statement of the Group.

BE_ZZENF=A+ BB
BZRRIRFEER  BBIEMNE
47N0,000,000,0008% & % M &
BHOATT Z R - KRR ZIE
TE % 78 /@ 7% #51,000,000,0007T
# Hn Z % #2,000,000,0007T °
EzRDAES TR
BRH EBHERMA

R-—ZTEENE=Z/F=+—8"
FRIEXSHTHE  BIRER
B4 2 BB M E B
% [ %% 178,753,323,0920% A% {3
ERRERG - IS RIBERE
# 7 %3,623,876,0007T * 5 7
2 AREBRAIG LB
875,332,0007T K& M 17 ' & 1%
hn %) 7 #2,748,544,0007T ° 7%
BERGPBITZ2EBREZT
MR ADKE—HIEIT HET
REBRGMELEZRIED R
#3,623,876,0007C © B & & B
QT IESI EEHATRTE 2 A B
BRRA ERAEBREAME
k2 A OHREER MR T
19(d)) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
HEMBRRME (&)

18 Share Capital and Share Options (Continued)

(b)

Share options

The Company adopted a share option scheme as approved
by the shareholders of the Company at an extraordinary
general meeting held on 27 June 2003 (the “Share Option
Scheme”).

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is for the Company
to attract, retain and motivate talented participants to strive for
future developments and expansion of the Group and to
provide the Company with a flexible means of giving incentive
to, rewarding, remunerating, compensating and/or providing
benefits to the participants. Eligible participants of the Share
Option Scheme include the directors (including executive
directors and non-executive directors) or employees of the
Group, consultants or advisors of the Group, substantial
shareholders or employees of substantial shareholders of the
Company, associates of directors or chief executives or
substantial shareholders of the Company, employees or
directors of suppliers or customers of the Group, discretionary
objects of a discretionary trust established by employees or
directors of the Group, as to be determined by the board at
its absolute discretion within the above categories.

The maximum numbers of shares which may be issued upon
the exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes adopted by the Company must not in
aggregate exceed 30% of the shares in issue from time to
time. The total number of shares which may be issued upon
the exercise of all options to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares of
the Company in issue as at the date of adoption of the Share
Option Scheme, but the Company may seek approval of its
shareholders in general meeting to refresh the 10% limit under
the Share Option Scheme.

18 RAERBIRE (&)

(b)

RE Rt
ARARRMBHARABRN =-F
EZFRA-TERBITZRRE
ARE EHE 2 B IR R & (X
westaEl -

BRESAEZEN EEARAR
S BRBMABBESIBRC2RER
AEBZRARERIBEREGS 7
WEARBENEE T2 TAAL2
HERMER BE S WMk
SERET - BREABZAERS
HEBRASBZEZ(BRATE
ERGERITER)RER  AKEZ
BRXEXZBAL ARAZE
ERRIHEREE ARBZES
RETBAB®EERIR Z ([ B
BAXEEHERIEFPZER
FEF AEEEEHREEFHMRY
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
GEUMBRRME (K)

18 Share Capital and Share Options (Continued)

(b)

Share options (Continued)

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the share options granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company
to each participant in any 12-month period up to the date of
grant must not exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at the date of grant. Any further grant of share options in
excess of such limit is subject to the approval of shareholders
in general meeting of the Company.

Share options granted under the Share Option Scheme to
director, chief executive or substantial shareholder of the
Company, or to any of their associates, are subject to
approval of the independent non-executive directors of the
Company (excluding any independent non-executive director
who is also the grantee of the options). In addition, any share
options granted to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company, or to
any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate value
(based on the closing price of the Company’s shares at the
date of each grant) in excess of HK$5,000,000, within any
12-month period up to and including the date of such grant,
are subject to shareholders’ approval in general meeting of
the Company.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
28 days from the date of the offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise
period of the share options granted is determinable by the
Directors and ends on a date which is not later than 10 years
from the date of the offer of the share options.

The exercise price of the share options will be at least the
highest of (i) the closing price of the Company’s shares as
stated in daily quotations sheet of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on the date of the
offer for grant, which must be a business day; (i) the average
closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of the offer for grant, which
must be a business day; and (iii) the nominal value of the
Company’s share.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
HEMBRRME (&)

18 Share Capital and Share Options (Continued)

(b)

Share options (Continued)

On 30 July 2007, 9,500,000 share options were granted to
certain directors and employees at an exercise price of
HK$0.78 per share. The share options were exercisable
immediately on the date of grant and will expire on 29 July
2017.

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed by the shareholders
of the Company at an extraordinary general meeting held on 9
December 2008, the 10% limit under the Share Option
Scheme was refreshed (“Refreshment”). Upon the approval of
the Refreshment, a maximum of 1,347,931,411 shares of the
Company, being 10% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the date of approval of the Refreshment, may
be issued upon exercise of the share options to be granted
under the Share Option Scheme and all other share option
schemes of the Company.

On 9 January 2009, 375,000,000 share options were granted
to certain directors and employees at an exercise price of
HK$0.157 per share subject to a vesting scale in four tranches
of 256% each and the achievement of the Company’s
performance target as set out in the note below and these
options will expire on 31 March 2017.

During the year, no share options were exercised by Directors
of the Company or employees of the Group and 25,000,000
share options were lapsed upon termination of employment of
an employee. As at 31 December 2009, a total of
359,500,000 share options granted to certain Directors of the
Company and employees of the Group were outstanding
(2008: 9,500,000 share options).
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mae M

18 Share Capital and Share Options (Continued)

BHR=RME (&)

18 RAERBIRE (&)

(b) Share options (Continued) (b) FERRHE(4E)
Movements of the share options granted under the Share REBEE_ZEZNF+_A=+—H
Option Scheme during the year ended 31 December 2009 IHTFEFEAXN - RIBEBERESZRZE 2
were as follows: BREZZSHNOT
Options held Options Options Closing price
at granted lapsed Options held at Exercise immediately
Date of 1 January during the during the 31 December price per before the
Name grant 2009 year (note) year 2009 option Exercisable period date of grant
R-ZBEAE REARH R-BEAE RE
—HA—H ZRBRE NERXY t-A=+-B SHERE 1R B Hn
21 RHBH HAEZERE (Bt &) ZHERE #HREZBRE TEE TR ZHE
HK$ HK$
ek ks
Directors BE
Mr. Chan Wai Dune  F 4 55 7t 4 30/07/2007 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000* 0.78  30/07/2007-29/07/2017 0.77
(resigned on (R=—ZThF  09/01/2009 - 5,000,000 - 5,000,000* 0.157  01/04/2010-31/03/2017 0.151
31 July 2009) tA=+—81
BHE)
Mr. Lam Ming Yung #RE3 & % & 30/07/2007 2,000,000 - — 2,000,000 0.78  30/07/2007-29/07/2017 0.77
09/01/2009 — 5,000,000 - 5,000,000 0.157  01/04/2010-31/03/2017 0.151
Ms. Chen Chunhua FR&TEZ T 30/07/2007 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000 0.78  30/07/2007-29/07/2017 0.77
09/01/2009 — 5,000,000 - 5,000,000 0.157  01/04/2010-31/03/2017 0.151
Mr. Cai Qiwu BHERLAE 09/01/2009 — 68,000,000 - 68,000,000 0.157  01/04/2010-31/03/2017 0.151
Mr. Jiang Deqing ZEBEE 09/01/2009 — 36,000,000 - 36,000,000 0.157  01/04/2010-31/03/2017 0.151
Mr. Qu Fei EREE 09/01/2009 — 22,000,000 — 22,000,000 0.157  01/04/2010-31/03/2017 0.151
Mr. Gao Fazhong BB REE 09/01/2009 — 25,000,000 - 25,000,000 0.157  01/04/2010-31/03/2017 0.151
Ms. Tan Xuemei EERTL 09/01/2009 — 5,000,000 — 5,000,000 0.157  01/04/2010-31/03/2017 0.151
Employees [-3=]
In aggregate & 30/07/2007 3,500,000 - — 3,500,000 0.78  30/07/2007-29/07/2017 0.77
09/01/2009 — 204,000,000 (25,000,000) 179,000,000 0.157  01/04/2010-31/03/2017 0.1561
Total At 9,500,000 375,000,000 (25,000,000) 359,500,000

*

Notes:

The options were lapsed on 1 February 2010.

The consideration for each of the grants above was HK$1. The options

granted on 9 January 2009 shall be exercisable during the option period

subject to a vesting scale in four tranches of 25%

each and the

achievement of the performance target of the net profit attributable to the

owners of the Company of the relevant period as set out below:

1. The first 25% of the options granted to each grantee shall be

exercisable within seven years after 31 March 2010 provided that

the net profit attributable to the owners of the Company for the

financial year ended 31 December 2009 as disclosed in the final

results announcement of the Company is not less than 100% of

the net profit attributable to the owners of the Company for the

financial year ended 31 December 2008 (excluding the results from
discontinued business) (“Net Profit of 2008”);

C BEBBERCT-TEA-BRM-
GEX

PEHBEEZREABIL - RFTA
F-ANBRHEZ BRERTRBRERRTE
HRR T E6% LGB REEFBE
MAAREEABGLAFNZRRBE:

1. HE%RTEERRAZBRETR _-F
—ZEFEZAZ T - HUREFRITE -
EBRBEADAZFEANMARER
E_FFAFT_A=+—-BLLHEF
EARARBERANEBELENTIRBES
EENFT AT —HILEFMRFER
REFEAABELF(TRBIERBER
e EB 2 2B (2 N\FHFD)
2100%




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

HEEMBRERM

2 (&)

18 Share Capital and Share Options (Continued)

(b)

Share options (Continued)

2. The second 25% of the options granted to each grantee shall be
exercisable within six years after 31 March 2011 provided that the
net profit attributable to the owners of the Company for the
financial year ended 31 December 2010 as disclosed in the final
results announcement of the Company is not less than 150% of

the Net Profit of 2008;

3. The third 25% of the options granted to each grantee shall be
exercisable within five years after 31 March 2012 provided that the
net profit attributable to the owners of the Company for the
financial year ended 31 December 2011 as disclosed in the final
results announcement of the Company is not less than 200% of

the Net Profit of 2008; and

4. The remaining 25% of the options granted to each grantee shall be
exercisable within four years after 31 March 2013 provided that the
net profit attributable to the owners of the Company for the
financial year ended 31 December 2012 as disclosed in the final
results announcement of the Company is not less than 280% of

the Net Profit of 2008.

The fair value of the options are determined used the
“Binomial Valuation model” (the “Model”). Key assumptions of
the Model are set out below:

Date of Grant: 9 January 2009

Risk-free rate: 1.299%

Expected dividend yield: 3%

Expected volatility of the market price of the 52.34%
Company’s shares:

Expected option life: 8.2 years

Fair value as at the date of grant HK$25,229,000

(approximately):

The Model requires the input of subjective assumptions,
including the volatility of share price. As changes in subjective
input assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimate,
in the directors’ opinion, the Model does not necessarily
provide a reliable single measure of the fair value of share
options.

18 RAERBIRE (&)

(b)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
GREUMBHRRME (K)

19 Other Reserves 19 H b & E
(a) Group (a) #EKME
Enterprise Share
Share Statutory General  expansion option  Exchange Merger
premium reserve fund reserve fund fund reserve reserve reserve Total
EE - FE
RiFiE HEEE  BEEE  BRES BREHE ERRE  AHHE &t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETR  ABTr AT B¥Tr B%Tr A% B%T

Note (c) Note (c) Note (c) Note (d)
B (c) Bt E(c) B E(c) Hi 55 ()
Balance at 1 January 2008 WMZ-BFNF—-RF—HEEHE 3,336,373 663 73,436 70,775 7,578 (1579)  (3,639,249) (152,003)
Disposal of subsidiaries & B 8 2 7] (P 7%36(a) )

(Note 36(a) - - (31,179) (16,958) - - - 48,137)
Deemed contribution arising B HE 2 HIEE B

from the Transaction (P =£36(a) )

(Note 36(a) - - - - - - 404,351 404,351
Translation difference ERLZE - - - - - 225 - 225
Transfer to statutory reserve  BREZEATHE - - 16,935 6,550 - - - 23,485
Balance at 31 December R-ZBEN\E

2008 +=A=+-B&6 3,336,373 663 59,192 60,367 7,578 (1,354)  (3,234,898) 227,921
Balance at 1 January 2009 WRZ-BBhE—-A—B&EE REKIE 59,192 60,367 (1,354)  (3,234,898) 227,921
Employee share option scheme (& 8 & i 1 &)

— value of — FiiRgt

services provided MR BE - - 10,269
Translation difference ERZR - - 30
Transfer to statutory reserve  EEEEF G 21,272 11,074 33,823

Balance at 31 December R-ZBEBAE
2009 +-A=+-B&8& 3,336,373 80,464 17,847 (1,324) (3,234,898) 272,043
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

HEEMBRERM

(b)

it (4)

- —
19 Other Reserves (Continued) 19 Hib & (8)
Company (b) FATF
Share Total
Share option Exchange other  Retained
premium reserve reserve reserve  earnings Total
Hib G
B GE BRERE ERRHE aE REERA &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT B%T BTt BT BT A¥Tr
Balance at 1 January 2008 RZFTNE-A—HEH 587,829 7,578 - 595,407 (1,116,676)  (521,269)
Profit for the year FEAHE - - - — 1,222,770 1,222,770
Translation difference ERER - - 70,228 70,228 - 70,228
Issue of consideration shares BT ER®D (F318)

(Note 18(a)) 2,748,544 - — 2,748,544 — 2,748,544

Balances at 31 December 2008 RZZTN\GF+_A=+—R&H 3,336,373 7,578 70,228 3,414,179 106,094 3,502,273
Representing: HER:
2008 proposed final dividend ZET)\GRERORSE -
Others Hit 106,094
Retained earnings as at R-FENE+-A=+—-B2ZREEF

31 December 2008 106,094

(c)

Balance at 1 January 2009 RZZESNF-A—HEH
Loss for the year FEER
Employee share option scheme EERERETE

— value of services provided —FRERBZEE
Translation difference ERER

Balances at 31 December 2009 RZFFNF+-RA=1+—-B&#
Representing: HER:

2009 proposed final dividend ZZTNFRARBRE

Others Hit

RZZSNFTZA=+-BZREEF

Retained earnings as at
31 December 2009

The Company’s PRC subsidiaries are required to follow the
laws and regulations of the PRC and their articles of
association. These subsidiaries are required to provide for
certain statutory funds, namely, general reserve fund and
enterprise expansion fund, which are appropriated from net
profit after taxation but before dividend distribution based on
the local statutory accounts prepared in accordance with
accounting principles and relevant financial regulations
applicable to enterprises established in the PRC. These PRC
subsidiaries are required to allocate at least 10% of its net
profit to the reserve fund until the balance of such fund has
reached 50% of its registered capital. Such appropriations are
determined at the discretion of the directors. The general
reserve fund can only be used, upon approval by the relevant
authority, to offset accumulated deficit or increase capital.

3,336,373

3,336,373

(c)

70,228 3,414,179

106,094
(1,309)

3,520,273
(1,309)

= 10,269
(554)

10,269
(554) (554)

69,674 3,423,894 104,785 3,528,679

104,785
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FHE IR 2 LA R AR A o % AL A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
GEUMBRRME (K)

19 Other Reserves (Continued)

(d)

Merger reserve represents the difference between the
consideration paid for the acquisition under common control,
and the aggregate nominal value of share capital/paid-up
capital of the subsidiaries comprising the Group contributed
by the owners of the Company. As a result of the Transaction,
net deemed distribution of approximately HK$3,219,525,000
are debited to the merger reserve, comprising the deemed
distribution of approximately HK$3,623,876,000 arising from
the issuance of consideration shares to the Vendor (Note
18(a)), and deemed contribution of approximately
HK$404,351,000 arising from the disposal of the Disposed
Group and the assignment of the net receivables from
Disposed Group to the Vendor (Note 36(a)) as part of the
consideration of the Transaction .

19 Hitf#is (&)

(d)

G OHEE B IBTE SR A 2 ) T W B B A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
HEMBHRRRME (8)

20 Borrowings 20 &=
Group
xE
p0[0) 2008
“ETAE kY
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT
Non-current FEEP A
Long-term bank borrowings, secured RHRITER — BEA 160,000 60,000
Current BN #
Short-term bank borrowings, secured MERITER — BEM 469,102 611,608
629,102 671,608
At 31 December 2009, the Group’s bank borrowings were repayable A +-RA=+—H  XN&EBIR
as follows:
2008
ZEENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
EETT BT T
Within one year —FLA 469,102 611,608
110 2 years —EME 60,000 60,000
2to 3 years MEZF 100,000 —

629,102 671,608
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

HEEMBHBRME (&)

20 Borrowings (Continued) 20 &= (48)

The exposure of the Group’s borrowings to interest rate changes
and the contractual repricing dates are as follows:

AEBZEREBZANEEHRARLREH
EMTERABOT

Group

AEH
2009 2008
—TTAE YIS
HK$’000 HK$'000
EETR BETT

Borrowings with fixed rate subject to repricing date as: TFRERXZEH EEEH -

6 months or less NEASAT 453,928 306,062

6 months to 1 year ~NEAE—F - 159,019
453,928 465,081

Borrowings with floating rate as: FEER

6 months or less NEAEAT 175,174 206,527
629,102 671,608

The effective interest rates of the above floating rate borrowings at
the end of the reporting period were 4.29% per annum (2008: 6.66%
per annum).

Property, plant and equipment with net book value of
HK$125,081,000 (2008: HK$133,229,000) and leasehold land and
land use right with net book value of HK$84,026,000 (2008:
HK$85,965,000) have been pledged as security for the Group’s
short-term bank borrowings (Note 6 and Note 7).

RFpEHETHEN  LRFEERZER
FEH R BLIOH(ZTETNF: FH K
6.66% ) °

BR % B 75 #5125,081,000 (Z T\ F -
75 1#£133,229,0007T) 2 ¥ % - BB KR AE -
LA K B T 3 (B 7% 84,026,000 (Z T Z )N\
F : A #85,965,0007T) < FHE i Kk T #h
FERAEEEARAEBRARITERZ KT
U ETR




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

HEMBRRME (&)

20 Borrowings (Continued)
The carrying amounts of short-term bank borrowings and the long-

term borrowings approximate their fair values. The fair values of
long-term borrowings is based on cash flows discounted using a
rate based on the borrowings rate of 1.63% (2008: 2.45%). The
carrying amounts of the borrowings are denominated in the following

20 fE (&)

RERTERRRPERZETERLAN
FEEE REERZAFEDIBREMER
FIE163% (ZZTTNF :245%)  ®&E®
MEWRAE - BRZEEBENTIER
RS

currencies.
Group
xE
2009 2008
=L IPEN —TI A
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT
RMB AR 453,928 601,382
HK$ 7 160,000 60,000
usD E 15,174 10,226

629,102 671,608
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
GEUMBHRRME (K)

21 Trade and Other Payables 21 B 5 & HihrE T
Group Company
AEEH AATF

2009 2008 2009 2008

=LA VRN —TT)/\F LRl —TT/\F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BETIT BEFT AW TIT

Trade payables (Note (a)) B 5 RN (@) 1,932,767 1,202,757

Notes payable (Notes (a), (o) M Z 4% (Mt k(@) - (b)) 399,944 369,342
2,332,711 1,672,099
Provision for staff welfare SIRAM&
and bonus TEAL BB 79,884 44,824 -
Accruals TEiIRE A 32,875 18,046 2,154
Advances from customers W EFERR 12,882 6,136 —
Others Hip 140,446 69,245 439

@ m»r=

(@ At 31 December 2009, the ageing analysis of the trade

payables and notes payable of the Group was as follows:

2,598,798 1,705,350

EEAF+T_A=+—H K

SEZESRERANRRENERZE

ROTAT

Group

%
2009 2008
—EBEBAE —EENEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BEF T
Within 3 months =@EANUA 1,582,283 828,682
3 to 6 months —Z=NAA 691,986 607,377
Over 6 months NEA M E 58,442 136,040
2,332,711 1,572,099

The balance represents non-interest bearing bank
acceptance notes issued by the Group with maturity periods
of less than nine months. As at 31 December 2009, certain
notes payable were pledged by bank deposits of
approximately HK$141,127,000 (2008: HK$145,698,000)
(Note 16).

B
%%%f'
RZBEAF+=ZA=+—8"
TENEZEBUAERTER
141,127,000 (= T T )\ F:
145,698,0007T) 1E & H # (M 5E16) o

ﬁ%?%$%§§ﬁ?\§+%ﬁﬁﬁ
FHHER AN NE

4 ﬁﬂ%
it




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
GEMBRRME (&)

22 Derivative Financial Instruments

Commodity future contracts (a) 7 gn 2
Foreign exchange forward
contracts (b)

/\
=R

#(a)
SNERHAE L(b)

22

2009
—EEBAE
Assets
&HE
HK$’000
BT

21,270

4,438

25,708

The Group has entered into various copper and aluminum
future contracts to manage the fluctuation of copper and
aluminum price which did not meet the criteria for hedge
accounting. Changes in the fair value of the non-hedging
copper and aluminum future contracts amounting to
approximately HK$21,253,000 (Note 25), were credited to the
income statement during the year (2008: HK$22,862,000
charged to the income statement).

The notional principal amounts of outstanding commodity
future contract at 31 December 2009 were HK$198,455,000
(2008: HK$48,584,000).

The Group has entered into various foreign exchange forward
contracts to manage the fluctuation of foreign currencies
which did not meet the criteria for hedge accounting. Changes
in the fair value of non-hedging foreign exchange forward
contracts amounting to approximately HK$3,534,000 (Note
25), were credited to the income statement during the year
(2008: HK$7,773,000 charged to the income statement).

The notional principal amounts of the outstanding forward
foreign exchange contracts at 31 December 2009 were
HK$574,874,000 (2008: HK$219,072,000).

The carrying amounts of the commodity future contracts and foreign
exchange forward contracts are the same as their fair values.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the fair
value of the derivative assets in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

fTE£mT A
Group
&
2008
—TT)NF
Liabilities Assets Liabilities
Bf& BE =R
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T BT T
— 22,862
— 7,773
— 30,635

AEECT VS EERIBHEALD
EUABERMEREBESES  BRF
EEREHHRGHEE - FFEHH
ZHRBHEAHNZAFERZFHY
7 #21,253,0007T (ft 5225) * R F KW
FABRBER(ZEENGF B
22,862,0007T 1 i &= 2= $0BR) ©

RZZEZEAFF+ZA=Z+—HILRK
HEmRBEANZEELSSHE
75 75 #198,455,000T (Z 2 T )\ F ¢
7 #548,584,0007T) °

REECDLZBEIIERBFELY
EUEEIIERS  BTHFEER
TES et R - JE1EY b 2 SN E
BHANZAFTEEZH OB
3,534,0007T (Kff 5E25) * I F A& A
WmKR(ZEZENF - B 7,773,000
T W R INBR) o

R-ZZBEBAFE+_A=+—BiIk
HENERBPANZEELRASSH
538 #574,874,0007T (Z BT )\ 4 ¢
% #219,072,0007T) °

?ﬁuuiﬁ‘b/\%ﬁ&ﬁl\lﬁﬁ%ﬁé%@ZEﬁ@@éﬁi

NFERE

RBESARCEAEERRATEEER

4= AH
RAE

MBHRRKRZ RFE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
GEUMBRRME (K)

23 Deferred Income Tax — Group 23 BEFEH — FEEH
Deferred income tax is calculated in full on temporary differences BELEMSHRABABELAMEREZEERASE
under the liability method using taxation rates applicable to the BETRARBERAZRERYE -

companies comprising the Group.

The movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year, A& EBAEMBRBE B AR RNIKE H A 6
without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances within the Al EEHBEENEBERTFAZEE W
same tax jurisdiction, is as follows: T
Deferred income tax liabilities to be released within 12 R+-EANERZEZEFRGHERE:
months:
Undistributed
profits of PRC Fair value
subsidiaries gain Total
thE B 2 T AFE
2Z &K 5 i F g3 &3t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T BT T BT T

At 1 January 2008

RZZEZENF—AH—H — — —
Charged to consolidated REERERA
income statement me 6,305 — 6,305
At 31 December 2008 R-ZEEZNF+_A=1+—H

Charged to consolidated RiralERA
income statement Mk
Exchange differences EHER

At 31 December 2009 R-ZEBEZNF+_A=+—8H




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
HEMBHRRME (8)

23 BEFEH - ARE(8R)
R+=BARKEZBEREHER

23 Deferred Income Tax — Group (Continued)
Deferred income tax assets to be recovered within 12 months:

Impairment Fair value Unpaid
losses losses accruals Total
BEBE ATFESE RGEREA &t
HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T BT T BET T
At 1 January 2008 N_EBEENF—H—H - — — —
Credited to consolidated R4z & W R KT A
income statement 3,598 4,289 — 7,887
At 31 December 2008 RZZEZENF
+=—A=+—8H
Credited/(charged) to RizAalERTAS
consolidated income (F0B)
statement (4,150)
Exchange differences EH =& (3
At 31 December 2009 NZZETNF
+=-—A=+—8”
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

HEMBEBRME (&)

24 Provision for Warranty 24 ERREEE
The movement of warranty provision was analysed as follows: ERREREBZEHSTWOT
Group
&
2009 2008
—TTAF YA
HK$°000 HK$’'000
EETT BT T
Beginning of the year F 1) 73,003
Charge for the year (Note 26) FEETIR (M 5E26) 38,129
Exchange difference N =R 3,014
Less: Amounts utilised B BB ANKE (4,202)
Less: Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 36(a)) B E BT B A ) (M 7E36(a) ) (109,944)
End of the year F -
25 Other Gains/(Losses) — Net 25 Hiis (B5E) — %8
2009 2008
bk N T\ F
HK$°000 HK$'000
EETT BT T
Government grants (i) IR 7 #68 BE () 5,272 1,413
Derivative financial instruments: TEemIE:
— fair value gain/(losses) on commodity future — TE& BIRIEE RS EE >
contracts not qualified for hedge ERBEENAFERS
accounting (Note 22) (&5 18) (Fff 5222) (22,862)
— fair value gain/(losses) on foreign exchange — A& BKRIEYH h @ ERE Y
forward contracts not qualified for hedge IREISME A QR FERE
accounting (Note 22) (B8 (M sx22) 3,534 (7,773)
— realised gain/(loss) on commodity future —EBERARBEESN
contracts (i) Uzt (FE18) (i) 25,267 (35,957)
— realised gain on foreign exchange forward —— B &I 2 & Hi 4 [&E
contracts (i) A K9 U (i) 370 25,770
Exchange loss i 5 518 (5,498) (44,807)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEDE  BE &
equipment HEEE (12,760) (2,907)
Penalty income Silg A 1,408 2,423
Others HAth 871 4,338

39,717

(80,362)




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
GEMBRRME (&)

25 Other Gains/(Losses) — Net (Continued)

26

M

(i)

(i)

The amount represents the subsidy granted by and received
from local government authorities in the PRC for
encouragement of export.

The Group entered into various copper and aluminum future
contracts to manage the fluctuation of commodity price which
did not meet the criteria for hedge accounting. Realised gain
on commodity future contracts amounted to HK$25,267,000
represented the gain relating to the copper and aluminum
future contracts settled during the year (2008: realised loss
HK$35,957,000).

The Group entered into various foreign exchange forward
contracts to manage the fluctuation of foreign currencies
which did not meet the criteria for hedge accounting. Realised
gain on foreign exchange forward contracts amounted to
HK$370,000 (2008: HK$25,770,000).

Expenses by Nature
Expenses included in cost of goods sold, selling and marketing

costs, administrative expenses and other operating expenses and

profit for the year from discontinued operation are analysed as

follows:

(a)

From continuing operations

25 Hthias (B518)— B8 (&)
() B % # 4 M B o 0 o o A 4

AEENH DR R -

(i) AEBMEFTAZHERKIRPESL -
EUEERQRERED BTRFE
BERIEERETEE -BEERZEY
W HE A &I & BB 25,267,000
TCEFANECEECARIBESRE
AHMEBZRH(CETZNE B8
18 &5 18 74 #35,957,0007T) °

AEBEIYZHRPINESH
REUBRIINERE BTFEER
EE SR EIE - BE# I 2 & B
& & %) Uk & & /& #370,0007T (= &
T\ F : B #25,770,0007T) °

(iii)

EMEPBEZHX

BIELE S @K - 515 R 45 HE AR
A TRAXRAMEERTRERILE
EEBEEHANZEZHNMT -

26

() REFBEEED

2009 2008
“ETAE YIS
HK$’000 HK$'000
EETT BT T
Cost of inventories recognised as BRAERAI 2FERA (FE13)
expense (Note 13) 3,607,671 4,451,476
Employee benefit expenses (Note 27) {8 & 4& 7 5 % (Kf 7£27) 414,145 347,444
Depreciation (Note 7) e (M 3E7) 75,568 54,909
Professional fee and printing cost HZEXZIBER2EERBERAR
related to the Transaction EN il B AN 631
Provision/(reversal) for impairment of & 5 [ H #h e U ZORE B HE /(B @)
trade and other receivables 2,562 (8,880)
(Reversal)/provision for inventory 58 B R R (B E) BB
obsolescence (1,342) 269
Operating leases rental for land and ~ +H# RIEFLKLHEMR S
buildings 2,765 2,362
Auditors’ remuneration % 256 B & 3,171 4,687
Research and development costs T 75 I B B K AR 4,171 3,458
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
GEUMBHRRME (K)

26 Expenses by Nature (Continued)

(b)

From discontinued operations

(b)

26 EMHEIBEZHEXZ (@)

RECRIEGEEET

2009
—EFAE
HK$°000
BETFRT

Cost of inventories recognised as
expense (Note 13)

Employee benefit expenses

Depreciation (Note 7)

Provision for warranty (Note 24)

Provision for impairment of trade and
other receivables

Provision for inventory obsolescence

Operating leases rental for land and
buildings

Auditors’ remuneration

Provision for impairment charge of
property, plant and equipment
(Note 7)

Research and development costs

REFAXZz2FERA (E13)

BEEMFAX

I & (B EE7)

Em iR E B A (P E24)

B 5 N B FE W BB (B B

FEKREMERERGRE
THRkBEFZRERERS

%2R B &
YE - BE RkRERE
B S Bk 1 (M RE7)

Bt 5% K 3% PR AR

2008
“BENF
HK$'000
AT T

1,205,061
27,113
15,011
38,129

12,778
151

2,788

9

92
334




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
GEMBRRME (&)

27 Employee Benefit Expenses

(a)

27

18 & & 7l 5 X

(a)

Wages and salaries TERF®

Termination benefits LIRS ET

Pension costs (i) SN N ()

Medical benefits EERA

Share options granted to directors BEYEEREEBZ
and employees i IR 1

Other allowances and benefits H )= 8h & 1@ A

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees
to join the MPF Scheme. Under the MPF Scheme, each
of the group companies (the employer) and its
employees make monthly contributions to the scheme
at 5% of the employees’ earnings as defined under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Legislation. The
contributions from each of the employers and
employees are subject to a cap of HK$1,000 per month
and thereafter contributions are voluntary.

The Company’s subsidiaries established in the PRC
participate in the local retirement schemes of the PRC.
Pursuant to the relevant regulations, the Group is
currently required to make a monthly contribution
equivalent to 15% to 28% of the monthly salaries in
respect of its full-time and temporary employees.

2009 2008

b LN —TT)\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETR BETT
330,674 259,692
- 2,502
21,617 24,213
12,312 14,827
10,269 -
39,273 46,210
414,145 347,444

REBCLHEBAERESM
ME R & BIEEESE
g2 &£EBETSHARURE)
LEREAERAENMAEEE
PIRE FAKEEALSZS%
ERFTEER BEREES
Bz #t3 LR A S A E%1,000
T BB RaREER-

ARARRFRBEKL 2 B A A
HLER A BRKRSETE -
BEBEBERG  ~FEERES
AZNBEERBRERES
A #15%228% 2 3K o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
GEUMBHRRME (K)

27 Employee Benefit Expenses (Continued) 27 BEEFIFEX(E)
(b) Directors’ and senior managements’ b)) EEREREBEASEHNS
emoluments
The remuneration of the directors for the year ended 31 EERNBE_ZTZTAE+ A
December 2009 is set out below: =t+t—HILEFEZMEHEINEOT

Employer’s

contribution

Discretionary Other to pension
Name of Director bonuses benefits (i) scheme Total
BHhastilz
ESHa wne RIS HubERG EEHR &t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT #BETRT BETT BT BETT BETT
Executive Directors BITESE
Mr. Cai Qiwu (iv) HEHEREEW
Mr. Jiang Deqing ERBRE
Mr. Qu Fei BmEE
Mr. Gao Fazhong Bk E
Ms. Yuan Ligun RAMBEZ+
Mr. Li Jianwei REEEE
Mr. Zheng Weikang BERLE
Non-executive Director ERITEE
Ms. Tan Xuemei EEL L

Independent non-executive  JBITIEHIT

Directors -
Mr. Tan Jinsong (ii) B SR P A (i)
Mr. Lam Ming Yung PR B &
Ms. Chen Chunhua BRELR T

Mr. Chan Wai Dune (i) FeR 4 35 5t £E (i)




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

HEMBRRME (&)

27 Employee Benefit Expenses (Continued) 27 EEEAMEARZ (&)
(b) Directors’ and senior managements’ b) EEREREEASNE(E)
emoluments (Continued)
The remuneration of the directors for the year ended 31 EENHE_ZEENE+ A
December 2008 is set out below: =T—BALEFEZMEHINAT
Employer’s
contribution
Discretionary to pension
Name of Director Fees Salary bonuses scheme Total
Btz
Esna we e EETEAL EEHR &t
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETT BT T BT T BT T
Executive Directors BITEE
Mr. Jiang Deging (vii) ZE 1205 5 4 (vii) — 455 765 8 1,228
Mr. Qu Fei (ix) BRI (X - 354 540 8 902
Mr. Gao Fazhong (ix) B2 Bk A (i) - 354 540 8 902
Ms. Yuan Liqun RAB I+ — — — — —
Mr. Li Jianwei REELE - - - - -
Mr. Zheng Weikang (ix) B2 B A (X) — - — _ _
Mr. Wu Zhigiang (viii) 1R 7558 56 A (vill) - 472 1,498 4 1,974
Mr. Fang Hongbo (x) 77 HOR S (x) — — — — —
Mr. Zhang Quan (x) A KK — — — — —
Mr. Li Donglai (x) TR AKX — — — — —
Non-executive Directors EHITES
Mr. Cai Qiwu (ix) 22 H R AL A (ix) — — _ _ _
Ms. Tan Xuemei (v) EBEBELLV — — _ _ _
Mr. Zhang Xinhua (vi) SR HT EE O A (vi) - - - - -
Independent non-executive BILEHRIT
Directors S
Mr. Chan Wai Dune ER 4 ity 5 A= 180 — — — 180
Mr. Lam Ming Yung MBAE A 180 — — — 180
Ms. Chen Chunhua RELEL L 180 — — — 180
540 1,635 3,343 28 5,546

(i) Other benefits include leave pay and share based

payments.

(i) Mr. Tan Jinsong was appointed on 1 August 2009.

(iii) Mr. Chan Wai Dune resigned on 31 July 2009.

(i)

)

H 42 F 245 A # R R AKX
S e

EHLELR ZTEAFNA
—EBEE-

RupmEt TN —_ETNLF+ A
=t+—HBT-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
GEUMBRRME (K)

27 Employee Benefit Expenses (Continued) 27

(b)

(c)

Directors’ and senior managements’

emoluments (Continued)

(iv)  Mr. Cai Qiwu, who was a non-executive Director, was
redesignated as an executive Director on 1 January
2009.

(v) Ms. Tan Xuemei was appointed on 17 December 2008.

(vi)  Mr. Zhang Xinhua resigned on 17 December 2008.

(vi)  Mr. Jiang Dejing was appointed on 31 August 2008.

(vii)  Mr. Wu Zhigiang was appointed on 31 March 2008 and
resigned on 31 August 2008.

(ix)  Mr. Qu Fei, Mr. Gao Fazhong, Mr. Zheng Weikang and
Mr. Cai Qiwu were appointed on 31 March 2008.

() Mr. Fang Hongbo, Mr. Zhang Quan and Mr. Li Donglai
resigned on 31 March 2008.

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group for the year include three directors (2008: four) whose
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented above.
The emoluments payable to the remaining two (2008: one)
individuals during the year are as follows:

EE®AFEXZ(E)
ESREREEAEMR (@)

(b)

(c)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viil)

BERALERFNTES K
—EENF-A-BHERH
TE=E-

BEMXLIN _TZNF+ =
R+tBEZE-

RMEEER_ZTENF T =
At HBHE-

EZBRBFRER_ZZENFNA
=t+—BEZE-

REBEENR-_FTTNF=A
St-HEZE IR-FF
NFENAZ+—BET-

BEREL  MBELLL  BE
BEERBEAEREENR_ZTT
NFE=ZR=+—HEZZ-

KR RERERFR
KREERZFFTNF=A
=t B#fT-

ZTEamaHFMAL
AEEEEAAEESTHALTE
BT N\F HEHES A
MEBHR EX D AFEEN
BTMB(ZEEZENF: —F)A L
ZMEmT

Basic salaries, housing allowances, HEAFH e FEEZEB - BRE-

share options, other allowances HEZEA REDA =S
and benefits in kind
Contribution to pension schemes RIREFT IR

2009 2008
b L YEN —TT)\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BEETR BET T

1,608

1,616




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

HEMBRRME (&)

27 Employee Benefit Expenses (Continued) 27 EERAMAZ(E)

(c) Five highest paid individuals (Continued) (c)
The emoluments fell within the following bands:

Emolument bands

rAEREHMAL(E)
BB TR AT :

Number of individuals

AB

BN & 48 Rl
HK$1,000,000-HK$2,000,000 7% #1,000,0007T % #£2,000,0007T
HK$2,000,001-HK$2,500,000 7% #2,000,001 7T #2,500,0007T
28 Finance Costs — Net 28 BhERA — (B3
2009
—EETAE
HK$'000
BETT
Interest expense FERX (22,869)
Exchange (loss)/gain — net X (BR) e — F8 (166)
Finance cost B & KA (23,035)

Finance income — interest income on bank  E&E WA — BRITERZ
deposit FBMA

Net finance costs BhE A AN FEE

4,341

(18,694)

2008
“BENF

2008
“BEINF
HK$'000
BT T

(42,461)
5,352

(37,109)

8,240

(28,869)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
GEUMBRRME (K)

29 Income Tax Expense 20 FiSHAX
No Hong Kong profits tax has been provided as the Group did not BN E B RN EH B I o] fER 5 FE -
have any assessable profit in Hong Kong. PRC corporate income tax U EAREENEGHEE PEDSE
has been calculated on the estimated assessable profit for the year FEMBEBEAEE 2 (G ERFEREIL
at the rates of taxation prevailing in the respective jurisdictions. BEEHER ZIRITHEHE -

2009 2008

L IR —TTNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
werr IELERE

Income tax from continuing operations: REFBEBREEEBZMER

Current tax BB F 18

— PRC corporate income tax — PETEREH 64,303 30,392
64,303 30,392

Deferred tax R REF I8

— Deferred tax assets recognised (Note 23)  — 2 T 32 3E 1 £ 18 & & (Fff 5£23) (13,959) (7,887)

— Deferred tax liabilities recognised (Note 23) — B2 #E 2R L I8 & & (M 5323) 18,915 6,305

4,956 (1,582)

Income tax expense Frisfim = 69,259 28,810




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
HEMBRRME (&)

29

30

Income Tax Expense (Continued)
The tax on the Group’s profit before tax differs from the theoretical

amount that would arise using the weighted average tax rate
applicable to profits of the entities as follows:

29

Fit 1% %t b 32 (48)
7K 5 416 31 R0 2 B SR P AR

BERBZMEFAREMAE RS
ZEREMT

2009 2008

b L B T )\

HK$’000 HK$’000

BETT BT T

Profit before taxation B F AT F) B 423,034 192,414
Calculated at the PRC statutory tax rate of 3% 71 B 3% 78 # K25% 5T &

25% (2008: 25%) (ZZZ)N\F : 25%) 105,759 48,104
Effect of difference in applicable tax rates BERABRERERE2VE (35,588) (20,400)
Income not subject to tax BARB ZWA (5,148) -
Expenses not deductible for taxation LI 53

purposes 4,236 1,106
Income tax expense TSR X 69,259 28,810

PRC corporate income tax is provided for on 25% (2008: 25%) of
the profits for the PRC statutory financial reporting purpose, adjusted
for those items, which are not assessable or deductible for the PRC
corporate income tax purpose.

Profits tax for other locations has not been provided as the Group
did not have any assessable profits in those locations.

(Loss)/Profit Attributable to Owners of the
Company

The loss attributable to owners of the Company is dealt with in the
financial statements of the Company to the extent of approximately
HK$1,309,000 (2008: profit of HK$1,222,770,000).

30

PREMCEMSHOIRPBEEEV B 23R A
B 225% (Z T T N\F :25%)5T 8 W1
HAAPBECEMSH B ARSI
ZHZEBEBELAEETURE-

A 7S S 1 70 L i b B 6 A (F fR] B SR A A
B B R RSB RS

RATBE AEE(BE)
FlH

FFTARRB M BHRRZARNARIES AEG
B 18 49 & 7 11,309,000 (Z 2 & )\ F -
F S 7 #51,222,770,0007T ) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
GEUMBRRME (K)

31 Earnings Per Share 31 BRES
(a) Basic (a) E&X
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit BRERNEBRNTIIZEERNEG AE
for the year by the weighted average number of ordinary ANDBITEERZMEFEHEGE -

shares in issue during the year.

2008
ZEENF
Continuing operations WHEEEER
Profit for the year from continuing operations X 2 &% A A fE1h
attributable to owners of the Company SELCEEK 2 FEFE
(HK$’000) (B FIT) 353,775 163,604
Weighted average number of ordinary shares  #tEtE G RE KRBT 2
for the purposes of basic earnings per TR NEE
share ('000 shares) (Fr) 13,479,314 13,479,314
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) BREXBF (GEW) 2.62 1.21
Discontinued operations CRILEEER
Profit for the year from discontinued operations 72 &) # & A FE1L
attributable to owners of the Company BRIMNGEER 2 FENE
(HK$’000) CBE®TT) 33,273
Weighted average number of ordinary shares Ftit EGREKRE T 2
for the purposes of basic earnings per TR N EE
share (000 shares) (Fr) 13,479,314
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) FRERZF (W) 0.25
Profit for the year attributable to owners of the K2 &l # & A FE{L
Company (HK$’000) FEMBECEETT) 353,775 196,877
Weighted average number of ordinary shares sttt E G RE KA F 2
for the purposes of basic earnings per T 3E A I #E g &
share (000 shares) (F10) 13,479,314 13,479,314
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) R E A& F GBI 2.62 1.46
On 31 March 2008, 8,753,323,092 shares were allotted and RZZEENF=ZA=+—"H F#%
issued to the Vendor as consideration shares upon the BERXS5TEKE  BRE 5% E%E
completion of the Transaction (Note 18(a)), the ordinary shares 178,753,323,0020% I& 15 1 & K B %
issued as part of the Transaction are presented as if it had 5 (M 3%18(@) s ZEBER SR ETZ
always been issued using the principles of merger accounting TRRERE B STIESI FE55 TR
as prescribed in HKAG 5. EZ2AEHSHRANZINEHREAD L

—E#IT




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
HEMBRRME (&)

31 Earnings Per Share (Continued)

(b)

Diluted

For the year ended 31 December 2009, diluted earnings per
share is calculated by adjusting the weighted average number
of ordinary shares outstanding to assume conversion of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares. The dilutive potential ordinary
shares of the Company are performance-based share options.
For the share options, a calculation is done to determine the
number of shares that could have been issued based on the
attainment of the performance target at the end of the year.
The number of shares calculated as above is compared with
the number of shares that would have been issued assuming
the exercise of the share options.

For the year ended 31 December 2008, the outstanding share
options granted by the Company has no dilutive effect.

31 BREFGE)

(b)

HE

BE_TTAF+-_A=+—HL
FE -SREFRNEBHE %
TEARRZMEFHBEFELAREM
AE UYHRRERMAEEEEY
B ARRZBEEREEBRA
MKz B - st B
FOCIFHERFLEINRRE R
NEERAETZRNEE 258 -
EXHEZBRMHBE BERERE
EBITEMERTZRNBEBEED
LO#R o

BE_TT/N\F+-_A=+t—AHL
FE ARARBZRETEBR
Y BEEZE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
GEUMBRRME (K)

31 Earnings Per Share (Continued)

(b)

Diluted (Continued)

31 BREFGE)

(b)

EE)

Continuing operations

Profit for the year from continuing operations
attributable to owners of the Company
(HK$'000)

FEEEER

AARIEE AEMS
REREEBZFENE
(B% T L)

353,775

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
for the purposes of basic earnings per
share ('000 shares)

Adjustments for share options (‘000 shares)

RAESREARNZ
BB BN
(F )
HEBREEL AR (TR

13,479,314
85,343

Diluted earnings per share (HK cents)

F#EERN (B)

13,564,657

2.61

Discontinued operations

Profit for the year from discontinued operations
attributable to owners of the Company
(HK$'000)

ERIEEEER

RRARIGEE AR
ERIEREXRB 2FER
(B% T L)

bE

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
for the purposes of basic earnings per
share ("000 shares)

Adjustments for share options (‘000 shares)

Wit HERERRT 2
238 15 704 49 B
(FB%)

00 AR A 1 2 B9 B (F IR

Diluted earnings per share (HK cents)

Fh#@EaN (BI)

Profit for the year attributable to owners of the
Company (HK$’000)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
for the purposes of basic earnings per
share ('000 shares)

Adjustments for share options (‘000 shares)

AREHEE AR
FEMNBHCEE T T
A ESRERRNZ
EfalEelk: B2k o
(T A
R R 2 B (TR

353,775

13,479,314
85,343

Diluted earnings per share (HK cents)

FhEggR [ B

13,564,657

2.61

2008
“TENE

163,604

13,479,314

13,479,314

1.21

33,273

13,479,314

13,479,314

0.25

196,877

13,479,314

13,479,314

1.46




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
HEMBRRME (&)

32 Dividends 32 KR

2009 2008
b LYW —TT)\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
EETT BETT

Proposed final dividend, of HK0.5 cent (2008: nil) per &% K EANK 8 R @ A%

ordinary share BEOSI(ZTTNE : &) -
At a meeting held on 29 March 2010, the Directors proposed a final R-_E—ZTEFE=A-_t+HNBEFTZEH
dividend of HKO.5 cent per ordinary share. This proposed dividend is EEEHTIRAHKRESR L BRBE0S
not reflected as a dividend payable in these consolidated financial o W TEEZRES REZZHESBR

statements. FARBAEMEKS -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
GEUMBRRME (K)

33 Notes to the Consolidated Statement of 33 HZERESRERME
Cash Flows
(@  Reconciliation of profit before income tax to cash generated @ MEASEHEIFEBEEEEE R
from operations: S E R -

2009 2008
b L VN —TTN\F
LG HK$’000
EETRT BETT

Profits before income tax 0 I‘?- ﬂ? "HAAE
— Continuing operations —BERLER 423,034 192,414
— Discontinued operations — E Z’i‘ I = 33,200
423,034 225,614

Adjustments for: FHE
— Depreciation — e 69,920
— Amortisation of leasehold land and — THE T [ 4 b 55 PR A g

land use right 2,773
— Impairment of property, plant and — ¥ BWEIZHERE

equipment 92
— Fair value gain on investment properties — 8 & ¥ ¥ A FE K 2= (2,198)
— Loss on disposals of property, plant —HEME BMEMREEBRE

and equipment 12,760 3,091
— Fair value (gain)/losses on financial —SRMTEAEZRAFEM) EE

instruments (55,441) 30,635
— Share-based payment expenses — BRI HAZ 10,269 -
— Share of profits of associates — 1EHE R AFE (4,808) -
— Government grants — BT HE Ah (5,272) (1,413)
— Interest income — B A (4,341) (10,390)
— Interest expense — FBMR% 22,869 50,881
— Effect on exchange translation — HNEETE H 2 173 (31,778)
Changes in working capital: BESLEH:
— Inventories —F8 (425,304) 211,580
— Due from related companies ) NGIE ] (173,810) (981,619)
— Trade and other receivables — B REME Hﬂl B2 (311,559) 218,107
— Provision for warranty —ERRERE = 33,927
— Due to related companies — FERTEEE AR08 4,583 (192,626)
— Trade and other payables — B HME H BN 893,448 511,100

Cash generated from operations KEEEZRS 465,092 137,696




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
HEMBRRME (&)

33 Notes to the Consolidated Statement of 33 HZEBHERERME(E)
Cash Flows (Continued)
(b)  In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds from ) REeaREREXRFT HEWE-
sale of property, plant and equipment comprise: BEREEMEHERE:

2009 2008
b LYW —TT)\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
EETRT BETT

Net book value disposed (Note 7) & 2 BRmEFEE (BT EE7) 21,234 24,799
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWME BMEREFEEIE
equipment (12,760) (8,091)

Proceeds from disposal of property, plantand HE W - B E L&

equipment Ffr 1§ 508 21,708
34 Contingent Liabilities 34 HARERE
As at 31 December 2009, the Group and the Company did not have RZZEZANEFE+ZA=+—H Fx5EK
any material contingent liabilities (2008: nil). KA UEEMAEAIABE(ZZTEN

FE) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
GEUMBRRME (K)

35 Commitments 35 JEiE
(a) Capital commitments (a) BAXRKIE
Group
xE
p0[0]) 2008
—EETAE —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BETT BT T
Contracted but not provided for BT 4 1B R BHE
— purchases of property, plant and equipment — BEEW % KE R HE 87,455
— investments in associates — BERNRIRE 119,718
207,173
(b) Operating lease commitments — Group as the (b) EEHERIE - XEEES
lessee EHEA
The future aggregate minimum lease payments under non- BETAIHE CEHEM R KRR
cancellable operating leases are as follows: EfRt s xEHEERBAEBLOT :
Group
3
2009 2008
b L B T )\
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Not later than one year TiliE—F 1,580 1,419
Later than one year and not later than five years #B3@ — 1B 4838 A 4F 1,120 2,101

2,700 3,520




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
HEMBRRME (&)

36 Discontinued Operations 36 ERILESER
On 31 March 2008, the Group disposed of all of its equity interest in RZEENF=ZA=+—H XxEBARE

FHEHRBEEERAAM 2 I R E
(1) BEEREEEHEEZE_ZTTNEF=
AR=+—BLE=EAZ&EMNBHAEE
32,575,000 Bt AAEBHE TN
FT A=+ BHIEFEZERILEE:?
B2 MEA -

the Disposed Companies to the Vendor (Note 1). The operating
profit of the Disposed Group for the three months ended 31 March
2008 amounted to approximately HK$32,575,000 has been included
in the profit from discontinued operations of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2008.

The results and cash flows for the discontinued operations were as BRIFEEEB2EERBSREWNT ¢
follows:
2008
—ETNF
HK$’000
ok e

Discontinued operations: ERIEEEET:

Revenue U %5 1,380,055
Cost of goods sold HEEmMK AR (1,248,750)
Gross profit EF 131,305
Other gains - net Hflizm — 588 10,470
Selling and marketing costs 84 & I i i HE B K R (67,470
Administrative expenses T (39,403)
Other operating expenses HagEm= (274)
Operating profits TR E 44,628
Finance costs & A (13,578)
Finance income A& WA 2,150
Finance costs — net BEKAN — FHE (11,428)
Profits before income tax 30 B% FR 45 Bt 50 F1E 33,200
Income tax expense Frisfimx (625)
Profit for the year from discontinued operations BRIEEEER 2 FENHE 32,575

2008
—EENF
HK$’'000
BT

Discontinued operations: BRIEESEF:

Net cash inflow from operating activities WETEE 2R RAFHE 159,444
Net cash used in investing activities WEZGFAZER T (57,089
Net cash used in financing activities RMEZSFA R FRE (9,2695)

Total cash inflows REkANEE 93,090
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
ﬁAﬂjﬁiﬁ%mﬂI (n‘.ﬁ)

36

37

Discontinued Operations (Continued)
(a) The deemed contribution arising from the Transaction credited

to merger reserve and net cash outflow on disposal of the
Disposed Group for the year ended 31 December 2008 was

36 ERIEEZEERE(E)

@ HEXRHEEZREABDIAAD
BiiEE MHEENEREBES
TENEFZASt—BLEEY

determined as follows: ReRmLFRENETIEEER
2008
—EENF
HK$’000
BT
Leasehold land and land use rights (Note 6) FAE £t & £ Hb {50 A #E (Fff 56) 104,125
Property, plant and equipment (Note 7) Y% BB KEEFET) 418,503
Investment properties (Note 8) ®E W (T 5E8) 113,893
Other non-current assets HiIERBEE 73
Cash and cash equivalents HehBReEEY 245,096
Inventories 78 417,478
Due from related companies & W BA B R 5] 58 1,172,721
Trade and other receivables g 5 R EAh YR 673,063
Pledged bank deposits BEHEFRITER 171,441
Trade and other payables B 5 Mk H A EMAR (2,116,244)
Income tax liabilities FrEHas (810)
Due to related parties JE 1< BB B 7 3T (967,399
Due to the Company JER AR FIFRIA (876,124)
Provision for warranty (Note 24) EmRERME( Pﬁ 524) (109,944)
Borrowings B (401,970)
Less: minority interests disposed of BB HELEREES (65,232)
Less: statutory reserves released (Note 19(a)) B BRBR A E #E A (T RE19(a) ) (48,137)
Net liabilities disposed of EHEERTFH (1,259,467)
Net debt receivable assigned to the Vendor MEFEE EREEFE 876,124
Deemed contribution arising from the Transaction ZERGEEZHRIEREBBEFA
credited to merger reserve (Note 19(d) & B (M 3E19d)) 404,351
Exchange difference EHEER (21,008)
Cash proceeds WEFT1SIA -
Less: cash and cash equivalent disposed of HoBEHERSRREEEY (245,096)
Net cash outflow Re&RtigE (245,096)
Related Party Transactions 37 FABEARXS
For the purposes of these consolidated financial statements, parties R EEEUBREME WASEER

HEEXEEHS -T2 REEREH

are considered to be related to the Group if the party has the ability,
directly or indirectly, to exercise significant influence over the Group
in making financial and operating decisions, or vice versa. Related
parties may be individuals (being members of key management
personnel, significant shareholders and/or their close family
members) or other entities and include entities which are under the
significant influence of related party of the Group where those parties
are individuals.

BEAFEN 5 —HEAERKEE
HAREBEZMERBEERRBEBEEATE
N BRATARASANEE ZBE T - M
BRI ARERAL (BIZEEBREXE -
TERRE SAWME AR REMELE
BRASEZEBT (ZEALTRERA
DIHEEEATENZER-




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
HEMBHRRME (8)

37 Related Party Transactions (Continued) 37 FABtAR 5 (E)
Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries have been KARBEENBARMZIRZIEREGEEEK
eliminated on consolidation. Transactions between the Group and BAREE AEBHEMEBR HTRFRAZ
other related parties during the year are summarised below: RZBMMT :
(@) Transactions with related parties (a) HFEtA 23X S
The following transactions were carried out with related parties AT T B TR ST X A B E
in accordance with the terms mutually agreed by the EZBRETZIRS

respective parties:

2009 2008
b PN —TT)N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
EETT BB T

Sales to related parties : M E T EE
— Controlled by the ultimate holding company — B & R 42 % A &) 12 ) 1,970,176 1,529,421
— Controlled by a substantial shareholder of ~— FIERAKIEBRAF 2 T BBR
the ultimate holding company 22 i) 534,635 567,188
— Controlled by a close family member of — HERIERARTERREZ
the ultimate holding company’s S E o
substantial shareholder 44 —
2,504,855 2,096,609
Purchases from related parties: w) 8 Bt 5 R B -
— Controlled by the ultimate holding company — f & 48 12 A% A &) 2 ) 4,451 3,232
— Controlled by a substantial shareholder of ~— HIRAZIEBR AR 2 £ BBR
the ultimate holding company 22 4| 159,678 820,049
— Controlled by a close family member of — BERKRERARTERRZ
the ultimate holding company’s ST 3545 4
substantial shareholder 161 29,707
164,290 852,988
Receives logistics services from related [A) B8 B 5 E ER W AR A% -
parties:
— Controlled by the ultimate holding company — H & 435 i& 2 712 4 1,382
Capital investment to a related party: MBS IERZEARRE
— Controlled by the ultimate holding company — B & 42 3% I A 7)1 4 -
Purchase of land use right and factory ) 8 Bk 77 B8 B - it 6 7R TR
premises from related parties: =EZE
— Controlled by the ultimate holding company — B & 4235 I A &) 42 & 70,002
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
GEUMBRRME (K)

37 Related Party Transactions (Continued) 37 BEBHRXS(E)
(b) Key management compensation b) EEEEASHME
Group
X&EE

2009 2008

L LIRY —=zz 7
HK$’000 HK$'000
wern R

Salaries and other employee benefits e kHAMmEESRA 6,658 10,632
Share-based payments AR 2 6,459 -
13,117 10,632
(c) Balances with related companies (c) EARABEA T Z4&6R
Group
PN

2009 2008
—zers RELIC
HK$°000 HK$'000
wern R

Due from related companies: JE Uk B Bk R R 5RA ¢
— Controlled by the ultimate holding company — 1 & #% 1% i% 2 &) 4% %) 1,029,809 707,978
— Controlled by a substantial shareholder of — HRKRIER AT Z TERE

the ultimate holding company 72 217,997 366,350
— Controlled by a close family member of — HERRIERARTERREZ

the ultimate holding company’s T

substantial shareholder 332 —

1,248,138 1,074,328




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

HEMBRRME (&)

37 Related Party Transactions (Continued) 37 FABtAR 5 (E)
(c) Balances with related companies (Continued) (c) HEBtASZEER(E)
Group
AEH
p0[0) 2008
oL B T )\
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT
Due to related companies: JE 1<) A Bt 75 SR A -
— Controlled by the ultimate holding company — 1 & #% 1% A% 2 &) 4% ) 4,127 11,520
— Controlled by a substantial shareholder of — HRKRER AT Z TERE
the ultimate holding company 7 | 174,085 95,679
— Controlled by a close family member of —HBERERQAIETERERZ
the ultimate holding company’s 3T FR 1
substantial shareholder 403 66,833
178,615 174,032
The balances due from/to related companies are U B AREBRAARE
denominated in RMB, unsecured, interest free and are DA WAMEMR REEERE
repayable on demand. No balance due from related K (B8 o BE M B UK BE B 8 B 45 8
companies is past due or impaired. EHR S Rk (E o
38 Ultimate Holding Company 38 RBEFRAT \
The directors regard Midea, a company incorporated in the PRC, EERENRFPEFMANL2RAR) A&
as being the ultimate holding company. RYER AR o
- - 4
39 Event after the reporting period 39 HEEEIR

On 29 March 2010, the Company announced that Midea Holding
(Cayman Islands) Limited, (“Midea (Cayman lIslands)”), the
immediate holding company of the Company, entered into a placing
agreement (the “Placing Agreement”), pursuant to which Midea
(Cayman Islands) agreed to place, through the placing agent,
1,200,000,000 shares of the Company at HK$0.42 per share to
certain placees independent to the Group.

On the same date, a subscription agreement (the “Subscription
Agreement”) was entered into between the Company and Midea
(Cayman Islands), pursuant to which Midea (Cayman Islands)
conditionally agreed, upon the completion of the Placing Agreement
and among other conditions, to subscribe for 600,000,000 new
shares of the Company at HK$0.42 per share.

At the date when these consolidated financial statements are
approved, the above share transactions relating to the Placing
Agreement and the Subscription Agreement have not been
completed.

R-ZEBE—FE=RA=-+NB AQF2%
EHER(ASHS)ER2A(EN(F
ERE))(ARAINEEZR AR » E7]
ViREHE ((EEmE]D KBt 6 (F
ERE)REBRBRERERTREMDE
#20.427T - M A T B R A K B &R A
fic #1,200,000,0000% 748 22 &) B 17

BAH ARAHEEN(HEHSE)FILRE
Wi ((REWRHED Bt N (HEHS)
B MR E AR S 5 5T A R H b =
K&k F I’ KR D E Bo4omT RE
600,000,000 A% 28 2 & #9 # AR 19 ©

=7
708

RUILERE VBRI EMEE R EXEE
EHAELRBHEER RO S H AT
B o
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=t+—-HiLEE

2007 2006 2005
—2TAHF —ZZTRE —_ZTTRF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETFT ABBTRT  BETRT
Restated Restated Restated
el E ]l E ]l

Audited Unaudited Unaudited
LEZ RIEEZ RIEEZ
0) 0) ()

LT FEMBHEE

2009 2008
locloch Rl — T N\ 4
HK$’000 HK$'000
EETT BT T
Audited Audited
TEE wEZ

Results -
Revenue g 4,824,116 5,193,278

Profit/(loss) attributable to owners & A &1 B A

4,644,092 3,192,733 2,612,940

224,385 58,686 (194,474)

5,797,183 5,989,771 4,732,315
(5,523,927) (5,948,562) (4,802,265)

of the Company FEEFIE, (EB8) 353,775 196,877
Assets and liabilities BERERE
Total assets BEE 4,598,213 3,359,872
Total liabilities BafmE (3,463,497) UASEERACY
Total equity/(deficit) /(B R 1,134,716 770,642

273,256 41,209 (69,950)

0} The financial summary for the year ended 31 December 2007, 2006 (i)
and 2005 are restated using the principles of merger accounting, as
prescribed in HKAG 5. Details refer to Note 2.1 of the consolidated
financial statements.

BE-TTLF —TEAFR-FTR
FH+_AZ+—ALFEZHBEBE K
AEBGTIESIERMBRTEZAM S
REIEZ - EEAHE BL2HGEEMER
=MtEE2.1 o
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